
PLEASE NOTE: ALL SUBJECTS LISTED ON THIS AGENDA ARE TO BE CONSIDERED ACTION ITEMS BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. 

Page 1 

February 20, 2024 

COUNTY OF LINCOLN
Todd F Proctor, Chairman Walter Hill, Assessor 
Jon F Crunk, Vice-Chairman Shannan Hemphill, Clerk  
Samantha J Serna, Member Rhonda Burrows, Probate Judge 
Pierre S Pfeffer, Member Michael Wood, Sheriff 
Mark G Fischer, Member Sherrie Huddleston, Treasurer 

County Manager, Makayla Zonfrilli 

AGENDA 
Board of County Commissioners – Regular Meeting 

February 20, 2024 @ 8:30am - Commission Chambers in Carrizozo, New Mexico and ZOOM 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87226923665?pwd=dGY3aWNMeklXNUtRVnlPckVNZnI0QT09 

Meeting ID: 872 2692 3665 
Passcode: 836438 

One tap mobile 
+12532050468

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation

4. Pledge of Allegiance
a. Pledge – U.S. A. Flag
b. Salute – N.M. Flag (“I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico, the Zia Symbol of perfect

friendship among united cultures”)

5. Approval of Agenda

6. Approval of Minutes:
a. January 16, 2024, Regular Commission Meeting

7. Approval of Consent Agenda
a. Payroll/Accounts Payable/Budget/ Expenditures
b. Treasurer’s Financial Report for the Month ending January 31, 2024
c. Approval or Disapproval of Safety Net Care Pool & Indigent Health Care Claims
d. Approval or Disapproval of the 2024 Annual Certified County Maintained Mileage Report Due

April 1, 2024
e. Approval of Resolution 2024-44 Certification of Road Mileage (Annual)
f. Approval of the HIDTA Agreement (MOU) Between Otero County, City of Alamogordo,

Village of Ruidoso, 12th District Attorney, and the County of Lincoln Regarding the Continued
Development, Implementation, and Operation of the White Mountain Drug Task Force, Funded
and Staffed, and Operated by the Parties Herein.



PLEASE NOTE: ALL SUBJECTS LISTED ON THIS AGENDA ARE TO BE CONSIDERED ACTION ITEMS BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. 

Page 2 

February 20, 2024 

8. Review of Boards/Committees Appointed by the Board of County Commissioners

a. Chaves County Community Action Program (State Statute) – Term Expire 1/2024 – Current 
Member, Chairman Todd Proctor

1. Reappoint or Appoint a New Commissioner Representative.

b. Interstate Stream Commission (Sub-Committee on the Pecos) - Term Expire 1/2024 – Current 
Member, Chairman Todd Proctor

1. Reappoint or Appoint a New Commissioner Representative.

c. Approval to publish expired positions for the Land and Natural Resources Advisory Committee 
(2-year terms)

1. Publish Interested Applicants for Reappointment and/or New Appointments for 
Districts 2, 3, 4, & At-Large.

d. Approval to Publish Expired Positions for the Lincoln Historic Preservation Board (2-year terms)
1. Publish interested applicants for reappointment and/or new appointments for District 

5

e. Lodger’s Tax Committee (2-year term)
1. Reappointment of Mr. John Hemphill to the Lodger’s Tax Committee (set to expire 

April 2024). 
2. Appointment of Ms. Lori Lytle Coleman to the Lodger’s Tax Committee for the 

Tourist Related membership.

f. New Mexico County Insurance Authority – Workers’ Compensation – Expired 12/2023 –Current 
Member Commissioner Jon Crunk, Current Alternate Ira Pearson

1. Reappoint or appoint a new Commissioner Representative and alternate.

g. New Mexico County Insurance Authority – Multi-Line Pool – Expired 12/2023 – Current 
Member Commissioner Jon Crunk, Current Alternate Ira Pearson.

1. Reappoint or Appoint a New Commissioner Representative and Alternate.

h. Approval to Publish Expired Positions for the Property Tax Protest Board (2-year term).
1. Publish Interested Applicants for Reappointment and/or New Appointments for Two

(2) Alternate Positions.

i. Approval to Publish Expired Positions for the Road Review Advisory Committee (2-year term).
1. Publish Interested Applicants for Reappointment and/or New Appointments for Two

(2) Positions for Districts 4 & 5.

j. Approval to Remove Ira Peason and Francesca Herrera as Proxies for the Solid Waste Authority 
and Replace Them with an Elected Official and the County Manager.

k. Discussion and Potential Appointment to the SERPTO Committee



PLEASE NOTE: ALL SUBJECTS LISTED ON THIS AGENDA ARE TO BE CONSIDERED ACTION ITEMS BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. 
 
                                                                                                      Page 3 

February 20, 2024 

 
 

9. Forest, Land & Natural Resources Matters: 
a. Smokey Bear Ranger District 
b. Lincoln County/NMSU Extension Services 
c. South Central Mountain RC & D 
d. Upper Hondo Soil & Water Conservation District 
e. Land and Natural Resources Advisory Committee-LANRAC 

 
10. 9:30 A.M.: PUBLIC COMMENT AND OTHER BUSINESS FROM COUNTY  

OFFICIALS (Items are for discussion only – no action will be taken) 
 

a. Update Provided by Rick Lamb, CEO of the Boys & Girls Club of Chavez & Lincoln Counties 
RE:  Youth Mentoring Services & Positive Active Programming 

 
11. Lincoln County Detention Center Update, Warden Ross Castleton 

 
12. Notice of Cancellation of RFP #23-24-4 for Plumbing Repairs at the Lincoln County Detention Center 

and Approval to Utilize CES and/or State Pricing Agreement Due to Lack of Responses to RFP and a 
Previously Submitted Scope of Work Analysis.  
 

13. Lincoln County Medical Center: 
a. Update-Todd Oberheu, Hospital Chief Executive 
b. Approval of Request for Disbursement of $842,000.00 Approved During the Original Budget 

Session July 17, 2023 to support a 24-hour staffing of ambulance for Alto and Carrizozo. 
 

14. Mimbres Peaks National Monument: 
a. Presentation by Lori Coleman – 10 minutes 
b. Approval of Resolution No. 2024-43 in Support of Luna County’s Stand Against the Proposed 

Mimbres Peaks National Monument 
 

15. Approval of Resolution No. 2024-45 Lincoln County Support for a Regional Approach to Addressing 
ISO and Working Together as a County to Work Through Projects to Mitigate Wildfire and Provide 
Increased Services to Lincoln County Residents.  
 

16. Recognition of the Support Letters for Resolution 2024-45.  
 

17.  10:30 am: Certified Local Government Presentation by Dr. Oliver Horn – Regional Manager of the 
Lincoln and Fort Stanton Historic Sites 
 

18. Discussion and Approval of the Procurement of a New Sound and Video System for the Commission 
Chambers [Request by Commissioner Crunk] 
 

19. Approval of a Support Letter for Mr. Eddie Ryan as Film Liaison for Lincoln County 
 

20. Office of Emergency Services: 
a. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between the County of Lincoln and Otero 

County Electric Co-Op Buck Mountain Tower Site (Tower or Tower Premises) 



PLEASE NOTE: ALL SUBJECTS LISTED ON THIS AGENDA ARE TO BE CONSIDERED ACTION ITEMS BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. 
 
                                                                                                      Page 4 

February 20, 2024 

b. Approval to Purchase Bunker Gear for Lincoln Volunteer Fire Department not to exceed 
$26,492.75. 

c. Discussion and Appointment of the Lincoln County Office of Emergency Services Director in 
accordance with NM Statute 12-10-5.   
 

21. Approval to go out for Formal Bid for the Following: 
a. New Emergency Communications Site on Gallinas Peak Near Corona, NM in the Amount of 

$524,000.00 
b. White Oaks Volunteer Fire Department Building Extension in the Amount of $225,000.00 
c. Hondo Volunteer Fire Department Main Station Water Storage in the Amount of $300,000.00 
d. Glencoe Volunteer Fire Department Station #1 Water Storage in the Amount of $300,000.00 
e. Glencoe Volunteer Fire Department Brush Truck Not to Exceed $250,000.00 

 
22. Lincoln County Road Department 

a. Project Road Updates 
1. Road Superintendent 
2. Renegade  

 
23. Finance:  

a. Approval of Budget Adjustment FY 23/24 by Resolution 2024-41 
b. 1:00 pm: Audit presentation from Daniel Trujillo, CPA 
c. Approval of Resolution 2024-42 a Resolution Accepting and Acknowledging FY 22/23 

Financial Audit 
d. Approval of Budget Preparation Procedures and Schedule 

 
24. Manager’s Report 

 
25. Discussion and Approval or Disapproval of the proposed Longevity, Seniority, and Leap Frog Policy 

 
26. Consideration and Approval of Applicant and Salary to Fill the Open Employment Position of Project 

Manager 
 

27. Approval to Correct an Administrative Oversight Regarding the Road Department’s Administrative 
Assistant/Secretary Position from a Tier 6 to a Tier 9 Moving the Position from $23.6308 to $28.2078 
 

28. Discussion Regarding the Scope of Work for the Opioid RFP  
 

29. Discussion and Approval of Funding Reimbursement Outlined in the Fire Protection Fund Audit 
Completed January 11, 2024.  

1. LCOES $1,676.50 General Fund 40108  
2. Trust Fund for Departments for Bonito ($255.00), Lincoln ($205.02), Nogal 

($450.00). 
 

30. Request to Approve the County Manager to Accompany Federal Lobbyist Nick Crockett for Several 
Federal Legislative Sessions from February 26th through March 1st to Present the Proposal for a 
Regionalized Emergency Management Training Center, Including the Newly Proposed OES Building  
 

31. 2:00 pm: Presentation by Tyler Technologies 



PLEASE NOTE: ALL SUBJECTS LISTED ON THIS AGENDA ARE TO BE CONSIDERED ACTION ITEMS BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. 
 
                                                                                                      Page 5 

February 20, 2024 

 
32. Discussion and Approval of the Allocation of LATCF Funds to Purchase and Implement the Tyler 

Technologies Finance Software to Replace Triadic for an Amount not to Exceed $850,000.00 
 

33. Discussion and Approval of the Allocation of LATCF Funds to Reimburse the County Clerk’s Office 
for the Implementation of the New Software from Pioneer/Catalis for Fee Collection and Revenue 
Software in the Amount of $150,000.00; Including $10,000.00 Reimbursement to the Clerk’s Office for 
Expenses Already Paid, and $20,000.00 for the Fees Listed on Contract Pages 23-24. This Software 
does Integrate with Tyler Tech, and we have had Meetings and Email Correspondence to Demonstrate 
that Ability 
 

34. Discussion and Approval of the Allocation of LATCF Funds to Buy Triadic Data for Conversion to 
Pioneer/Catalis for the Clerk’s Data in the Amount of $36,400.00 if and/or as Necessary.  

 
35. Planning: 

a. Approval to File Solid Waste Liens 
i. D. Suede Mills-$526.54 

(Land 0007226 D. Suede Mills) 
(MH 1008710 Shamarie Mills) 

ii. Michael Cude & Beth Cude- $506.16 
(Land 1002917 Michael & Beth Cude) 
(MH 1008290 Michael & Beth Cude) 

iii. Barton Blankenship- $562.70 
iv. Ralph Anthony Montes & Lindy Lou Montes-$506.16 
v. Ulf Gerhard Eastman & Donna M. Sorenson-Eastman or their Successor Trustees; 

The Eastman Family Trust- $506.16 
vi. Christopher R. Reed & Lucill J. Reed- $506.16 

vii. Harold F. Duran & Zula F. Duran- $506.16 
viii. Belinda Sanchez De Baca-$506.16 

 
b. Approval of Lodger’s Tax Funding Requests: 

1. 37th Christmas Jubilee 
Dates: Nov. 8 - 11, 2024 

                    Requested Amount: $7,000.00 
Presenter:  Laurie Viselli 

2. Lincoln Forest Renaissance Fair 
                          Dates: May 17 - 18, 2024 

                    Requested Amount: $9,190.00 
                    Presenter: Tim Roberts 
 

c. Request for Solid Waste Refund to the Blanchard Living Trust in the Amount of $2,015.82 
 

36. Authorization to Schedule Public Hearing to Consider Other Outdated or New Lincoln County 
Ordinances 

a. Public Hearing to Consider Approval of New Application for a Winegrower Liquor License with 
On Premises Consumption Only by Noisy Water Winery, located at 229 HWY 220, Alto, NM 
88312; for Last Chance Ranch LLC; located at 2342 Sudderth Drive, Ruidoso, NM 88345. 
 



PLEASE NOTE: ALL SUBJECTS LISTED ON THIS AGENDA ARE TO BE CONSIDERED ACTION ITEMS BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. 
 
                                                                                                      Page 6 

February 20, 2024 

37. Lincoln County Executive Session Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act: Discussion of All Threatened 
and/or Pending Litigation, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(7); Discussion of the Purchase 
Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property or Water Rights by the Public Body, Section 10-15-1, 
Subparagraph (H)(8); and Limited Personnel Matters, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(2) 
 

38. Signing of Official Documents 
 

39. Next meetings:   
a. Tuesday, March 19, 2024, Regular Commission Meeting 

 
40. Adjourn 
 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 

 

SUBJECT: 

  Approval of Minutes: 

   January 16, 2024, Regular Commission Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Page 1 of 18 
 

COUNTY OF LINCOLN 1 

  2 
New Mexico 3 

Regular Meeting 4 
Board of County Commissioners 5 

 6 
Todd F Proctor, Chair                         Samantha J Serna, Member                         7 
Jon F Crunk, Vice Chair        Mark G Fischer, Member  8 
                    Pierre S Pfeffer, Member 9 

                                                                  10 
Minutes 11 

Tuesday January 16, 2024 12 
 13 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Lincoln County Commission held at 8:30 AM on January 14 
16, 2024, in the County Commission Chambers, Lincoln County Courthouse, in Carrizozo, New 15 
Mexico. The meeting was also accessible via Zoom. 16 
 17 
1. Call to Order 18 
 19 
Chair Proctor called the Regular Meeting of the Board of County Commissioners to order at 8:30 20 
AM. 21 
 22 
2. Roll Call  23 
 24 
Roll Call. 25 
Present: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner 26 
Crunk, Chair Proctor. 27 
 28 
Others present included Makayla Zonfrilli, County Manager; Alan Morel, County Attorney; and 29 
Shannan Hemphill, County Clerk. 30 
 31 
3. Invocation 32 
 33 
The Invocation was presented by Chair Proctor. 34 
   35 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 36 
 37 
 a.  Pledge – USA Flag  38 
 b.  Salute – NM Flag   39 
 40 
5. Approval of Agenda 41 
 42 
Motion: Acceptance of the Agenda and authorized the Chair to move items as necessary, 43 
Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner Serna, Seconded by Commissioner Crunk. 44 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 45 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 46 
Chair Proctor. 47 
   48 
6. Selection of Lincoln County Board of Commissioners Chairman and Vice-Chairman 49 



 

Page 2 of 18 
 

 50 
Attorney Morel opened the floor for nominations of Chairman. Commissioner Crunk nominated 51 
Commissioner Proctor and Commissioner Fischer nominated himself. 52 
 53 
Attorney Morel stated the votes would be taken in order of nomination and requested a roll call 54 
vote for Commissioner Proctor as Chairman. 55 
Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 3, No = 2, Abstain = 0). 56 
Yes: Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, Chair Proctor. 57 
No: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna. 58 
 59 
Attorney Morel explained since Commissioner Proctor received enough votes, there would be no 60 
need to continue voting on the others. He turned the meeting back to Chair Proctor. Chair Proctor 61 
opened the floor for nominations of Vice-Chairman. Commissioner Serna nominated 62 
Commissioner Fischer and Commissioner Pfeffer nominated Commissioner Crunk. 63 
 64 
Chair Proctor stated the votes would be taken in order of nomination and requested a roll call vote 65 
for Commissioner Fischer as Vice-Chairman. 66 
Vote: Motion failed (summary: Yes = 2, No = 3, Abstain = 0). 67 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna. 68 
No: Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, Chair Proctor. 69 
 70 
Chair Proctor requested a roll call vote for Commissioner Crunk as Vice-Chairman. 71 
Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 3, No = 2, Abstain = 0). 72 
Yes: Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, Chair Proctor. 73 
No: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna. 74 
     75 
7. Approval of Minutes: 76 

a. December 19, 2023 - Regular Commission Meeting 77 
 78 
Motion: Approve the minutes of the December 19, 2023, Regular Commission Meeting, Action: 79 
Approve, Moved by Commissioner Serna, Seconded by Commissioner Fischer. 80 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 81 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 82 
Chair Proctor. 83 
   84 
8. Approval of Consent Agenda 85 
 a. Payroll/Accounts Payable/Budget/ Expenditures 86 
 b. Treasurer’s Financial Report for the Month Ending December 31, 2023 87 
 c. Treasurer’s 2nd Quarterly Report by Resolution 2024-35 88 
 d. Approval or Disapproval of Safety Net Care Pool & Indigent Health Care Claims 89 
 e. Approval of the DWI Grant Resolution 2024-37 Authorizing the Village of Ruidoso  90 

to Submit an Application to the DFA, Local Government Division to Participate in 91 
the Local DWI Grant and Distribution Program and Delegating Authority 92 

f. Approval to Re-Appoint Coda Omness to the Lodgers’ Tax Committee – 2-year 93 
Term 94 

g. Lincoln County Detention Center Quarterly Restricted Housing Report: October 95 
2023 – December 2023 96 

h. Approval of Professional Services Agreement Between Holcomb Law Office and 97 
the County of Lincoln  98 

i. Approval of IRS Mileage Rate Increase for 2024 from $0.65 per mile to $0.67 per 99 
mile  100 



 

Page 3 of 18 
 

j. Approval to Purchase a 2023 Ford Explorer off the State Pricing Agreement in 101 
the Amount of $59,855.00 to Serve as a New Response Vehicle for EMS with 102 
Remaining Funds ($119,000.00) from New Ambulance Allotment for Presbyterian 103 
Hospital 104 

 105 
Commissioner Fischer requested to remove items a and b from the Consent Agenda for 106 
discussion. 107 
 108 
Motion: Approve Consent Agenda Items c-j, Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner Pfeffer, 109 
Seconded by Commissioner Serna. 110 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 111 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 112 
Chair Proctor. 113 
 114 
Item a- Commissioner Fischer requested some additional details on the accounts payable item. 115 
Todd Oberheu, Hospital Chief Executive, explained the purchase of the UV lights and stated it 116 
was approved at a prior Commission meeting, however since the County purchased them instead 117 
of the Hospital, the purchase was more expensive, and he was only able to purchase one instead 118 
of two. His recommendation was to purchase big items using the hospital funds instead of having 119 
the County make the purchase, which would help to decrease the cost. Attorney Morel and Mr. 120 
Oberheu discussed the option of changing the contract or creating an MOU to allow the purchases 121 
to be made by the hospital without listing them as hospital purchases in the event the hospital 122 
reverted to the County to manage. Commissioner Fischer requested Attorney Morel and 123 
Presbyterian draft a document to allow flexibility to move money from the Mill Levy to operations 124 
to allow significant equipment/fixtures to be purchased at a reduced rate.  125 
 126 
Motion: Table the agenda item until the next month, Action: Table, Moved by Commissioner 127 
Pfeffer, None seconded. 128 
 129 
Motion died for lack of second. 130 
 131 
Commissioner Serna commended Shelly from Lodgers Tax and added a reminder that the funds 132 
needed to be expended within 2 years. Commissioner Serna stated she would like a marketing 133 
strategy and would like to hire a marketing firm to assist with spending the marketing dollars. 134 
 135 
Item b- Commissioner Fischer stated he didn’t have any specific questions; he just requested a 136 
highlight for the public. Treasurer Huddleston explained she would be giving her Board of Finance 137 
overview in a future agenda item.  138 
 139 
Motion: Approve Consent Agenda Items a and b, Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner 140 
Fischer, Seconded by Commissioner Serna. 141 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 142 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 143 
Chair Proctor. 144 
 145 
SEE EXHIBIT A: Copies of the Consent Agenda items including Resolution 2024-35 and 146 
Resolution 2024-37 are attached hereto in reference thereto made a part hereof. 147 
 148 
Chair Proctor recessed the Regular Commission Meeting at 9:14 AM and reconvened at 9:28 149 
AM. 150 
 151 



 

Page 4 of 18 
 

14. 9:30 A.M.: PUBLIC COMMENT AND OTHER BUSINESS FROM COUNTY  152 
OFFICIALS (Items are for discussion only – no action will be taken) 153 

 154 
Chair Proctor detailed the meetings he attended over the previous month.  155 
 156 
Commissioner Crunk explained the workforce Committee voted to go in a new direction. He didn’t 157 
believe the Counties would be harshly impacted but he stated the County would need to start 158 
participating in the decisions and directions. He stated there were dollars which would come 159 
through the workforce to pay for training for public employees.   160 
 161 
Commissioner Pfeffer stated he toured the Northern area of Chair Proctor’s District with the Chair 162 
and had a new feeling for the vastness of the territory.  He attended a horse meeting in Alto which 163 
was well attended, and Commissioner Fischer and the County Sheriff were in attendance as well. 164 
Commissioner Pfeffer commended Tracy Johnson from Enchanted Forest for her pursuit to find 165 
additional funding for their water problems.  166 
 167 
Commissioner Serna attended the Swearing in Ceremony the County Clerk put on for the newly 168 
elected officials from the various Districts around the County and stated she looked forward to 169 
working with them in the upcoming year.  170 
 171 
Commissioner Fischer spoke on the New Years Eve celebration at the Fairgrounds and stated it 172 
was well attended and quite possibly the best New Years celebration he had participated in. 173 
Commissioner Fischer spoke on the wild horses in the County and looking for a humane way to 174 
handle them and stated it would need to be handled in the Courts. 175 
 176 
Assessor Hill spoke on the reassessment in the County and stated his office was working diligently 177 
to ensure everything was up to date. He stated they were working on the valuation and would be 178 
mailing out the notice of value.  179 
 180 
Clerk Hemphill spoke on the Municipal Officer Election and stated the candidate signups were 181 
the prior week and the election would be in March. She explained it was being run by the Village 182 
Clerk and she was assisting as needed. 183 
 184 
Sheriff Wood provided statistics from his office over the previous month.  185 
 186 
Treasurer Huddleston stated the delinquent notices were being sent out for years prior to 2022. 187 
 188 
There was no comment from the public.        189 
 190 
25. Approval to Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) for Opioid Crisis Funding 191 
 192 
Attorney Morel explained the statement of work was well done and had good potential. 193 
 194 
Commissioner Pfeffer spoke on the settlement with the drug companies. He stated there were 195 
many services available in the County and they didn’t know much about each other. He explained 196 
the Courts were in support of a County wide project to mitigate the number of people who have a 197 
drug problem and keep having issues.  198 
 199 
Commissioner Crunk stated he was in favor of a contract position to oversee the issues.  200 
 201 



 

Page 5 of 18 
 

Commissioner Fischer questioned the RFP and stated he felt it was supposed to be taking the 202 
limited funds and using them directly in the field instead of a person to oversee everything. He 203 
would like to have the RFP redrafted to go out to those in the field who are doing the work instead 204 
of a person overseeing the process. 205 
 206 
Attorney Morel stated the proposal was so broad it would have the ability to do both. He explained 207 
it could be a coordinating position or pay funds for the actual services rendered depending on 208 
who was awarded the contract.  209 
 210 
Chair Proctor recessed the Regular Commission Meeting and convened the Public Hearing at 211 
10:00 AM. 212 
 213 
15. 10:00 A.M.: PUBLIC HEARINGS  214 

a. Public Hearing to Consider Approval of New Application for a Club Liquor License 215 
with On Premises Consumption Only with Patio Service by Alto Lakes Golf and 216 
Country Club, Inc. located at #1 Country Club Rd., Alto, NM 88312; for Kokopelli 217 
at Alto Lakes Golf; located at 1200 High Mesa Road, Alto, NM 88312 218 

 219 
Scott Annala, Planning Department, explained the license was for on premises consumption only 220 
not package sales.   221 
 222 
There were no public comments. 223 
 224 
Chair Proctor closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Meeting at 10:03 AM. 225 
 226 
Motion: Approve the application for a club liquor license with on premises consumption only with 227 
patio service by Alto Lakes Country Club, Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner Fischer, 228 
Seconded by Commissioner Pfeffer. 229 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 230 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 231 
Chair Proctor. 232 
 233 

b. Discussion and Approval of Ordinance No. 2024-04 Revising Ordinance No. 2014-234 
06, Section 3.8 Expenses for Burial or Cremation of Indigent Persons and 235 
Section 3.9 Expenses for Cost of Opening and Closing Grave Ordinance No. 236 
2014-06 Lincoln County Indigent Hospital/Health Care Ordinance Adopting Public 237 
Assistance Provisions relating to Health are for Indigents, in Accordance with the 238 
Indigent Hospital and County Health Care Act; Providing for the Annual Adjustment 239 
to IHC Income and Claims Policy Limit Schedules; Providing for the Severability of 240 
Parts Hereof; Repealing Ordinances in Conflict Herewith; and Declaring an 241 
Effective Date 242 

 243 
Chair Proctor recessed the Regular Commission Meeting and convened the Public Hearing at 244 
10:03 AM.  245 
 246 
Mr. Annala stated they were increasing the amount of money for indigent burial or cremation. He 247 
explained HB403 revamped and increased the amount to $1,000, so they needed to change the 248 
ordinance to match Statute. Commissioner Fischer questioned if it was $1,000 for Cremation and 249 
$1,000 for burial. He stated it wouldn’t cover the cost of either process. 250 
 251 



 

Page 6 of 18 
 

Attorney Morel stated they also changed the wording to Commission instead of Board, throughout 252 
the document.  253 
 254 
There were no public comments. 255 
 256 
Chair Proctor closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Meeting at 10:08 AM. 257 
 258 
Motion: Adopt the Ordinance as amended, Action: Adopt, Moved by Commissioner Fischer, 259 
Seconded by Commissioner Serna. 260 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 261 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 262 
Chair Proctor. 263 
 264 
SEE EXHIBIT B: Copy of Ordinance No. 2024-04 is attached hereto in reference thereto made a 265 
part hereof. 266 
 267 
25. Approval to Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) for Opioid Crisis Funding- Continued 268 
 269 
Commissioner Fischer requested to modify the wording of the RFP to reflect the ability for it to be 270 
a company who is already engaged in the work instead of an individual. He would like to see 271 
wording giving them the ability to coordinate and/or provide services. He stated he would like to 272 
add verbiage which would not preclude someone already in the business to allow them to bid on 273 
the RFP.  274 
 275 
Motion: Approve the issuance of the RFP as presented, Action: Approve, Moved by 276 
Commissioner Pfeffer, Seconded by Commissioner Crunk. 277 
 278 
Commissioner Fischer questioned where it was stated in the RFP that it did not have to be an 279 
individual and could be an organization already in the business. Commissioner Pfeffer explained 280 
it was listed in General Information line 1 and stated an individual or Lincoln County based 281 
program could coordinate existing services to assist Lincoln County residents. Commissioner 282 
Serna requested to broaden the scope of work to include what Commissioner Fischer was 283 
requesting. Attorney Morel provided a previous version of an RFP which was worded more 284 
broadly. Commissioner Fischer requested they use the draft presented by Attorney Morel as he 285 
felt the wording was much more appropriate. 286 
 287 
Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 3, No = 2, Abstain = 0). 288 
Yes: Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, Chair Proctor. 289 
No: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna. 290 
  291 
9. Appointed Boards and Committees 292 
 a. Appointment of Chaves County Community Action Program 293 
 b. Appointment of Interstate Stream Commission (Sub-Committee on the Pecos) 294 
 c. Discussion and Direction Regarding Local Workforce Investment Act Advisory  295 

 Board (NOMINATIONS ARE MADE BY CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE AND  296 
APPOINTED BY OTHER MUNICIPALITIES.) 297 

d. Appointment of New Mexico County Insurance Authority (Workers’ 298 
Compensation) Member and Alternate 299 

e. Appointment of New Mexico County Insurance Authority (Multi-Line Pool) 300 
Member and Alternate  301 

f. Appointment of County Alternate for Solid Waste Authority (2-year term) 302 



 

Page 7 of 18 
 

 303 
Commissioner Fischer requested to move the item to the next month due to lack of information. 304 
 305 
Motion: Table the appointments until the February meeting, Action: Table, Moved by 306 
Commissioner Fischer, Seconded by Commissioner Serna. 307 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 308 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 309 
Chair Proctor. 310 
   311 
10. Board of Finance – Lincoln County Treasurer, Sherrie Huddleston  312 
 313 
Treasurer Huddleston presented the Board of Finance and explained the total cash held by the 314 
treasurer, showing where the dollars were held in various financial institutions. She stated with 315 
those funds the total treasurer’s cash was $54,497,846.60. Treasurer Huddleston explained the 316 
investments the County had were comprised of 52.56% Operational interest-bearing accounts 317 
(rate 2.67%), 29.64% Money Market accounts (avg rate 3.84%), 11.96% Invested CD’s& LGIP 318 
accounts (avg rate 4.97%), 5.6% Debt Service Accts held with NMFA (avg rate 4.0%), and less 319 
than 1% non-interest-bearing accounts.  320 
 321 
Treasurer Huddleston stated the property tax collections were going well for the 2023 Tax year. 322 
She stated as of December 31, 2023, the Treasurer’s Office had collected $25,552,862.53, which 323 
was 66.09% of the $38,663,892.80 billed, leaving a balance of $12,111,030.27.   324 
 325 
11. Finance 326 
 a. Approval of Budget Adjustment FY 23/24 by Resolution 2024-36 327 
 328 
Chair Proctor questioned the budget adjustment as the columns didn’t add correctly. Treasurer 329 
Huddleston explained there was a problem with the formula which didn’t carry over. She stated 330 
they would correct it.  331 
 332 
Motion: Adopt Resolution 2024-36 as amended, Action: Adopt, Moved by Commissioner 333 
Fischer, Seconded by Commissioner Pfeffer. 334 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 335 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 336 
Chair Proctor. 337 
 338 
SEE EXHIBIT C: Copy of Resolution 2024-36 is attached hereto in reference thereto made a part 339 
hereof.   340 
 341 
 b. Approval of the 2022-2023 Rentalscape/Deckard Technologies invoice (billed on 342 

a bi-annual basis) will be canceled for 2024 year by February 5th, 2024 343 
 344 
Attorney Morel explained there was a new company, and the old contract would be terminated by 345 
February 5, 2024. 346 
 347 
Motion: Approve the termination of the Rentalscape/Deckard Technologies contract effective 348 
February 5, 2024, and approve the payment of the current invoice due using Lodgers Tax funding, 349 
Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner Fischer, Seconded by Commissioner Pfeffer. 350 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 351 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 352 
Chair Proctor. 353 



 

Page 8 of 18 
 

    354 
12. Discussion and Approval of Elected Officials Salary Increase Resolution  355 
 356 
Chair Proctor questioned the 6% raise which was approved for the most recently elected officials; 357 
however, it did not affect the continuing elected officials. Attorney Morel explained the 358 
Commissioners could not vote themselves a raise so it would be effective for newly elected 359 
officials coming in and they needed to at least approve the 6% which was approved last time.  360 
 361 
Commissioner Fischer questioned the Assessor’s pay as it was higher than the maximum allowed 362 
by Statute. Attorney Morel explained it showed the additional pay for the 4 certificates. 363 
Commissioner Fischer was concerned the position would be paid more than the other elected 364 
officials, including the County Sheriff.  365 
 366 
Treasurer Huddleston requested the Commission move to the maximum allowable. 367 
Commissioner Pfeffer felt the maximum was still a modest amount and would help to attract 368 
individuals to run for the elected offices.  369 
 370 
Motion: Approve raising all the Elected positions to the maximum rate per State Statute for 371 
Commissioner District 1, Commissioner District 3, County Assessor, Probate Judge, and the 372 
Sheriff, effective January 1, 2025, Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner Serna, Seconded 373 
by Commissioner Fischer. 374 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 375 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 376 
Chair Proctor. 377 
 378 
13. Forest, Land & Natural Resources Matters: 379 

a. Smokey Bear Ranger District 380 
 381 
Jennifer Thomas, Lincoln National Forest, stated they had a new forest supervisor, Jason 382 
Freeman, who was expected to start by the end of January or middle of February. She stated 383 
they opened the Three Rivers Campground on January 1, 2024. Ms. Thomas explained they were 384 
working on the Fiscal Year 2025 budget and were finalizing plans for the Cedar Creek fitness trail 385 
area to expand the parking lot and put in restroom facilities. 386 
 387 

b. Lincoln County / NMSU Extension Services 388 
 389 
Melanie Gutierrez, Lincoln County Extension Service, provided an update on the many 390 
happenings in the office. She stated she attended the livestock show in Phoenix. She explained 391 
the office staff attended a professional development in Las Cruces. Ms. Gutierrez stated her office 392 
held a record book ceremony and installation of the new County Officers, who then put on mini 393 
workshops. She explained she would be taking five kids to the Senior Leadership Retreat in Las 394 
Cruces. Ms. Gutierrez stated they would also have a Maple tree tapping workshop at two rivers 395 
the following weekend.  396 
 397 

c. South Central Mountain RC & D 398 
 399 
Robert Barber, RC&D, explained they completed phase one of the McBride EWP. He stated they 400 
were currently awaiting approval of grant applications for the community wildfire defense grant. 401 
 402 

d. Upper Hondo Soil & Water Conservation District 403 
 404 



 

Page 9 of 18 
 

Robert Barber, Upper Hondo, explained they would be starting up the weed program again and 405 
pre-emergence activities which would include fire departments in outlying areas this year. 406 
 407 

e. Land and Natural Resources Advisory Committee-LANRAC 408 
 409 
Robert Barber, LANRAC, explained the land and water use plans were being put together. He 410 
stated there was a LANRAC Ordinance and Resolution and they would like to draft a new 411 
Resolution to combine the responsibilities for both.   412 
 413 
16. Lincoln County Detention Center  414 
 a. Update –Ross Castleton, Warden 415 
 416 
Warden Castleton provided a monthly update and statistics from the Detention Center over the 417 
previous month. He stated they had hired a health services administrator. Warden Castleton 418 
explained they passed the annual fire inspection and only had a couple minor changes needed. 419 
He stated the accreditation project was moving along and the first audit would be March 27, 2024.  420 
 421 
 b. Request for Proposal – Plumbing 422 
 423 
Warden Castleton requested an RFP for plumbing issues. He stated the pipes below the building 424 
were subpar and would need to be redone, however they would need to go through the cement. 425 
He explained they would like to redo the pipes under the kitchen and run around the outside of 426 
the building instead of under the building. Commissioner Fischer questioned if Wilson & Co. could 427 
assist with the project. Commissioner Pfeffer requested they take care of the current issues and 428 
get some assistance with determining the long-term solutions. 429 
 430 
Motion: Engage Wilson & Co or an appropriate engineering firm to scope the work and make 431 
recommendations for near term and long-term solutions to the plumbing problems, Action: 432 
Approve, Moved by Commissioner Fischer, Seconded by Commissioner Serna. 433 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 434 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 435 
Chair Proctor. 436 
 437 
17. Lincoln County Medical Center Update-Todd Oberheu, Hospital Chief Executive  438 
 439 
Mr. Oberheu provided an update on the EMS mill levy funding and stated they did not receive the 440 
grant funding they had anticipated. He reassured the Commissioners they planned to maintain 441 
the stations as they were, regardless of the lack of grant funding. Mr. Oberheu stated Angie 442 
Lincoln would be a new Nurse Practitioner in Capitan and would start seeing patients within a 443 
week. Mr. Oberheu explained the Physician office building was under construction, however they 444 
were waiting on the countertops to complete the project. He stated they would also start meeting 445 
with an architect on the redesign of the OB/GYN clinic.  446 
 447 
18. Approval of Contracts for Voting System Technicians  448 
 a. Paul Baca 449 

 450 
b. Mario Zamora Jr  451 

 452 
 c. Bonifacio Zamora 453 
 454 



 

Page 10 of 18 
 

Clerk Hemphill stated the Voting System Technician contracts were renewed every two years. 455 
She explained she made a change to the pay structure to better align with their duties and 456 
hopefully give them a slight raise. Commissioner Serna questioned if they were paid out of the 457 
recording fees fund. Clerk Hemphill explained they were paid out of the Elections budget and their 458 
pay was included in the reimbursement from the Secretary of State’s office to cover election costs. 459 
 460 
Motion: Approve the Voting System Technician contracts for Paul Baca, Mario Zamora Jr. and 461 
Bonifacio Zamora as presented, Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner Serna, Seconded 462 
by Commissioner Pfeffer. 463 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 464 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 465 
Chair Proctor. 466 
  467 
19. Consideration and Approval to Purchase Mobile Data Computers for the Lincoln 468 

County Sheriff’s Office – Sheriff, Michael Wood and Lieutenant, Kirk Wilson  469 
 470 
Lieutenant Wilson provided an update on the Mobile Data Computers. Commissioner Pfeffer 471 
questioned the cell coverage and if the data could be entered when there was no connection, 472 
however it be updated later when it was reconnected to a network. Lieutenant Wilson explained 473 
it would need to have cellular connectivity for the reporting to work. Commissioner Serna 474 
questioned why the units were not included when there was a new vehicle purchase. Lieutenant 475 
Wilson stated this would be a startup and then the units could be included in future vehicles.  476 
 477 
Commissioner Serna stated she would like to use the funds from ARPA. Billie Jo Guevara, finance 478 
director, stated there was over $1,000,000 unencumbered in ARPA funds. Commissioner Serna 479 
questioned the Sheriff in the ranking of his requests. Sheriff Wood stated the presentation was 480 
supposed to be a presentation only and not an action item at the present time. He explained they 481 
would be bringing it back at a future date for approval as it was very necessary and would be the 482 
biggest proposal they would be making around budget time.  483 
 484 
Commissioner Pfeffer recommended the Lobbyist be involved. Commissioner Serna requested 485 
they come back to the Commission with their ICIP recommendations ranked accordingly.   486 
 487 
20. Manager’s Report 488 

1) Security Updates – Courts (CEO Audrey Hukari) & Lincoln County 489 

A walkthrough was done on January 3rd with the Courts, County, White Sands 490 
Construction, and APIX (security) and new quotes will be presented at the February 491 
(phase I) and March (phase II) meetings from White Sands.  492 
 493 

2) Lodger’s Tax Software 494 
 495 
Canceling RentalScape and moving forward with Granicus. Phase I will be completed by 496 
the end of January with OpenForms.  497 
 498 

3) LATCF Funding 499 
a. Tyler Munis 500 

i. Tyler Technologies will be working with the County Manager and County 501 
Clerk to set up a meeting to discuss how Tyler can coordinate with 502 
Catalyst.  503 



 

Page 11 of 18 
 

ii. Tyler Tech will be setting up a meeting with Granicus (Lodger’s Tax) to 504 
determine how to fluidly transition data between Granicus and Tyler 505 
(between the Lodger’s Tax and Assessor’s etc.).  506 

iii. Tyler Tech will be coming out to Lincoln County on February 19th to meet 507 
with each department and talk with staff. Tyler will also present a brief 508 
demonstration to the Commission on February 20th.  509 
 510 

4) Reorganization of County Departments  511 
 512 
Will be presented next meeting. 513 
 514 

5) Fire Chief Meeting 515 
 516 
A meeting is being scheduled between Arron (OES), the Fire Chiefs, and County 517 
Manager on further discussion on ISO scores and working together on grant writing for 518 
projects such as hydrants, water storage, paid fire, and other initiatives we can do to 519 
assist with the insurance ratings. Meeting to be scheduled early February. 520 

 521 
6) Indigent Health Program – Opioid Treatment 522 

We finally got some estimated prices for opioid addiction and recovery treatment in the 523 
area. Scott and I will work on an ordinance update to include these prices to work with 524 
Sierra Blanca Family Medicine. The draft will be presented to Alan and SBFM prior to 525 
coming to the Board. (February meeting).  526 
 527 

7) Director’s Reports 528 
 529 
Brianna Ventura, HR, stated there were vacancies in the Sheriff’s and Road departments as well 530 
as a part time cook at the Corona Senior Center. She explained the County Manager conducted 531 
6 interviews for the Project Manager position. 532 
 533 
21. Lincoln County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – 2024 534 

a. Presentation by the SWCA Environmental Consultants and the Lincoln County 535 
Office of Emergency Services 536 

  537 
Brian Samson, LCOES, reviewed the final version of the Fire Mitigation plan from FEMA. 538 
Commissioner Serna would like to see a more proactive approach and would like to have the plan 539 
be used Countywide. Commissioner Fischer questioned the error messages within the document. 540 
Mr. Samson explained it was a computer processing error and they would make sure the 541 
bookmarks showed correctly. 542 
 543 

b. Approval of Lincoln County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan by 544 
Resolution No. 2024-39 545 

  546 
Motion: Adopt Resolution 2024-39 with proper edits to the draft document to clear up the 547 
processing errors, Action: Adopt, Moved by Commissioner Fischer, Seconded by 548 
Commissioner Pfeffer. 549 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 550 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 551 
Chair Proctor. 552 



 

Page 12 of 18 
 

SEE EXHIBIT D: Copy of Resolution 2024-39 is attached hereto in reference thereto made a part 553 
hereof.  554 
 555 
22. Road Department 556 

a. Approval of Title VI Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Transition Plan by 557 
Resolution No. 2024-38 558 

  559 
Jeff Honeycutt, Road Superintendent, explained it was a boilerplate document from the State filled 560 
with information for the County. He explained he listed himself as the ADA coordinator, however 561 
that could be changed to whomever the Commissioners preferred.  562 
 563 
Motion: Adopt Resolution 2024-38 with the change in the ADA coordinator to Makayla Zonfrilli, 564 
County Manager, Action: Adopt, Moved by Commissioner Serna, Seconded by Commissioner 565 
Fischer. 566 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 567 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 568 
Chair Proctor. 569 
 570 
SEE EXHIBIT E: Copy of Resolution 2024-38 is attached hereto in reference thereto made a part 571 
hereof. 572 
 b. Update from Wilson & Co. Fairgrounds and Water Trust Board 573 
  574 
Eric Hamilton, Wilson & Co. Project Manager, spoke about the Magado Creek bridge and the 575 
funding application which was submitted through the Water Trust Board. He explained they 576 
received approval which moved them into phase II, so they would be working with County staff to 577 
submit the next part of the application to the Water Trust Board. Mr. Hamilton stated they expected 578 
to receive an award notification by the end of May 2024. He explained it was for a grant and loan 579 
amount of $1,190,000 with a match of $210,000.  580 
 581 
 c. Update from Renegade Regarding Lower Eagle Creek 582 
 583 
Michael Stevenson, Renegade Construction, provided an update on the Fairgrounds 584 
construction. He stated they would present flagpoles to the Cowbells for approval.   585 
 586 
23. Lincoln County Planning Department 587 

a. Approval to File Solid Waste Liens: 588 
1. Irene Howcroft and Richard Kessell (#5881)- $419.62 589 
2. Irene Howcroft and Richard Kessell (#2879)- $567.70 590 
3. Kenneth T. Dunlap & Carol A. Dunlap; Dunlap Revocable Living 591 

Trust- $567.70 592 
4. Sulema Marmolejo-$567.70 593 
5. Effie Popejoy- $567.70 594 
6. Jessica Lynne Freeman- $567.70 595 
7. David J. Hall and Alice Warder- $567.70 596 
8. The Anthony F. Spolidoro 1999 Living Trust- $567.70 597 
9. Luke Austin Griggs- $567.70 598 
10. Courtney Tate and Bill Pippin- $540.78 599 

 600 
Scott Annala, Planning Department, requested to remove #5 from the list.  601 
 602 



 

Page 13 of 18 
 

Motion: Approve filing solid waste liens as presented, excluding #5, Action: Approve, Moved by 603 
Commissioner Fischer, Seconded by Commissioner Serna. 604 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 605 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 606 
Chair Proctor. 607 
 608 
 b. Approval of the Lodgers’ Tax Requests  609 
  1. Event: World Art Day Carrizozo 2024 - Concert 610 
   Date of Event(s): April 13, 2024 611 
   Requester:  Carrizozo Music Inc. 612 
   Amount Requested: $7,500.00 613 
 614 
  2. Event: Capitan Mountain 34 Hour 615 
   Date of Event(s): April 19-20, 2024 616 
   Requester:  Wanderlust Running/Yeti Trail Runners 617 
   Amount Requested: $5,000.00 618 
 619 
Commissioner Serna questioned the lack of detail and lack of forms included with the packet. 620 
Commissioner Fischer requested the lodgers tax requests include the additional form they 621 
approved in prior meetings so they have the additional information needed.  622 
 623 
Motion: Approve the Lodgers’ Tax requests as presented, Action: Approve, Moved by 624 
Commissioner Fischer, Seconded by Commissioner Serna. 625 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 626 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 627 
Chair Proctor. 628 
    629 
24. Discussion and update on COG Grants - Dora Batista, Council of Governments 630 

(COG) 631 
 632 
Dora Batista was unavailable so this item will be brought back at a later date. 633 
 634 
26. Authorization to Schedule Public Hearing to Consider Other Outdated or New 635 

Lincoln County Ordinances 636 
 637 
Attorney Morel stated there was nothing to schedule at this time. 638 
 639 
27. Lincoln County Executive Session Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act: Discussion 640 

of all Threatened and/or Pending Litigation, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(7); 641 
and Discussion of the Purchase, Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property or Water 642 
Rights by the Public Body, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(8); and Limited 643 
Personnel Matters, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(2) 644 

 645 
Motion: To close the meeting for the purposes of an Executive Session Pursuant to the Open 646 
Meetings Act: Discussion of all Threatened and/or Pending Litigation, Section 10-15-1, 647 
Subparagraph (H)(7); and Discussion of the Purchase, Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property 648 
or Water Rights by the Public Body, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(8); and Limited Personnel 649 
Matters, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(2), Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner 650 
Fischer, Seconded by Commissioner Pfeffer. 651 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 652 



 

Page 14 of 18 
 

Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 653 
Chair Proctor. 654 
   655 
Chair Proctor recessed the Regular Meeting and convened the Closed Session at 12:16 PM.  656 
 657 
New or Updated Matters since last report * 658 
 659 
1. Board of County Commissioners of Lincoln County v. Roger Romero D-1226-CV-660 
2018-00055 Complaint for Foreclosure. Complaint was filed February 20, 2018. Defendant Roger 661 
Romero filed an Answer to the Complaint asserting a Counterclaim to be filed in the U.S. District 662 
Court on April 2, 2018.  A Judicial Inquiry Hearing took place September 4, 2018.  The case is 663 
still pending. 664 
 665 
2. Roger Romero v. State of New Mexico – D-1226-CV-2018-00113  (Underlying Cases 666 
are:  Board of County Commissioners of Lincoln County v. Roger Romero, D-1226-CV-667 
2018-00055, and State of N.M. v. Roger Romero M-30-MR-2016-00142)  A Petition for Writ of 668 
Habeas Corpus was filed requesting that the Judgment & Sentence entered by Judge Vega in 669 
Cause No. M-30-MR-2016-00142 be vacated and set aside. George Romero’s Answer to 670 
Complaint and Counterclaim was filed April 30, 2018 in Cause No. D-1226-CV-2018-00055. On 671 
February 26, 2019, an Order Setting Aside Conviction was entered by Judge Counts. 672 
 On March 25, 2019, a Notice of Appeal was filed with the N.M. Supreme Court, Case 673 
No. S-1-SC-37602  On January 8, 2021, the Supreme Court entered its Dispositional Order of 674 
Transfer transferring the case to the Court of Appeals for consideration and review. 675 
 676 
 On January 28, 2021, a Dispositional Order was entered transferring the case to the 677 
NM Court of Appeals for consideration and review.  Case No. A-1-CA-39446  On December 678 
8, 2022, the case was submitted to a 3 Judge Panel for a decision and, the case is still pending.     679 
 680 
3. Romero, et al. v. Stone, et al, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2019-00271 Request for 681 
Appointment of Guardian Ad Litem for Plaintiffs and Complaint for Violation of Civil and 682 
Constitutional Rights, Negligence, Prima Facie Tort and Wrongful Taking was filed on October 9, 683 
2019 along with a Jury Demand.  Lisa B. Riley is the presiding Judge.  The case is still pending. 684 
 685 
4. Brd. of County Commissioners of Lincoln County v. Amerisourcebergen Drug 686 
Corp., et. al – U.S. Dist. Court Case No. 2:19-cv-00462 – Complaint for Public Nuisance, 687 
Violations of Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO)… filed on May 20, 2019 688 
by Attorneys Robles, Rail & Anaya, P.C., et. al.  After receiving no oppositions to the transfer of 689 
the case, on June 17, 2019, the case was transferred to the Northern District of Ohio noting that 690 
as of December 5, 2017, 1,534 cases have been transferred to Ohio for further proceedings.  691 
Settlement has been reached with some of the Defendants and, Lincoln County has begun 692 
receiving payments from some of the settling Defendants.  The case is still pending. 693 
 694 
5. Greentree Solid Waste Authority v. Lincoln County, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2014-695 
00095 – Compromise and Settlement Agreement and Release executed on December 17, 2015. 696 
 697 
6. *Debra Wilcox v. Board of County Commissioners, Deputy Samuel C. Hanna, 698 
Caroline McCoy and Former Sheriff Robert Shepperd, Cause No. D-1215-CV-2021-00574  699 
Complaint for Damages was filed on the 2nd day of September, 2021 by Steven Sanders alleging 700 
personal injury resulting from an improper and grossly negligent investigation and for “malicious 701 
abuse of process”.  County Defendants were served on November 2, 2021.  On December 12, 702 
2023, County Defendants filed their Motion for Summary Judgment.  The case is still pending. 703 



 

Page 15 of 18 
 

 704 
7. Eby Revocable Trust AND William R. Moser v. Lincoln County Assessor, et al, 705 
Cause No. D-1226-CV-2021-0260 A Notice of Appeal of Decision of Tax Protest Board was filed 706 
on the 14th day of December, 2021 by Attorney Zach Cook.  On January 27, 2022, New Mexico 707 
Counties assigned Attorney Daniel Macke to represent Lincoln County.  The case is still pending.  708 

 709 
8. Crystal Buster v. Board of County Commissioners for Lincoln County, Correctional 710 
Solutions Group, LLC, et al, Cause No. 2:21-cv-01208 A Complaint for Recovery of Damages 711 
Caused by the Deprivation of Civil Rights with a Jury Demand was filed on the 12th day of 712 
December, 2021, by Coyte Law P.C., and the Law Offices of Matthew Vance, P.C.  The case is 713 
still pending.   714 
 715 
9. Lionel Burns v. Lincoln County Sheriff’s Department; Deputy Daniel Brawley; in 716 
their individual and official capacities, and Rhonda Burns, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2022-717 
00032  A Complaint for Damages was filed on the 4th day of March, 2022, by Clayton E. Crowley, 718 
Esq. and Joseph J. Gribble, Esq.   719 
 720 
 On April 22, 2022 the case was removed to the U.S. District Court for the District of 721 
New Mexico, Cause No. 1:22-cv-000304.  The case is still pending.  722 
 723 
10. Rosarita Brady, et al v. The Board of County Commissioners of the County of 724 
Lincoln, et al, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2022-00199 A Verified Complaint was filed by Attorneys 725 
Alexandra Bobbit and McKenzie St. Denis on the 27th day of September, 2022.  Lincoln County 726 
was served on the 22nd day of November, 2022.  Lincoln County Defendants filed their Motion to 727 
Dismiss in Lieu of an Answer to the Complaint on the 6th day of January, 2023.  A hearing on 728 
Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss took place on May 1, 2023.  A ruling on the Motion to Dismiss has 729 
yet to be entered. 730 
 731 
11. *Board of County Commissioners of Catron County, et al v. Secretary Robert E. 732 
Doucette, Jr., Cause No. D-725-CV-2023-00085.  A Complaint for Declaratory Judgment was 733 
filed on June 30, 2023 requesting that GSD’s Health Plan Assessments to Counties are 734 
unconstitutional and void.  Petitioners filed their Motion for Summary Judgment on November 3, 735 
2023 and Respondent has also filed a Counter-Motion for Summary Judgment.  A hearing on the 736 
Motion and Counter-Motion took place on December 18, 2023.  As of January 9, 2024, a ruling 737 
on the Motion for Summary Judgment had not been entered.  The case is still pending. 738 
 739 
12. *Brandon A. Gonzales and Kevin D. Trapp, on behalf of themselves and other 740 
similarly situated v. Lincoln County Board of County Commissioners, and Lincoln County 741 
Sheriff’s Office, Michael Wood, John Doe #1, John Doe #2, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2023-742 
00192  A Complaint alleging improper oaths of office given to the Sheriff, Sheriff’s Deputies, for 743 
false arrest, false imprisonment, and denial of due process as guaranteed by the NM Constitution 744 
was filed on July 28, 2023 by Attorneys Lauren Temple and Luke Ragsdale.  A hearing on 745 
Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss took place on December 15, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. As of January 9, 746 
2024, a ruling on the Motion to Dismiss had not been entered.  The case is still pending.   747 
 748 
13. KC Dorgan and Sara Cummins v. Deputy Levi Wrye, Yancy Darby, Matthew Cude 749 
and Lincoln County Sheriff’s Department, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2023-00147 A Third-Party 750 
Complaint was filed by Third-Party Plaintiffs, KC Dorgan and Sara Cummins, on July 25, 2023 by 751 
Attorneys Freda Howard McSwane, and Edward Dev Bunn, Jr. alleging negligent infliction of 752 
emotional distress, violation of due process rights, and loss of financial resources.  Lincoln County 753 
Defendants filed their Motion to Dismiss Third-Party Complaint on September 13, 2023.  A hearing 754 



 

Page 16 of 18 
 

on County Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss is scheduled to place on January 31, 2024 at 1:30 p.m.  755 
The case is still pending.   756 
 757 

Tort Claims Notices Received or Threatened 758 
2023 759 
 760 
 Ornelas, Mark – Tort Claim Notice received on January 4, 2023, alleging injuries 761 
sustained on October 11, 2022, as a result of an automobile accident / rollover of the Detention 762 
Center Transport Van owned by Lincoln County while being transported from Eddy County 763 
Detention Center to Lincoln County Detention Center. 764 
 765 
 Booth, Marcus – Tort Claim Notice received January 26, 2023, alleging injuries sustained 766 
by Claimants head due to the actions by staff of the Lincoln County Detention Center and staff’s 767 
refusal to take Claimant for medical treatment. 768 
 769 
 Ramos, Heber – Tort Claim Notice received on February 17, 2023, alleging Civil Rights 770 
Violations and injuries sustained while Mr. Ramos was incarcerated at the Lincoln County 771 
Detention Center. 772 
 773 
 Smoley, Cinthia – Tort Claim Notice received February 24, 2023, [Claimant also sent the 774 
Tort Claim directly to New Mexico Counties Claims Department] alleging that beginning on 775 
November 28, 2022, she was subjected to a conspiracy of constitutional deprivations when she 776 
was unlawfully removed from her home at 105 Bluebird Lane, Ruidoso, NM.  Her claims include 777 
that: she sustained injuries while being detained, she was abused during her incarceration at the 778 
Lincoln County Detention Center, she was assigned a Public Defender without her consent, and 779 
that all of her pets were immediately euthanized by the Lincoln County Humane Society the day 780 
of her arrest. Claimant has named the following agencies in her claim:  Twelfth Judicial District 781 
Court, Lincoln county Sheriff’s Office, Ruidoso Police Department, New Mexico State Police, 782 
Ruidoso Animal Control, Lincoln County Animal Control, Humane Society, Lincoln County 783 
Magistrate Court Judge, Katie Lund. 784 
 785 
 Smoley, Robert – Tort Claim Notice received February 24, 2023, [Claimant also sent the 786 
Tort Claim directly to New Mexico Counties Claims Department] alleging that beginning on 787 
November 28, 2022, he was subjected to a conspiracy of constitutional deprivations when he was 788 
unlawfully removed from his sister’s home at 105 Bluebird Lane, Ruidoso, NM where is resided.  789 
His claims include that he was abused during his incarceration at the Lincoln County Detention 790 
Center, he was assigned a Public Defender without his consent, and that all of his pets were 791 
immediately euthanized by the Lincoln County Humane Society the day of his arrest. Claimant 792 
has named the following agencies in his claim:  Twelfth Judicial District Court, Lincoln county 793 
Sheriff’s Office, Ruidoso Police Department, New Mexico State Police, Ruidoso Animal Control, 794 
Lincoln County Animal Control, Humane Society, Lincoln County Magistrate Court Judge, Katie 795 
Lund. 796 
 797 
 Provine, Allison – Tort Claim Notice received March 14, 2023, referencing the Lincoln 798 
County Sheriff’s Office stating:  “faulty tail light” 799 
 800 
 Mendoza, George – Tort Claim Notice received March 20, 2023, alleging that on or about 801 
December 10, 2022, Lincoln County Medical Center and/or its agents fell below the standard of 802 
care resulting in injuries and damages to Claimant. 803 
 804 



 

Page 17 of 18 
 

 Soden, Sue – Tort Claim Notice received March 31, 2023, alleging that on or about March 805 
1, 2022 and continuing thereafter to on or about April 12 and May 5, 2022, Lincoln County Medical 806 
Center and/ or its agents fell below the standard of care resulting injuries and damages to 807 
Claimant. 808 
 809 
 Vargas, Luis A. – Tort Claim Notice received June 7, 2023, alleging personal injuries 810 
sustained during a motor vehicle collision as a result of a large pothole.  Claimant alleges that the 811 
Village of Ruidoso, Lincoln County and/or the State of New Mexico may have an exposure for 812 
liability in connection with this loss.  813 
 814 
 Sambrano, Patrick – Tort Claim Notice and Intent to Sue received August 4, 2023, 815 
alleging violation of Claimant’s 5th and 6th Amendments of the U.S. Constitution, violations of 816 
Article II, Section 10, 13, 14, and 18 of the NM Constitution, false reporting, and indifference to 817 
the impact and consequences of Claimant’s arrest based on false pretenses, and detained for 72 818 
days before his arraignment. 819 
 820 
 Wall, Ronald Gordon – Tort Claim Notice received September 28, 2023 alleging that 821 
Lincoln County Medical Center, by and through its employees, acted under the standard of care 822 
resulting in Mr. Wall’s death on July 9, 2023. 823 
 824 
2022 825 
 Schwartz, Neil – Tort Claim Notice received on February 10, 2022 alleging malicious 826 
and/or tortious actions and/or omissions by the State of New Mexico, the Lincoln County Sheriff’s 827 
Department, the New Mexico State Police, and the Twelfth Judicial District Attorney’s Office 828 
resulting in damages to Claimant including, but not limited to, infliction of mental pain and 829 
suffering, injuries to Claimant’s reputation, and current and future loss of earnings. 830 
 831 
 Downs, Barbara – Tort Claim Notice received May 6, 2022 alleging improper road and/or 832 
waterline maintenance resulting in a vehicle collision due to the icy road at the intersection of 833 
Sudderth Drive and Paradise Canyon in Ruidoso, New Mexico.  A 2nd Tort Claim Notice was 834 
received on May 9, 2022 for a separate source with the same allegations as those set out in the 835 
May 6, 2022 notice. 836 
 837 
 McMinn, David – Tort Claim Notice received on July 6, 2022, alleging multiple, serious 838 
issues due to the use of excessive force by BIA law enforcement who may have been agents of 839 
or acting on behalf of the Village of Ruidoso, Ruidoso Police Department, Lincoln County, N.M. 840 
State Police and the State of New Mexico. 841 
 842 
 New Mexico Boys and Girls Ranches, Inc. and its Employee, Bridgman, Ted – Tort 843 
Claim Notice received on August 9, 2022, alleging violation of civil rights and tort claims act, 844 
including a demand to cease and desist and the return of promotional materials confiscated by 845 
County representatives at the Lincoln County Fair.  846 
 847 
 Estates of Wesley Clark and Linda Clark – Tort Claim Notice received on October 11, 848 
2022 alleging wrongful deaths as a result of the McBride Fire due in part to faulty siren warning 849 
systems. 850 
 851 
Chair Proctor adjourned the Closed Session and reconvened the Regular Meeting at 1:36 PM. 852 
 853 



 

Page 18 of 18 
 

Commissioner Fischer attested matters discussed in the closed meeting were limited to those 854 
specified in the motion for closure or in the notice of separate closed meeting and no action was 855 
taken. 856 
 857 
16. Lincoln County Detention Center- Continued 858 
 b. Request for Proposal – Plumbing 859 
 860 
Chair Proctor explained there was additional information which was received pertaining to the 861 
request for proposal.  862 
 863 
Motion: Approve the issuance of an RFP consistent with the scope of work already in the hands 864 
of the procurement officer, which was presented to the Commissioners, Action: Approve, Moved 865 
by Commissioner Pfeffer, Seconded by Commissioner Serna. 866 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 867 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 868 
Chair Proctor. 869 
    870 
28. Approval of Prior Year Invoices  871 
 1. Jarmie & Rogers, P.C. 872 

a. Invoice #1993 - $1,560.95 873 
  b. Invoice #2206 - $2,413.60 874 
  c. Invoice #2072 - $9,428.71 875 
  d. Invoice #2130 - $12,197.92 876 
   TOTAL AMOUNT - $25,601.18 877 
 878 
Motion: Approval to pay the prior year invoices to Jarmie & Rogers, PC in the amount of $20,000, 879 
Action: Approve, Moved by Commissioner Serna, Seconded by Commissioner Pfeffer. 880 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 881 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 882 
Chair Proctor. 883 
    884 
29. Signing of Official Documents 885 
 886 
30. Next meeting:   887 

a. February 20, 2024, Regular Commission Meeting 888 
 889 
31. Adjourn  890 
 891 
Motion: Adjourn, Action: Adjourn, Moved by Commissioner Serna, Seconded by 892 
Commissioner Pfeffer. 893 
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 894 
Yes: Commissioner Fischer, Commissioner Serna, Commissioner Pfeffer, Commissioner Crunk, 895 
Chair Proctor. 896 
   897 
There being no further business to come before the Board of County Commissioners, Chair 898 
Proctor adjourned the meeting at 1:39 PM. 899 
 900 
Respectfully submitted by, 901 
Shannan Hemphill 902 
Lincoln County Clerk 903 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 

 

SUBJECT: 

Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Payroll/Accounts Payable/Budget/ Expenditures 
b. Treasurer’s Financial Report for the Month ending January 31, 2024 
c. Approval or Disapproval of Safety Net Care Pool & Indigent Health Care Claims 
d. Approval or Disapproval of the 2024 Annual Certified County Maintained Mileage 

Report Due April 1, 2024 
e. Approval of Resolution 2024-44 Certification of Road Mileage (Annual) 
f. Approval of the HIDTA Agreement (MOU) Between Otero County, City of 

Alamogordo, Village of Ruidoso, 12th District Attorney, and the County of Lincoln 
Regarding the Continued Development, Implementation, and Operation of the 
White Mountain Drug Task Force, Funded and Staffed, and Operated by the 
Parties Herein. 



       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE and PAYROLL 
 
 
 

The following claims or bills on file with the office of the Lincoln County Manager were examined and 
approved as paid with checks hereof drawn upon the various County funds according to the check register 
covering the period from January 1, 2024 through January 31, 2024 in the amount of $2,462,382.24. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the above bills are hereby approved. 
 
ADOPTED, PASSED AND SIGNED the 20th of February, 2024. 
 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
LINCOLN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
 
 
                                      
Todd F. Proctor, Chairman     For/Against  Jon F. Crunk, Vice Chairman    For/Against 

 

 

                                      
Samantha J. Serna, Member     For/Against  Pierre S. Pfeffer, Member   For/Against 

 

 

                      
Mark Fischer, Member    For/Against 

   

        ATTEST: 

 

              

        Shannan Hemphill, County Clerk 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7c 

February 9, 2024 
 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: County Commissioners  

FROM: Scott Annala, Healthcare Assistance Program Manager 

SUBJECT: Safety Net Care Pool & Indigent Health Care Claims 

Purpose:               To obtain the approval from the IHC Board of Safety Net Care Pool Authorizations, and the 
Indigent Health Care (IHC) Payments.    

Discussion:   

Safety Net Care Pool Authorizations: This month our coordinator processed four (4) claims.  Three (3) are 
recommended for approval and one (1) is recommended for disapproval.  If approved, the total recommended 
authorization this month is $3,766.84.   

Indigent Health Care Claims: This month our coordinator did not receive any claims to process.  Enclosed is a 
year-to-date summary of claims processed.  Also enclosed is a summary of total claims approved and denied, 
for the month of February.   

Manager’s Analysis – For the last two years, the average Indigent Health Care monthly payments were $2,288 
and $509.81 respectively.  The FY 22-23 year-end total was $6,117.75.  To date, the total expenditure is 
$11,639.03 or an average of $1,454.88.   At this pace we will spend a total of $17,458.55, for the year on the 
indigent claim line item.   

Similarly, for the last two fiscal years, the total Commission-approved Safety Net Care Pool Claims were 
$49,213.39 and $42,943.06 respectively.  The FY 22-23 monthly average was $3,578.59.   To date, the total 
authorization is $55,205.76. 

Special Note –All claims in this report are from the current fiscal year. 

Recommendation:   Approve the claims as indicated for the Safety Net Care Pool report and the Indigent 
Health Care Program report.   

 

Approved:  __________________________ 

         Todd  Proctor 

  













 

Page 1 of 3 
 

LINCOLN COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

 

Department:  

Department Head/Elected Official/Employee:  

Date of Request:  

Date of Agenda: 

Will the Agenda Item require an RFP, quotes, formal bids, etc.? 

 If so which? 

Will the Agenda Item require signatures? 

Is this agenda item a public notice request?  

Are the supporting documents attached to this request? (If not, items may not be added to the 
Agenda):  

Agenda Items listed as it should appear on the Agenda cover sheet:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 3 

Brief Description of each Agenda Item: 

Requested motion for each Agenda Item: 



Page 3 of 3 

History, additional page space, or background information (as necessary) for each Agenda Item (use 
additional pages as needed):  







LINCOLN COUNTY MILEAGE MAP 2024

Legend
CountyRoad

<all other values>

SURFACE
 

ASPHALT

ASPHALT & GRAVEL

CHIP SEAL

CHIPSEALED

DIRT

GRAVEL

Township_and_Range

County_Boundary



RDNAME ALIAS COMM SURFACE Width Classifi Len_mile
18th St A009 CARRIZOZO CHIPSEALED 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.097378000
9h6 Rd B008 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 3.140627000
AERIE TRL NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.325981000
Airport St A007 CARRIZOZO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.115903000
Airport St A007 CARRIZOZO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.124526000
AIRPORT ST A007 CARRIZOZO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.738572000
Alamo Canyon Rd STATE HWY 395 TINNIE GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 9.369832000
Alpine Meadows Trl SUN VALLEY TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.070774000
Alpine Meadows Trl SUN VALLEY TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.255142000
Alpine Meadows Trl SUN VALLEY TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.103626000
Alpine Meadows Trl SUN VALLEY TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.171263000
Alpine Village Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.107863000
Alpine Village Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.274370000
Alpine Village Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.140124000
Alpine Village Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.191114000
Alpine Village Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.075065000
Alpine Village Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.136496000
Alpine Village Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.083994000
Alpine Village Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.422779000
Alta Vista Cir ALTO GRAVEL 21 COUNTY ROAD 0.054974000
Alta Vista Cir ALTO GRAVEL 21 COUNTY ROAD 0.451274000
Altamira Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.025346000
Altamira Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.580858000
Altamira Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.409613000
Altamira Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.068732000
Alto Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.100615000
Alto Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.196945000
Alto Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.062987000



Alto Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.264790000
Alto Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.126838000
Anaya Rd E025 TINNIE GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.118865000
Ancho Rd A036 ANCHO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.202195000
Ancho Rd A036 ANCHO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 8.215334000
Ancho Rd A036 ANCHO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 5.250372000
Angus Rd C026 ANGUS GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.300597000
Annie Oakley Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.042044000
Antelope Trl NOGAL GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.715958000
Antelope Trl NOGAL GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.728054000
Antelope Trl NOGAL GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.230681000
Antler Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.266426000
Antler Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.067401000
Antler Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.132063000
Antler Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.212399000
Antler Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.221359000
Antler Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.041788000
Antler Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.055586000
Apache Trl RUIDOSO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.216407000
Apache Trl RUIDOSO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.009436000
Apple Blossom Rd RUIDOSO DOWNS CHIP SEAL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.123633000
Arabela Rd E044 ARABELA DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 2.889392000
Aristeo Rd E009 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.199978000
ARRIBA DR RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.154440000
Arrowhead Rd RUIDOSO DOWNS GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.101027000
Aschoff Trl NORTH RD RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.370059000
Bache St ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.084982000
BADGER CT MESA DR ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.071736000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.057013000



Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.458356000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.132770000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.150003000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.050257000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.184239000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.419069000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.156923000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.039711000
Bancroft Rd CENTER DR CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.125553000
Barney Luck Trl SOUTH RD RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.235904000
Barney Luck Trl SOUTH RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.031802000
Barney Luck Trl SOUTH RD RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.070847000
Barney Luck Trl SOUTH RD RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.217860000
Base Rd C003/FS338 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.311839000
Basin St CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.784583000
BASIN ST CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.337142000
BASIN ST CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.474736000
Bent Tree Ct MASHIE CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.043766000
Berry Ct HOLLY CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.066088000
BIG BEAR PL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.068468000
Big Horn Ct ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.041669000
BIG PINES PL TALL PINES PL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.068052000
Big Sky Ln SIERRA DR - ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.191264000
Billy The Kid Ct N BILLY THE KID CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.033832000
Billy The Kid Ct S BILLY THE KID ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.039016000
Biscuit Hill Rd RUIDOSO DOWNS CHIP SEAL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.205253000
Biscuit Hill Rd E002 RUIDOSO DOWNS CHIP SEAL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.024092000
Biscuit Hill Rd E002 RUIDOSO DOWNS CHIP SEAL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.282698000
Black Hawk Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.099638000



BLACK HAWK RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.077205000
BLACK HORSE TRL C009 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.211235000
Blackfoot Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.132525000
Blackwater Draw Rd E039 ARABELA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 5.452950000
Blazing Star Trl PINON DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.085408000
Blazing Star Trl PINON DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.063697000
Blazing Star Trl PINON DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.067836000
Blazing Star Trl PINON DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.236689000
BLIND LN B030 PINE LODGE DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 2.316671000
Block Ranch Rd B003 CAPITAN DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.111256000
Blue Grouse Ln SPRUCE LN ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.158617000
Blue Ridge Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.175196000
Bluebelle Ln RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.258288000
Bluebelle Ln RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.052128000
Bluebonnet Ln RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.124283000
BLUEWATER SPRING RD E042 ARABELA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 1.332516000
Bluff Rd SCENIC DR RUIDOSO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.168786000
Bluff Rd SCENIC DR RUIDOSO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.011011000
Bobcat Trl BUCK DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.249806000
BOBSLED PL SIERRA BLANCA PL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.029733000
Bogle Rd B001 CAPITAN DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.286017000
Bogle Rd B001 CAPITAN DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.040937000
Bogle Rd B001 CAPITAN DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 10.393983000
BOGLE RD B001 CAPITAN DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 4.639965000
BOGLE RD B001 LON DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 2.819200000
BOGLE RD B001 CORONA DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 10.838011000
Boneyard Ct BOOTHILL CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.073178000
Bonita Canyon Rd A033 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 6.905596000
Bonita Park Rd ANGUS DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.020091000



Bonita Park Rd ANGUS DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.008112000
Bonita Park Rd ANGUS DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.171922000
Bonito Lake Rd NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.056790000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL ASPHALT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.078551000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL ASPHALT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 1.290167000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL ASPHALT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.858195000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL ASPHALT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.781129000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL ASPHALT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.256952000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL ASPHALT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 1.430562000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL ASPHALT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.461514000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.207673000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.920629000
Bonito Lake Rd FS107 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 1.090394000
Bonito Lous Ln NOGAL GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.019745000
Bonito Lous Ln NOGAL GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.040509000
Bonito Lous Ln NOGAL GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.026434000
Boothill Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.110894000
Boothman Cir RUIDOSO GRAVEL 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.081045000
Border Hill Rd E034 BORDER HILL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 1.570628000
Border Hill Rd E034 BORDER HILL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 6.966534000
Border Hill Rd E034 BORDER HILL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.454798000
Border Hill Rd E034 BORDER HILL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 3.412738000
Bramble Ln CENTER ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.023198000
Bramble Ln CENTER ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.038675000
Bramble Ln CENTER ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.026873000
Brazel Ranch Rd C024 CAPITAN DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.486218000
Brentwood Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.195976000
Brentwood Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.096255000
Brentwood Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.211197000



Brentwood Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.094160000
Bridle Dr RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.095640000
Bridle Dr RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.152943000
Broadmoor Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.256017000
Broadmoor Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.115258000
Broadmoor Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.024176000
Broadmoor Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.157157000
Broadmoor Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.076478000
Broken Arrow Trl RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.149041000
Broken Arrow Trl RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.046029000
BROKEN BACK RD A012 CARRIZOZO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 7.912722000
Buckboard Trl ALPINE/CORONADO NOGAL DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.284059000
Buena Vista Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.159210000
Buena Vista Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.092295000
Buena Vista Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.172598000
Buena Vista Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.181995000
Buena Vista Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.114715000
Buffalo Bill Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.068901000
Buggy Ln PINE RIDGE RD NOGAL GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.274467000
Bull Elk Ct FAWN CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.144128000
Bullion Loop PAT GARRET WHITE OAKS DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 1.276457000
BUSHY TAIL RD SQUIRREL AVE ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.129993000
BUTCH CASSIDY CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.138824000
C M Bryan Trl A021 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.124760000
C M Bryan Trl A021 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.352115000
Calamity Jane Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.070799000
Calexico Way ALTO GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.075586000
Calle El Ojito E017 HONDO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.640584000
Calle El Ojito E015 HONDO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.240693000



Capitan Gap Rd C001 CAPITAN DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.471423000
Capitan Gap Rd C001 CAPITAN DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 4.959628000
Caprock Ct ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.320669000
CARLEEN PL RUIDOSO ASPHALT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.040174000
Cattle Drive Ct CHISHOLM CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.040760000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT & 

GR
20 COUNTY ROAD 0.140089000

Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT & 
GR

20 COUNTY ROAD 0.028844000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT & 

GR
20 COUNTY ROAD 0.042031000

Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT & 
GR

20 COUNTY ROAD 0.224394000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT & 

GR
20 COUNTY ROAD 0.108988000

Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.356710000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.148173000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.064639000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.198742000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.192635000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.077605000
Cedar Creek Dr D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.045762000
CEDAR CREEK DR D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.068043000
CEDAR CREEK DR D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.067273000
CEDAR CREEK DR D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.110719000
CEDAR CREEK DR D007 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.325635000
Cedar Crest Rd NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.014932000
Chama Canyon ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.915342000
Champ Hill Trl C023 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.367308000
Champ Hill Trl C023 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.019727000
Chavez Canyon Rd E023 HONDO DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 2.524339000
Cherry Creek Rd CO18 NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.832025000
Chickadee Ct STABLE CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.145404000
CHISHOLM TRL ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.444193000



Cholla Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.139192000
Chula Vista Pl ALTO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.190489000
Cimarron Trl ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.357600000
Cinch Ct WHITE TAIL CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.083020000
Coe Canyon Rd EOO6 GLENCOE GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.233621000
Coe Canyon Rd E006 GLENCOE GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.034281000
Coe Canyon Rd FS443 GLENCOE DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 2.980897000
Coe Canyon Rd FS443 RUIDOSO DOWNS DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.923206000
Coe Canyon Rd FS443 GLENCOE DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 1.211371000
Coggins Ct ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.120414000
Comanche Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.081683000
Comrey Loop WEST LOOP CARRIZOZO DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.967942000
Cone Flower Ct MEADOWS CT ALTO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.035394000
Conestoga Ln PONDEROSA DR NOGAL DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.092638000
Connection Way PINE DR ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.037376000
Connection Way PINE DR ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.036740000
Conor Ct CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.478182000
Cora Dutton Rd C017/FS488 CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY/FOREST 0.504149000
Cora Dutton Rd C017/FS488 CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY/FOREST 1.379957000
Cora Dutton Rd C017/FS488 CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 22 COUNTY/FOREST 1.805633000
Corral St RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.132675000
Corvo Crista PICACHO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.073691000
Corvo Crista PICACHO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.212251000
Corvo Crista PICACHO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.556857000
Cottage Grove Ln CEDAR ALTO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.200641000
Cougar Ln HIGH MESA LN ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.085754000
Cougar Mountain Rd A028 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 1.062401000
County Line Rd A030 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.079043000
County Line Rd A030 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.196603000



County Line Rd A030 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.547455000
COUNTY LINE RD A030 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.932148000
COUNTY LINE RD A030 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.823353000
COUNTY LINE RD A030 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 5.722691000
Cowboy Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.044180000
COYOTE MESA TRL LUPUS LN ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.251927000
CRAZY HORSE CIR ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.322458000
CROSS DR RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.047451000
Crown Ridge Rd SIERRA BLANCA DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.139477000
Crown Ridge Rd SIERRA BLANCA DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.753830000
Custers Last Stand Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.060150000
Custers Last Stand Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.124496000
Custers Last Stand Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.080894000
Custers Last Stand Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.016782000
DARK CANYON RD A034 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 1.073115000
Dawson Rd CANYON CAPITAN CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.163779000
Dawson Rd SCHOOL ST CAPITAN CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.201084000
Dawson Rd RAY RD CAPITAN CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.630708000
Dawson Rd SCHOOL ST CAPITAN CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.131661000
Dawson Rd CANYON CAPITAN CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.197728000
Dawson Rd SCHOOL ST CAPITAN CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.077631000
Dawson Rd CANYON CAPITAN CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.568151000
Dawson Rd SCHOOL ST CAPITAN CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.144691000
Dead Horse Ln CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.389242000
Dead Mans Canyon Rd E038 TINNIE DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 1.041738000
Dean Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.364489000
Dean Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.485416000
Dean Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.530592000
Dean Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.366700000



DEBORD DR RUIDOSO ASPHALT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.053418000
DEBORD DR RUIDOSO ASPHALT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.249247000
DEBORD DR RUIDOSO GRAVEL 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.064332000
DEBORD DR RUIDOSO ASPHALT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.223267000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.063587000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.074681000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.101425000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.098576000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.026003000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.082143000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.059760000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.303022000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.110174000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.077113000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.078459000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.043080000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.062450000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.103465000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.083941000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.226925000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.073667000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.219563000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.035572000
Deer Park Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.049694000
Deer Valley Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.086688000
Deer Valley Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.168471000
Deer Valley Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.298731000
Deer Valley Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.368803000
Deer Valley Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.094178000



Deer Valley Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.057596000
Del Monte Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.260410000
Del Monte Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.247770000
Del Monte Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.154098000
Del Monte Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.141454000
Delana Dr RUIDOSO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.209907000
Denver City Dr RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.096802000
Denver City Dr RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.049786000
Destiny Way ANGUS ST ANGUS GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.045560000
Devils Canyon Rd E007 FORT STANTON DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.240129000
Devils Canyon Rd E007 FORT STANTON DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.392227000
Devils Canyon Rd E007 FORT STANTON DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.183034000
DEVILS CANYON RD E007 FORT STANTON DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.101359000
DEVILS CANYON RD E007 GLENCOE DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 4.038181000
Doc Holiday Ct N DOC HOLIDAY CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.049924000
Doc Holiday Ct S DOC HOLIDAY CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.064927000
Doe Ct ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.124754000
Dogie Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.081775000
Don Aurelio E020 HONDO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.201075000
Don Pablo Ln E022 HONDO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.119285000
Donkey Ct BURRO TRL ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.140068000
Dove Ct RAVEN CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.107392000
Draper Rd E036 BORDER HILL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 7.033805000
Dray Ct OAK DR NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.114614000
Drover Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.033831000
DUSTY ROSE CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.310961000
DUSTY ROSE CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.193487000
DUSTY ROSE CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.248659000
DUSTY ROSE CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.208766000



DUSTY ROSE RAY RD CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.137986000
E Ave A045 CARRIZOZO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.244563000
Eagle Creek Canyon Rd D006 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.043458000
Eagle Creek Canyon Rd D006 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.223468000
Eagle Creek Canyon Rd D006 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.410504000
Eagle Creek Canyon Rd D006 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.396995000
Eagle Creek Canyon Rd D006 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.832637000
Eagle Creek Canyon Rd D006 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.080139000
Eagle Creek Canyon Rd D006 RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.202729000
Eagle Creek Ct RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.069969000
EAGLE CREST TRL NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.578854000
EAGLE CREST TRL NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.070148000
Eagle Ridge Rd SUNRISE DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.353590000
Eagle Ridge Rd SUNRISE DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.077114000
Eagle Ridge Rd SUNRISE DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.417255000
Eagle Ridge Rd SUNRISE DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.096665000
Eagle Ridge Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.157713000
EASTERN RD LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 5.324353000
Easy St A025 CORONA DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.748877000
Edelweiss Loop ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.308861000
Edward Ave RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.089614000
Edward Ave RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.069384000
El Camino Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.131105000
El Camino Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.166806000
El Camino Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.296030000
El Centro Dr ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.070018000
El Centro Dr ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.107186000
El Centro Dr ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.092143000
El Centro Dr ALTO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.086128000



El Centro Dr ALTO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.105950000
El Centro Dr ALTO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.217506000
El Corte E027 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.202453000
El Paisano Rd RAY RD CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.681729000
El Vado Rd NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.116192000
El Vado Rd NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.127193000
El Vado Rd NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.127006000
El Valle Loop E008 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.330395000
El Valle Loop E008 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.240676000
El Valle Loop E008 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.182986000
Elda Rd A032 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 3.185888000
Elda Rd A032 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.930904000
Elda Rd A032 CORONA DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.536382000
Elda Rd A032 CORONA DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 2.000898000
Elda Rd A032 CORONA DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 2.196946000
Elda Rd A032 CORONA DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 2.576772000
Elda Rd A032 CORONA DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.964806000
Elda Rd A032 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.057715000
Elda Rd A032 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 2.290523000
ELK HOLLOW ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.169130000
ELK HORN RD ASPEN/MOGUL RD ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.124674000
ELK HORN RD ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.099477000
Elk Trl NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.729952000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.069893000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.107293000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.018460000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.075809000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.073928000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.414721000



Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.041773000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.040013000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.113422000
Enchanted Forest Loop ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.217511000
Encino Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.103104000
Erramouspe Rd COUNTY ROAD A020 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 8.804345000
Erramouspe Rd COUNTY ROAD A020 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.363358000
Escondida Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.049830000
Escondida Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.122883000
Escondida Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.085632000
Este Dr PASTO VERDE NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.046627000
Este Dr NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.505472000
Este Dr PASTO VERDE NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.068006000
Fawn Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.211205000
Fawn Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.075719000
FELIZ MONTANA HONDO GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.582658000
Ferret Ct ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.050444000
FFA RD A006 CARRIZOZO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.230653000
FIRE RD ALTO ASPHALT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.086553000
Flicker Ct JUNIPER CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.154221000
Flintlock Trl MUSKET DR RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.045834000
Flintlock Trl MUSKET DR RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.020083000
Flute Player Way CLUB CIRCLE DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.151628000
Flute Player Way LAKE SHORE CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.087046000
FORT LONE TREE RD C006 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.621574000
FORT LONE TREE RD C006 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 1.375331000
FORT LONE TREE RD C006 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 1.574959000
FORT LONE TREE RD C006 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD/FO 1.459037000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.514306000



Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.271525000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.090082000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.444129000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.040213000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.290897000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.137757000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.290809000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.095075000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.068811000
Fort Stanton Rd D002 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.035757000
Fox Hollow Ct ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.050449000
Fred Canyon Way NOGAL GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.144322000
French Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.079365000
French Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.032403000
French Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.090854000
French Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.268257000
French Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.194760000
Fuller Rd A042 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.481769000
Gallacher Rd A012 CARRIZOZO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 5.927296000
Gallinas Rd A019 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 6.615569000
Gallinas Rd A019 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.315339000
Gallinas Rd A019 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 2.244286000
Gallinas Rd A019/FS161 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY/FOREST 0.643541000
Gallinas Rd A019 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY/FOREST 0.284361000
Gallinas Rd A019 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY/FOREST 0.031358000
Gallinas Rd A019/FS161 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY/FOREST 6.026302000
Gallinas Station Rd A018 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.280627000
Gas Plant Rd A035 CORONA GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 2.122781000
Gaucho Ct CARRIZO CIR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.074408000



Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.193928000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.065648000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.122118000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.119139000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.074353000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.094178000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.286550000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.178874000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.144181000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.318380000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.086273000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.238116000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.118378000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.058819000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.268468000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.353029000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.341145000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.071429000
Gavilan Canyon Rd RUIDOSO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.220305000
Gavilan Hills Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.033131000
Gavilan Hills Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.204325000
Gavilan Hills Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.204609000
GAVILAN HILLS RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.405783000
Gavilan Rd COUNTY ROAD D005 RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.079526000
Gavilan Rd COUNTY ROAD D005 RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.057891000
Gavilan Rd COUNTY ROAD D005 RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.102664000
Gavilan Rd COUNTY ROAD D005 RUIDOSO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.209497000
Goodnight Loving Trl ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.291309000
Goodnight Loving Trl ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.135470000



GRADER RD B030 PINE LODGE DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 1.530688000
GRAND AVE A002 OSCURO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 5.152470000
Grande Vista Ranch Rd A036 CAPITAN DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 3.739807000
Grande Vista Ranch Rd A039 FORMERLY JACKS 

PEAK LOOP
WHITE OAKS DIRT 0 COUNTY ROAD 1.929929000

Grande Vista Ranch Rd A039 FORMERLY JACKS 
PEAK LOOP

CAPITAN DIRT 0 COUNTY ROAD 1.999269000
Grapevine Ct MOUNTAIN VIEW CT ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.071974000
Gray Rd MOUNTAIN DR CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.081182000
Gray Rd MOUNTAIN DR CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.538444000
Gray Rd MOUNTAIN DR CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.058008000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.284781000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.840418000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.366351000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.701275000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.008767000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.698952000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY/FOREST 1.757692000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY/FOREST 0.240560000
Great House Rd A022 CORONA DIRT 24 COUNTY/FOREST 3.322146000
Greenbrier Ct ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.161089000
GUMM BROTHERS RD A043 WHITE OAKS DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.197793000
Gunsmoke Ct MUSTANG CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.045428000
Hackamore Ct WATSON PL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.077850000
Hackberry Rd B014 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 8.827085000
Hailstorm Rd JUNIPER RD CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.250814000
Hailstorm Rd CAPITAN GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.258545000
Hale Lake Rd E001 RUIDOSO DOWNS DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.032264000
Hale Lake Rd E001 RUIDOSO DOWNS DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.005967000
Hale Lake Rd E001 RUIDOSO DOWNS DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.330728000
Hale Lake Rd E001 RUIDOSO DOWNS DIRT 24 COUNTY/FOREST 0.098790000



Hale Lake Rd FS443 RUIDOSO DOWNS GRAVEL 18 COUNTY/FOREST 2.892929000
HALEY RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.131407000
Half Circle Dr RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.376766000
Hall Rd CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.534830000
Hall Rd CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.114984000
Hand Rd A031 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.606835000
Hand Rd A031 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.328653000
Hasperas Rd B010 LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 2.721374000
HASPERAS RD B010 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 13.046562000
HIDDEN VALLEY RD VAIL RD ALTO ASPHALT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.101219000
HIDDEN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.263144000
High Chaparral Pl RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.091008000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.096820000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.079171000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.064468000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.221080000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.069924000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.452272000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.040382000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.269615000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.122595000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.121082000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.240773000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.018519000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.071961000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.103298000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.147705000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.089526000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.062707000



High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.034122000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.034844000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.024870000
High Mesa Rd HIGH MESA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.143218000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.322396000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.347156000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.015733000
High Mesa Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.160880000
High Rocky Rd RUIDOSO DIRT 10 COUNTY ROAD 0.126953000
High Sierra Ct ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.078148000
High View St ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.132174000
Hill Country Rd ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.573785000
Hill Country Rd ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.100087000
HILLCREST LOOP CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.499346000
Hines Draw B012 LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 1.271930000
Hines Draw B012 LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 4.576116000
Hines Draw B012 LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 3.899105000
Hines Draw B024 LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 2.872623000
Hitching Post Rd MESA LOOP RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.188311000
Holly Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.134484000
Holly Dr ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.073563000
Homestead Loop RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.409988000
Homestead Loop RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.097946000
Homestead Loop RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.007461000
Honeysuckle Ln CLEARVIEW ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.173982000
HORNED TOAD PL ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.071392000
Hughes Rd ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.056404000
Hunters Ln MESA DR/EMERALD ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.193903000
Hutson Dr RUIDOSO 0 COUNTY ROAD 0.012344000



I Bar X Ranch Rd A004 CARRIZOZO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.808297000
I Bar X Ranch Rd A004 OSCURO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 3.565041000
Incredible Ln ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.117886000
Indian Divide Rd C011/FS87 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.040143000
Indian Divide Rd C011/FS87 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 1.265206000
Indian Divide Rd C011/FS87 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.571174000
Indian Divide Rd C011/FS87 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.227769000
IRON MINE RD A012 CARRIZOZO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.516004000
IRON MINE RD CARRIZOZO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.960506000
JACK PINES CT TALL PINES CT RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.074785000
Jackalope Rd LINCOLN CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.710333000
Jacks Peak Rd A038 ANCHO DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 1.766146000
JACKS PEAK RD A036 CAPITAN DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.163559000
JACKS PEAK RD A036 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.570086000
Jacks Peak Rd A038 / FS72B ANCHO DIRT 14 COUNTY/FOREST 4.207843000
Janet Dr RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.078669000
Janet Dr RUIDOSO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.088011000
JARRATT LOOP RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.529561000
JARRATT LOOP RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.029281000
JARRATT LOOP RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.056812000
Jicarilla Rd A044 ANCHO DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 3.302355000
Jicarilla Rd A044 ANCHO DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.113133000
JICARILLA RD A044 / FS72A WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.447034000
JICARILLA RD A044 / FS72A ANCHO DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.505805000
Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 5.484583000
Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A ANCHO DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 3.058717000
Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 1.510922000
Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 0.312003000
Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 0.341747000



Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 1.368774000
Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A ANCHO DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 0.557710000
Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 0.509729000
Jicarilla Rd A044 / FS72A WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY/FOREST 1.301044000
Jose Vega Loop WALNUT CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.106493000
Jose Vega Loop WALNUT CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.244633000
Jose Vega Loop WALNUT CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.981282000
Joshua Rd CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.177113000
Joyce Rd E029 PICACHO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.435955000
Juniper Springs Rd NOGAL CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.981281000
Juniper Springs Rd NOGAL CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.252431000
Juniper Springs Rd NOGAL CHIPSEALED 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.158836000
Kelley Rd BO21 LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 3.620593000
KERLEY CT RUIDOSO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.084208000
KIT FOX CT DEER VALLEY LOOP ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.090772000
Knight Rd A015 ANCHO DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 1.026920000
La Cueva Ct ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.110487000
La Cumbre CAPITAN GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.531309000
Lackey Rd A029 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.705842000
Ladybug Ln SANDIA PL CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.232077000
Laguna Dr ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.354104000
Laguna Dr ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.109602000
Laguna Dr ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.137209000
Laguna Vista Pl ALTO GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.076355000
Lake Shore Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.723838000
Lake Shore Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.181754000
Lake Shore Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.165180000
Lake Shore Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.416673000
Lake Shore Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.117961000



Lake Shore Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.125545000
LAMAY RD NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.848053000
Lance Trl TOMAHAWK PL RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.129483000
Lance Trl TOMAHAWK PL RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.027689000
Lance Trl TOMAHAWK PL RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.039558000
Lariat Ct RUIDOSO GRAVEL 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.095022000
Larkspur Loop MEADOWS DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.348412000
Las Estrelas SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.250994000
Las Estrelas SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.381193000
Las Palas Rd E043 ARABELA DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.250627000
Las Pasadas E040/FS57 ARABELA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.796310000
Las Tablas BURCH LN CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.459576000
Las Tablas BURCH LN CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.114435000
LASSO CT STIRRUP CT 

(SADDLEBACK CT)
ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.059076000

Laughing Horse Trl COUNTY ROAD C022 CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.187526000
Laughing Horse Trl COUNTY ROAD C022 CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.292096000
Laughing Horse Trl COUNTY ROAD C022 CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.150789000
Laughing Horse Trl COUNTY ROAD C022 CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.152652000
Laughing Horse Trl COUNTY ROAD C022 CAPITAN CHIP SEAL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.466025000
Lavano Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.249668000
LAVENDER CT TWIN TREE CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.050477000
LAVENDER CT TWIN TREE CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.038075000
LAVENDER CT TWIN TREE CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.044172000
Legacy Ct ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.059401000
Legacy Ln ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.254159000
Legacy Ln ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.184824000
LEON RD A024 CORONA DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.281151000
Liakos Rd B009 CAPITAN DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 1.852282000
Lily Rd B026 PINE LODGE DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 3.517380000



Lily Rd B026 PINE LODGE DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 19.680522000
Linda Vista Ln ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.043923000
Linda Vista Ln ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.478018000
Linda Vista Ln ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.130817000
Little Big Horn Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.120341000
Little Big Horn Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.716936000
Little Big Horn Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.081519000
Little Big Horn Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.368709000
Little Big Horn Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.028048000
Little Big Horn Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.082542000
Little Big Horn Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.086628000
LITTLE CREEK HILLS RD VALLEY VIEW RD ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.725867000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.430586000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.132670000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.080115000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.079291000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.078404000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.085570000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.081276000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.095659000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.098015000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.086640000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.085484000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.085889000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.055282000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.141228000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.217128000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.086934000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.085402000



Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.088658000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.079098000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.080927000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.132372000
Little Creek Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.103385000
LITTLE CREEK RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.091794000
LITTLE CREEK RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.098110000
Loma Grande Rd BONITA DR NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.070830000
Loma Grande Rd BONITA DR NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.075799000
Loma Grande Rd BONITA DR NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.194086000
Loma Grande Rd BONITA DR NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.062538000
Loma Vista Rd B047 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 1.877580000
Lon Rd B019 LON DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 2.059522000
LONG TRAIL RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.158264000
Lookout Peak Rd LOOKOUT RD CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.772524000
Los Saltos E016 HONDO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.953336000
M Lazy J Trl B004 CAPITAN DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.512733000
Macho Spring Rd B005 CAPITAN DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.634191000
Malpais Rd A008 CARRIZOZO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.779958000
MANFOR RD E011 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.427277000
Marijo Ln RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.297137000
Marijo Ln RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.006717000
Marjorie Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.069219000
Marjorie Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.123525000
Marjorie Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.153179000
Marjorie Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.080068000
Marjorie Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.482743000
Martin Ranch Rd C007 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 3.026220000
Martin Ranch Rd C007 / FS165 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.697179000



Martin Torrez Rd E018 HONDO GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.166822000
Mary Helen Ln E032 PICACHO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.526422000
Maverick Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.064113000
Mcnalley Rd B027 PINE LODGE DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 5.843975000
Mesa Heights Dr ENCHANTED MESA ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.036130000
Mesa Heights Dr ENCHANTED MESA ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.367783000
Mesa Heights Dr ENCHANTED MESA ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.095277000
Mesa Heights Dr ENCHANTED MESA ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.090318000
Mesa Heights Dr ENCHANTED MESA ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.088323000
Mesa Vista Ln MOUNTAIN PL ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.108094000
Mesita Rd ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.168830000
Metzger Rd ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.107011000
Mexicali Way CENTRO ALTO GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.088700000
Midiron Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.169857000
Midiron Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.177259000
Midiron Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.030272000
Midiron Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.402381000
Midiron Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.072365000
Midiron Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.141800000
Miller Crossing Rd B029 PINE LODGE DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 5.965162000
Mink Ln ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.047916000
Mink Ln ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.049749000
Mira Monte Rd ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.309401000
Mira Monte Rd ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.418362000
Mira Monte Rd MIRA MONTE CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.036138000
Moccasin Trl BUCK PL RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.064067000
MOCCASIN TRL BUCK PL RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.165270000
MOGUL RD VAIL/RED RIVER ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.035785000
MOGUL RD VAIL/RED RIVER ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.165670000



MOGUL RD VAIL/RED RIVER ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.133847000
MOGUL RD VAIL/RED RIVER ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.019411000
MOGUL RD ASPEN ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.203183000
Monjeau Lookout Rd FS117 ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.455911000
Monjeau Lookout Rd FS117 ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 2.389897000
Monjeau Lookout Rd FS117 ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.096345000
Monjeau Lookout Rd FS117 ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 2.369897000
Monjeau Lookout Rd FS117 ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.119527000
Monjeau Lookout Rd FS117 ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.026964000
Monjeau Lookout Rd FS117 ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.113194000
Monjeau Lookout Rd FS117 ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.181264000
Monte Vista MT. VIEW CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.240762000
Mount Hood Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.049249000
Mount Hood Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.046684000
Mount Hood Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.045609000
Mountain Oak Ct ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.045702000
MULE DEER CT RED DEER CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.078109000
MULHOLLAND LN ALTO ASPHALT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.061302000
Mulligan Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.077444000
Mulligan Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.373692000
Musket Ct RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.334252000
Musketball Dr BIG BEAR RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.071890000
Musketball Dr BIG BEAR RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.170089000
Musketball Dr BIG BEAR RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.163871000
Musketball Dr BIG BEAR RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.085456000
Musketball Dr RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.245551000
Musketball Dr RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.419318000
Mutt Shanks Rd E037 BORDER HILL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 4.671158000
NARROW WAY ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.042508000



NEILL RD LA JUNTA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.159257000
NEILL RD ALTO ASPHALT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.050933000
NEILL RD ALTO ASPHALT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.160898000
NEILL RD ALTO ASPHALT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.105443000
Nogal Canyon Rd C015 NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 2.925458000
Nogal Canyon Rd FS400 NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 4.230544000
Nugget Ln WHITE OAKS GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.187822000
O Bar O Rd A010 NOGAL GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 3.261453000
O Bar O Rd A010 NOGAL GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 4.488484000
Old Angus Rd C026 ANGUS GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.031560000
Old Angus Rd WEST ST ANGUS GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.065766000
Old Bridge Rd C027 ANGUS GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.074095000
Oscuro Range Rd A003 OSCURO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 3.389713000
Oso Loop DEER PARK CIR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.027785000
Oso Loop DEER PARK CIR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.036281000
Oso Loop DEER PARK CIR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.121801000
OTTER CT ALTO DR ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.070772000
Paintbrush Ct PINON CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.037557000
Paintbrush Ct PINON CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.145126000
Pajarita St RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.127526000
Partridge Ct ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.055719000
Paseo De Aguayo PENA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.423616000
Paso Monte Loop D003 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.465563000
Paso Monte Loop D003 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.246838000
Paso Monte Loop D003 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.771845000
Paso Monte Loop D003 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.052115000
Paso Monte Loop D003 ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.711720000
Pat Garrett Ct N PAT GARRETT CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.026182000
PAT GARRETT CT S PAT GARRETT CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.047394000



Patos Rd A040 WHITE OAKS DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 8.386659000
Patos Rd A040 CAPITAN DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 3.860508000
Pearson St PEARSON CT RUIDOSO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.063258000
Pearson St RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.278361000
Pecos Ct ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.451098000
Peebles Rd ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.161955000
Peebles Rd ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.052254000
PERRY SPRING TRL E005 GLENCOE GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.306869000
Pfingsten Rd PINON NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.221742000
Pfingsten Rd PINON NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.441308000
Pfingsten Rd C016 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.774355000
Pfingsten Rd FS9012A NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.542482000
Pfingsten Rd C016 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.077987000
Pheasant Ct ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.049336000
Picacho Rd E030 PICACHO DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 5.131855000
Picacho Rd E030 PICACHO DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 8.778230000
Picacho Rd E028 PICACHO DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 8.241064000
Piedra Vista ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.057711000
Pine Cone Ln PONDEROSA DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.282656000
Pine Cone Ln PONDEROSA DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.037325000
Pine Hill Trl PINE HILL LOOP ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.105444000
PINE HILL TRL PINE HILL LOOP ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.357855000
Pine Knot Trl PINON DR ALTO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.197723000
PINE RIDGE RD CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.118875000
PINEHAVEN CT PINE HILL CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.054460000
Pinehurst Rd FOREST DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.166585000
Pinehurst Rd FOREST DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.097206000
Pinehurst Rd FOREST DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.219077000
Pino Rd A011 CARRIZOZO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.750422000



Pino Rd A011 CARRIZOZO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.322064000
Pinos Altos Ln ALTO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.261910000
Placitas Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.692518000
Placitas Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.220806000
Placitas Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.051605000
Pomp Ct N. CENTER DR CAPITAN GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.252516000
Porcupine Ct DEER PARK CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.045767000
Pow Wow Trl PAPOOSE PL RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.114912000
Powell St RUIDOSO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.053238000
Powell St RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.114581000
Powell St RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.109247000
Powell St RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.090908000
Proctor Rd B016 LON DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 1.651778000
PRONGHORN LN ALTO DR ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.197812000
Prospect Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.171590000
Purcella Rd E026 TINNIE DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.377844000
Quail Run Ln ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.091054000
Quail Run Ln ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.053896000
Racoon Ct ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.086592000
RAIN DANCE TRL SQUAW PL RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.195061000
Rainwater Way SPRING RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.042841000
Rainwater Way SPRING RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.070120000
Rancher Rd VALLEYVIEW RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.052262000
Rancher Rd VALLEYVIEW RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.102507000
Rancher Rd VALLEYVIEW RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.096380000
Rancher Rd VALLEYVIEW RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.073904000
Ranchmans Camp Rd C013 / FS105 NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 3.904451000
Ranchmans Camp Rd C013 / FS105 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 1.957164000
Ranger Rd CO16 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.327086000



Ranger Rd CO16 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.821094000
Ranger Rd CO16 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.333672000
Rango Loop ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.245958000
RAVEN RIDGE RD RAVEN DR RUIDOSO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.406568000
Ravens Wing ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.064661000
Ravens Wing ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.145826000
Rawhide Rd CEDAR LN RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.026607000
Rawhide Rd CEDAR LN RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.049140000
Rawhide Rd CEDAR LN RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.063322000
Rawhide Rd CEDAR LN RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.061498000
Reagan Rd RUIDOSO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.052501000
Red Bluff Rd B048 LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 10.157606000
Red Cloud Canyon Rd A023 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 1.442780000
Red Cloud Canyon Rd A023 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 7.825930000
Red Cloud Canyon Rd A023 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 2.984279000
Red Cloud Rd A027 CORONA DIRT 22 COUNTY/FOREST 3.118944000
Red Hawk Ln EAGLE CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.050690000
Red Hawk Ln EAGLE CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.158687000
Red Lake Rd A013 CARRIZOZO DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 2.552731000
Red River Pl RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.119728000
REINDEER DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.278893000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.150534000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.089647000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.284865000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.121818000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.070859000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.044093000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.067764000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.115808000



Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.050637000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.054278000
Reynolds Cir REYNOLDS DR RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.081887000
RIALTO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.043356000
Richardson Canyon Rd B006 CAPITAN DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.014797000
Richardson Rd C014 NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.243496000
Richardson Rd C014 NOGAL DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 1.292032000
Riley Rd E035 BORDER HILL DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 3.019406000
Rillito Rd LITTLE CREEK RD ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.017385000
Rillito Rd LITTLE CREEK RD ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.057926000
Rillito Rd LITTLE CREEK RD ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.015880000
Rillito Rd LITTLE CREEK RD ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.058829000
Rillito Rd LITTLE CREEK RD ALTO DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.026799000
Rincon Rd ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.133432000
Roadrunner Dr NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.088004000
Roadrunner Dr NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.249739000
Roadrunner Dr NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.202561000
Roblito Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.225198000
ROBLITO RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.235148000
Rocky Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.187186000
ROSE WOOD TRL LA JUNTA DR ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.140720000
ROSE WOOD TRL LA JUNTA DR ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.140134000
ROUND MTN RANCH RD B017 LON DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 1.557646000
Royce Rd B015 LON DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 1.330473000
Royce Rd B015 CORONA DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 4.431188000
ROYCE RD B015 LON DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 1.965770000
Rue De Rue E041 ARABELA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.091338000
RUTH RD NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.174411000
RUTH RD NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.363597000



RUTH RD NOGAL GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.624584000
Sacramento Ct SACRAMENTO CIR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.068917000
Saddle Pass Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.465106000
SADDLE SLOPE RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.409964000
Saddleback Rd WHITE TAIL DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.369897000
Saddleback Rd WHITE TAIL DR ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.216107000
Saddleback Rd ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.084187000
Saddleback Rd ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.194821000
Saddleback Rd ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.491207000
Saddleback Rd ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.056321000
Sage Rd COLLEGE RD ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.079102000
Sage Rd COLLEGE RD ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.070093000
Sage Rd COLLEGE RD ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.055106000
SAGEBRUSH RD CHAPPARAL RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.183100000
SAGEBRUSH RD CHAPPARAL RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.051626000
SAGEBRUSH RD CHAPPARAL RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.126002000
SALAZAR CANYON RD C005 / FS502 LINCOLN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 2.971906000
Salazar Canyon Rd C002/FS57 LINCOLN DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.009668000
Salazar Canyon Rd C002/FS57 LINCOLN DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.853108000
Salazar Canyon Rd C002/FS57 LINCOLN DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 3.257024000
Salazar Canyon Rd C002/FS57 LINCOLN DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 0.135390000
Salazar Canyon Rd C002/FS57 LINCOLN DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 2.027005000
Salt Peak Trl NOGAL GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.077392000
Salt Peak Trl NOGAL GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.107464000
Saltbush Rd OAK DR/ WELL RD ANGUS ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.137552000
Saltbush Rd OAK DR/ WELL RD ANGUS ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.035504000
Sam Bass Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.039826000
San Mateo Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.744156000
San Pablo Heights Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.112710000



San Pablo Heights Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.138436000
Sanchez Rd E010 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.112698000
Sanchez Rd E010 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.055311000
Sanchez Rd E010 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.164285000
Sandesta Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.118118000
Sandesta Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.364370000
Sandesta Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.157912000
Sandesta Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.105327000
Sandesta Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.126731000
Sandesta Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.196358000
Sandesta Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.860678000
Sandesta Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.259241000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.302034000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.834509000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.260194000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.227583000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.858392000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.920238000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.186760000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.080030000
Santiago Cir SANTIAGO DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.764121000
Sawmill Canyon Rd RAINBOW CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.323533000
Schlarb Rd A005 CARRIZOZO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 2.328446000
Schlarb Rd A005 CARRIZOZO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.316821000
Screaming Eagle ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.177245000
Serrano Rd B031 PINE LODGE DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.883821000
Seven Rivers Rd B020 PINE LODGE DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 3.640233000
Seven Rivers Rd B020 PINE LODGE DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.860752000
Seven Rivers Rd PINE LODGE GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.821759000



Seven Rivers Rd B020 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.893926000
Seven Rivers Rd B020 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 13.953269000
Seven Rivers Rd B020 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 1.082050000
Seven Rivers Rd B020 PINE LODGE DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 12.248390000
Shauna Ln ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.241042000
Shauna Ln WOODLAND DR ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.358890000
Shoshone Trl ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.058059000
Shoshone Trl ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.434265000
Sierra Vista Dr ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.072920000
Sierra Vista Dr ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.183501000
Sierra Vista Dr ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.188998000
Sierra Vista Dr ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.078129000
Silva Ranch Rd C010 CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.225556000
Silva Ranch Rd C010 CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.234091000
SILVA RANCH RD C010 CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.084267000
Silver Fox Ln SILVERSTAR LN ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.489013000
Silvertip Trl CAPITAN CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.044244000
Sitting Bull Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.089026000
Skeen Rd E028 PICACHO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 7.134490000
Skeen Rd E028 PICACHO DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.290405000
Snell Rd CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.493380000
Snell Rd CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.298803000
Snow Park Rd ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.028983000
SNOW PARK RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.241273000
SNOWFLAKE RD DEER PARK RD ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.099872000
SNOWFLAKE RD DEER PARK RD ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.042350000
SNOWFLAKE RD DEER PARK RD ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.054513000
SNOWFLAKE RD DEER PARK RD ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.082158000
Sonora Loop RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.285423000



Sonterra Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.425890000
Sonterra Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.484490000
Sonterra Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.141794000
Sonterra Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.348059000
Sparkey Rd A014 ANCHO DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.359911000
Spindle Rd PINON CIR CAPITAN GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.489178000
Spotted Owl Rd RUIDOSO DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.217157000
Spring Canyon Rd NORTH CEDAR CREEK/ 

CHUCKWAGON
RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.304187000

Spring Canyon Rd NORTH CEDAR CREEK/ 
CHUCKWAGON

RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.100975000
Spring Canyon Rd NORTH CEDAR CREEK/ 

CHUCKWAGON
RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.113613000

Spring Canyon Rd NORTH CEDAR CREEK/ 
CHUCKWAGON

RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.091533000
Spring Canyon Rd NORTH CEDAR CREEK/ 

CHUCKWAGON
RUIDOSO GRAVEL 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.301334000

Spur Trl E DEER TRL CAPITAN GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.515253000
SQUAW TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.212526000
Squaw Valley Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.118247000
Squaw Valley Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.048046000
St Andrews Ct TIMBER CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.047163000
St Jude Rd E012 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.093745000
Stable Rd ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.458370000
Stable Rd ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.045270000
Stable Rd ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.170582000
Stable Rd ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.435405000
Stag Loop ALTO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.288705000
Stag Loop ALTO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.314520000
Stetson Rd CANYON RD RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.018954000
Stetson Rd CANYON RD RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.055701000
Stetson Rd CANYON RD RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.095377000
Stetson Rd CANYON RD RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.055405000
Stetson Rd CANYON RD RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.043028000



STETSON RD CANYON RD RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.029407000
STETSON RD CANYON RD RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.064499000
STETSON RD CANYON RD RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.064251000
Stone Rd B002 CAPITAN DIRT 20 COUNTY ROAD 1.194035000
Straley Rd A017 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 3.612123000
Straley Rd A017 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.325032000
Straley Rd COUNTY ROAD A020 CORONA DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 4.532777000
Straley Rd A017 CORONA DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.989399000
Straley Rd A017 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 1.812401000
Straley Rd A017 ANCHO DIRT 22 COUNTY ROAD 4.075616000
SUGAR BUSH RD ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.184767000
Sulkey Ct SOUTH DR NOGAL GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.199746000
Sun Mountain Loop ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.221778000
Sun Mountain Loop ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.239228000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.114501000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.449904000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.084095000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.039489000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.042452000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.118844000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.082565000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.126205000
SUN VALLEY RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.192904000
Sundance Kid Ct ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.037937000
SUNLAND RD ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.145523000
Sunlit Ct SUN VALLEY PL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.089861000
Sunset Dr ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.349999000
Surrey Ln NOGAL LN NOGAL DIRT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.250278000
Tall Pines Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.174845000



Tall Pines Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.108441000
Tanbark Canyon Rd FS108 NOGAL DIRT 18 COUNTY/FOREST 4.354697000
Tanglewood Ln ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.173788000
Tara Trl E014 SAN PATRICIO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.205768000
TELLURIDE TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.142191000
TELLURIDE TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.225456000
TELLURIDE TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.201537000
TELLURIDE TRL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.122322000
Thistle Rd S. LOOP DR ANGUS DIRT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.236538000
Tierra Nueva Dr ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.379291000
Tina Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.523420000
Toboggan Trl ASPEN RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.201263000
Tombstone Ct N TOMBSTONE CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.085528000
Tombstone Ct S TOMBSTONE CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.050123000
Torrey Pines Trl ALTO ASPHALT 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.287022000
TOWER RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.124956000
Transwestern Rd B007 CAPITAN DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.721739000
Transwestern Rd B007 CAPITAN DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.133741000
Transwestern Rd B007 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 1.774088000
Transwestern Rd B007 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 6.228887000
Transwestern Rd B007 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.507262000
Transwestern Rd B007 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.712989000
Transwestern Rd B007 CAPITAN DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.902092000
Transwestern Rd B007 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.118882000
Transwestern Rd B007 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 5.429637000
Transwestern Rd B007 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 4.172766000
Transwestern Rd B007 CAPITAN DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 5.817044000
Tucson Mountain Rd C008 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.483985000
Tucson Mountain Rd C008 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.405669000



Tully Ln E003/E004 GLENCOE GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.540737000
Tully Ln E003/E004 GLENCOE GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.233570000
Twin Pines Rd RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.052054000
Twin Pines Rd RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.007963000
Twin Pines Rd RUIDOSO DIRT 15 COUNTY ROAD 0.027040000
Twin Tree Loop TWIN TREE RD ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.074223000
Twin Tree Loop TWIN TREE RD ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.393113000
Tyree Rd A026 CORONA DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.399374000
Upper Eagle Creek Rd FS127A ALTO DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 1.996875000
Vail Loop ASPEN/MOGUL ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.080894000
Vail Loop ASPEN/MOGUL ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.036701000
Vail Loop ASPEN/MOGUL ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.088842000
Vail Loop ASPEN/MOGUL ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.082672000
Vail Loop ASPEN/MOGUL ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.265653000
Valley Ct ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.087196000
Valley Meadow Ct DEER VALLEY CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.075446000
Vasco Bonita Rd B041 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 8.418919000
Vawter Rd B018 LON DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 4.698345000
Vera Cruz Rd C012/FS9971 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.230810000
Vera Cruz Rd C012/FS9971 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.576028000
Vera Cruz Rd C012/FS9971 CAPITAN DIRT 16 COUNTY/FOREST 0.448787000
Verna Rd JUNIPER RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.068830000
Via Aguila EAGLE WAY RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.135571000
Via Aguila TIMBER LN RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.110822000
Via Aguila TIMBER LN RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.034553000
Via Madera TIMBER LN RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.210970000
Via Madera TIMBER LN RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.055177000
Via Selva FOREST RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.087031000
Via Selva FOREST RD RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.109366000



Via Selva DEER TRL/FOREST PL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.040971000
Via Selva DEER TRL & FOREST PL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.083009000
Via Tres Rios E019 HONDO GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.626019000
Via Venado DEER TRL/FOREST PL RUIDOSO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.102535000
Via Volante ALTAMIRA CT ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.266088000
Villa Madonna Loop VILLA MADONNA DR/ 

BEAR AVE
ALTO DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.279416000

W Lobo Rd CAPITAN GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.251098000
Wagon Trl RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.180862000
Wagon Trl RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.130883000
Wagon Trl HOMESTEAD WEST RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.068640000
Wagon Trl HOMESTEAD WEST RUIDOSO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.051545000
Wapiti Way ELKS DR ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.319277000
War Bow Trl BROKEN BOW RUIDOSO GRAVEL 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.115687000
Water Canyon Rd A001 / COUNTRY CLUB 

RD
CARRIZOZO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.443235000

Water Spirit Trl HORIZON DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.081820000
Water Spirit Trl HORIZON DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.073705000
Water Spirit Trl HORIZON DR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.181699000
Watson Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.021136000
Watson Rd RUIDOSO GRAVEL 12 COUNTY ROAD 0.029339000
WHISKERS TRL B025 LON DIRT 18 COUNTY ROAD 2.649741000
WHISPER CT LAKE DR ALTO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.054821000
White Angel Ln MESA DR RUIDOSO DOWNS GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.138939000
White Cat Rd E012 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.043693000
White Cat Rd E012 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.049644000
White Cat Rd E012 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.128832000
White Cat Rd E013 SAN PATRICIO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.179006000
White Ct ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.035760000
White Oaks Canyon Rd A041 WHITE OAKS DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 1.600750000
Wild Rose Cir HENDERSON; SPRUCE; 

JUNIPER; TETON
ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.025290446



Wild Rose Cir HENDERSON; SPRUCE; 
JUNIPER; TETON

ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.237415000
Wild Rose Cir HENDERSON; SPRUCE; 

JUNIPER; TETON
ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.198826000

Wild Rose Cir HENDERSON; SPRUCE; 
JUNIPER; TETON

ANGUS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.204603000
Wild Turkey Ln ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.053322000
Wild Turkey Ln ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.045562000
Wildflower Trl WILDWOOD CIR RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.049922000
Wildflower Trl WILDWOOD CIR RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.051547000
Wildflower Trl WILDWOOD CIR RUIDOSO GRAVEL 16 COUNTY ROAD 0.097506000
Windmill Rd A017 ANCHO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.139436000
Windmill Rd A017 ANCHO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.069409000
Windmill Rd A017 ANCHO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.903829000
Windmill Rd A017 ANCHO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.247706000
Windmill Rd A017 ANCHO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 1.477136000
WINTER PARK RD ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.151672000
Winterhawk Heights ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.410005000
Winterhawk Heights ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.115858000
Withers Ln A003 OSCURO GRAVEL 20 COUNTY ROAD 1.200741000
Wolf Creek Rd SCENIC LOOP NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.732059000
Wolf Creek Rd SCENIC LOOP NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.238413000
Wolf Run Ln CHIPMONK CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.041162000
Wolf Run Ln CHIPMONK CT ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.060340000
Wolf Springs Loop NOGAL GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.883899000
Woodbrier Ct WOODBRIER CIR ALTO ASPHALT 22 COUNTY ROAD 0.086794000
Woodpine Ct STAG CT ALTO GRAVEL 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.177778000
Woodridge Ct HIGH MESA CT ALTO ASPHALT 20 COUNTY ROAD 0.060548000
WOODWARD LN ALTO ASPHALT 18 COUNTY ROAD 0.069255000
WOODWARD LN LA JUNTA DR ALTO ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.122429000
Wrangler Rd TERRIS RUIDOSO DOWNS GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.050415000
Wrangler Rd TERRIS RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.033369000



Wrangler Rd TERRIS RUIDOSO DOWNS ASPHALT 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.050328000
Wrangler Rd TERRIS RUIDOSO DOWNS GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.076264000
Wyatt Earp Ct N WYATT EARP CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.064104000
Wyatt Earp Ct S WYATT EARP CT ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.034837000
Yriart Rd B028 PINE LODGE DIRT 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.682738000
Zia Dr CAPITAN GRAVEL 14 COUNTY ROAD 0.157879000
Zorro Ln FOX LN ALTO GRAVEL 24 COUNTY ROAD 0.550139000

TOTAL 807.016689000

COUNTY 705.724497000
FOREST 101.292192000
TOTAL 807.016689000



COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
RESOLUTION 2024-44 

CERTIFICATION OF ROAD MILEAGE 

 WHEREAS, on February 20, 2024, the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners received a 
report of the county’s road mileage maintained by the Rural Addressing Department; and 

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Department of Transportation requires formal notification stating 
that the Board of Commissioners certified the road mileage maintained; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners hereby 
certify the annual mileage of Lincoln County roads as being 807.016689000 miles. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of February 2024. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 
THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN, 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

___________________________________        
Todd F. Proctor, Chairman      For/Against 

________________________________________     
Jon F. Crunk, Vice-Chairman   For/Against 

___________________________________      _______________________________________ 
Samantha J. Serna, Member    For/Against  Pierre S. Pfeffer, Member             For/Against         

___________________________________ 
Mark G. Fischer, Member    For/Against 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Shannan Hemphill, County Clerk 























Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

County of Lincoln   
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

www.lincolncountynm.gov 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 

SUBJECT: 

Review of Boards/Committees Appointed by the Board of County Commissioners 
a. Chaves County Community Action Program (State Statute) – Term Expire 1/2024 – Current

Member, Chairman Todd Proctor
1 Reappoint or Appoint a New Commissioner Representative. 

b. Interstate Stream Commission (Sub-Committee on the Pecos) - Term Expire 1/2024 – Current
Member, Chairman Todd Proctor

1 Reappoint or Appoint a New Commissioner Representative.  
c. Approval to publish expired positions for the Land and Natural Resources Advisory Committee

(2-year terms)
1 Publish Interested Applicants for Reappointment and/or New Appointments for 

Districts 2, 3, 4, & At-Large.  
d. Approval to Publish Expired Positions for the Lincoln Historic Preservation Board (2-year terms)

1 Publish interested applicants for reappointment and/or new appointments for District 
5 

e. Lodger’s Tax Committee (2-year term)
1 Reappointment of Mr. John Hemphill to the Lodger’s Tax Committee (set to 

expire April 2024). 
2 Appointment of Ms. Lori Lytle Coleman to the Lodger’s Tax Committee for the 

Tourist Related membership.  
f. New Mexico County Insurance Authority – Workers’ Compensation – Expired 12/2023 –

Current Member Commissioner Jon Crunk, Current Alternate Ira Pearson
1 Reappoint or appoint a new Commissioner Representative and alternate.  

g. New Mexico County Insurance Authority – Multi-Line Pool – Expired 12/2023 – Current
Member Commissioner Jon Crunk, Current Alternate Ira Pearson.

1 Reappoint or Appoint a New Commissioner Representative and Alternate.  
h. Approval to Publish Expired Positions for the Property Tax Protest Board (2-year term).

1 Publish Interested Applicants for Reappointment and/or New Appointments for Two 
(2) Alternate Positions.

i. Approval to Publish Expired Positions for the Road Review Advisory Committee (2-year term).
1 Publish Interested Applicants for Reappointment and/or New Appointments for Two 

(2) Positions for Districts 4 & 5.
j. Approval to Remove Ira Peason and Francesca Herrera as Proxies for the Solid Waste Authority

and Replace Them with an Elected Official and the County Manager.
k. Discussion and Potential Appointment to the SERPTO Committee



 

 

ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES, NEW MEXICO – 2 YEAR TERM (this term is up in June) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 TODD PROCTOR   01/17/2023 01/11/2025 
BOARD MEMBER SHALL BE ELECTED BY ALL ELECTED OFFICIALS EVERY ODD YEAR.  ELECTION SHALL BE CONDUCTED BY THE COUNTY CLERK. 

 
BOARD OF REGISTRATION (CLERK’S OFFICE)  2 YEAR TERM (STATE STATUTES, SECTION 1-4-34) 
DISTRICT 
NO 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE     
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

Rep. JERRY MALY   07/01/2023 06/30/2025 
Rep. CHARLES RICK PRESTON   07/01/2023 06/30/2025 
Dem. DOROTHY SUSAN FINCH   07/01/2023 06/30/2025 
Dem. CHARMAINE O’ROURKE   07/01/2023 06/30/2025 
Lib. ROWENA SWINNEY   07/01/2023 06/30/2025 
Rep. ALTERNATE – CYNTHIA BLACK   07/01/2023 06/30/2025 
Rep. ALTERNATE – GARY 

POPPLEWELL 
  07/01/2023 06/30/2025 

Rep. ALTERNATE - SANDRA BARRETT   07/01/2023 06/30/2025 
Dem. ALTERNATE - BARB HIMMEL-

ROBERTS 
  07/01/2023 06/30/2025 

Dem. ALTERNATE  - SHANNON 
WARREN-WOLFE 

  07/01/2023 06/30/2025 

Dem. ALTERNATE  - SHARON 
AMASTAE 

  07/01/2023 06/30/2025 

Lib. ALTERNATE  - JEWELIANNA 
CANNON 

  07/01/2023 06/30/2025 

NO MORE THAN TWO OF THE THREE PERSONS APPOINTED TO THE BOARD OF REGISTRATION SHALL BE MEMBERS OF THE SAME MAJOR POLITICAL PARTY AT THE TIME 
OF THEIR APPOINTMENT.  IN ADDITION, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SHALL APPOINT TWO ALTERNATES WHO SHALL NOT BELONG TO THE SAME 
POLITICAL PARTY AT THE TIME OF THEIR APPOINTMENT.  IN MAKING ALL APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD OF REGISTRATION OR AS ALTERNATES TO THE BOARD OF 
REGISTRATION FROM THE LISTS OF THE COUNTY CHAIRMEN, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SHALL GIVE PREFERENCE TO THE NAMES IN THE ORDER 
INDICATED BY THE NUMBERS ON THE LIST. 

 
EMERGENCY PROGRAM MANAGER – 2 YEAR TERM   (file folder #860) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 ARRON GRIEWAHN BOX 25, HONDO, NM  09/28/2023 WITH 
OFFICE 

 



 

 

CARRIZOZO HEALTH CENTER ADVISORY BOARD – 2 YEAR TERM   
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 TODD OBERHEU–
ADMINSTRATOR 

 1  INDEFINITE 

 SCOTT SHAFTER – RETIRED 
BANK OFFICER 

 1  2020 

  STEPHEN OTERO -MEDICAL 
DIRECTOR 

   INDEFINITE 

  SUSAN HIGHTOWER-RANCHER     2018 
  J.DALE GOAD-DENTIST   1  2020 
 MELINDA HACKER – DENTIST    2018 
 MEUNIER, REBECCA – NURSE 

PRACTITIONER 
    INDEFINITE 

 TERRY RIEHL – PRACTICE ADMIN     INDEFINITE 
 
 
CHAVES COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM (STATE STATUTES) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

1 TODD PROCTOR PO BOX 745, CAPITAN 88316 1 01/17/2023 01/2024 
 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – ORDINANCE 2009-2 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

      
 
 
INTERSTATE STREAM COMMISSION (SUB-COMMITTEE ON THE PECOS) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 TODD PROCTOR PO BOX 745, CAPITAN 88316 1 01/17/2023 01/2024 

 



 

 

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMITTEE – 2 YEAR TERM (ORDINANCE NO. 2008-4) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

DIST 1 Pete Gnatkowski Vice Chairman 
pgnatkow@nmsu.edu  575-309-1021 

724 Jacks Peak Road 
Carrizozo, NM  88301   

 04/19/2022 04/2024 

DIST 2 Lance Hale PO Box 745, Ruidoso Downs 88346  1/17/2023 1/2025 
DIST 3 Kendal Wilson PO Box 1055, Carrizozo  1/17/2023 1/2025 
DIST 4 Preston Stone  PO box 484, Capitan 575-808-0729  1/17/2023 1/2025 
DIST 5 Clark Taylor Bearcat1952@icloud.com; 575-937-3818  05/17/2022 5/2024 
AT LARGE Robert Shepperd  PO Box 38, Nogal 575-430-3848  1/17/2023 1/2025 
AT LARGE Robert Barber twob1601@hotmail.com Box 126, 270 Cora Dutton Rd, Capitan 

575-354-7018/575-808-9814 
 4/19/2022 4/2024 

NO REQUIREMENT FOR AN APPOINTEE TO BE DOMICLED IN ANY PARTICULAR VOTING DISTRICT OF THE COUNTY.  PUBLICATION IS REQUIRED.  TWO AT-LARGE 
MEMBERS WILL BE SLECTED AND APPOINTED BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS. 

 
LINCOLN HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD – 2 YEAR TERM (ORDINANCE NO. 2004-5  (BOX 65, LINCOLN  88338) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 DIST 1 Billy Roberts PO Box  
Lincoln, NM 88338 

5 05/16/2023 05/2025 

DIST 2 
 

JON AMASTAE 
JAMASTAE@YAHOO.COM  

BOX 217, LINCOLN 
575-653-4633 ©575-650-1890 

5 04/19/2022 04/2024 

DIST 3 Jack Faulk 
nonniefaulk@gmail.com  

1416 CALLE LA PLACITYA, LINCOLN 5 06/14/2022 06/2024 

DIST 4  Mary Ann Carpenter PO Box 155, Lincoln, NM 88338 5 09/19/2023 09/2025 
DIST 5  Elaine Allen BOX 74, LINCOLN, NM  88338 5 12/20/2022 12/2024 
MEMBERS MUST BE PROPERTY OWNERS IN THE HISTORIC DISTRICT.  PUBLICATION IS REQUIRED. 
 
LOCAL WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT ADVISORY BOARD – 03/03/00 – LEAVE IT ALONE (NO ACTION) 1/17/2023 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 LYNN WILLARD 109 NOGAL PLACE , RUIDOSO 2 02/17/15  
 CHET SOUTHARD BOX 609, ALTO  88312 4   
 GARY COZZENS 709 MECHEM DRIVE, RUIDOSO  88345 4   
NOMINATIONS ARE MADE BY CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE AND APPOINTED BY OTHER MUNICIPALITIES. 
 



 

 

LODGERS TAX COMMITTEE, LINCOLN COUNTY -2 YEAR TERM (ORDINANCE NO. 2004-04) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

850-375-5505 TOURIST RELATE- ASHLEY 
ROBERTS 
ashley@bonitovalleybrewing.com– VICE 
CHAIR 

105 BOOT HILL RD, ALTO, NM 88312  03/16/2023 03/2025 

575-973-8244 GENERAL PUBLIC –  CODA OMNESS 
coda.omness@enmu.edu  

PO BOX 28998 HWY 70, TINNIE 88351  1/16/2024 1/2026 

575-937-8904 LODGING INDUSTRY –  JOHN 
HEMPHILL; 
johnehemphill@gmail.com - 
CHAIRMAN 

 PO BOX 1006, CARRIZOZO 88301 
 

  04/19/2022 04/2024 

   TOURIST RELATED – KATHLEEN 
MCDONALD 
kathleen@spencertheater.com  

BOX 181, NOGAL, NM  88341  06/15/2021 06/2023 

214-673-2840 LODGING INDUSTRY – DUSTY 
CORNELIUS- iamdust67@yahoo.com / 
reservations@highcountrylodge.net  

859 HWY 48, ALTO, NM 88312   06/20/2023 06/2025 

 
 

NEW MEXICO COUNTY INSURANCE AUTHORITY – WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 JON CRUNK 127 SLEEPY HOLLOW ROAD, 
RUIDOSO 88345 

 3 12/2022 12/2023 

 ALTERNATE – IRA PEARSON     12/2022 12/2023 
 
NEW MEXICO COUNTY INSURANCE AUTHORITY – MULTI-LINE POOL 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 JON CRUNK 127 SLEEPY HOLLOW RD, RUIDOSO 
88345 

3 12/2022 12/2023 

 ALTERNATE – IRA PEARSON    12/2022 12/2023 
 
PREDATORY ANIMAL CONTROL BOARD, LINCOLN COUNTY – 5 YEAR TERM (STATUTE 77-15-7thru12) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 MARK HENDRICKS BOX 307, CARRIZOZO 88301 1 06/16/2020 06/2025 
 JIM COOPER HC73 BOX 25, TINNIE  88351 5 06/16/2020 06/2025 
 RON MERRITT HC66 BOX 30, YESO  88136 1 06/16/2020 06/2025 



 

 

 MIKE SKEEN BOX 67, PICACHO  88343 5 06/16/2020 06/2025 
 LEE SULTEMEIER Box 147, CORONA 88318  06/16/2020 06/2025 
 BILLY BOB SHAFER BOX 82, CARRIZOZO 88301 1 06/16/2020 06/2025 
ACB HOLDS ELECTION – PUBLICATION IS REQUIRED 
(RATE WENT FROM $.55 TO $.75) 
 
PROPERTY TAX PROTEST BOARD – 2 YEAR TERM  (Statute 7-38-25) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

  JAMES RUSS 575-937-2756; 
JAMES@RUIDOSOHOMESNLAND.COM 

PO BOX 2362, RUIDOSO, NM   07/18/2023 07/2025 

 DAN KNORR 575-937-4758 
DBKNORR@ZIANET.COM 

PO BOX 1621, ALTO, NM  88312  4/19/2022 4/2024 

 ALTERNATE: PATSY SANCHEZ BOX 637 CARRIZOZO, NM  88301   06/16/2020 06/2022 
 ALTERNATE – DEREK MOORHEAD 575-937-

2554; PIZZAHUT_2@BAJABB.COM 
139 PONDEROSA DR, RUIDOSO  06/16/2020 06/2022 

 
ROAD REVIEW ADVISORY COMMITTEE, LINCOLN COUNTY – 2 YEAR TERM (ORDINANCE  NO. 2003-5) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

DIST 1 LANCE HALE 575-430-9060 
nmcrittergitter@yahoo.com 

BOX 745 RUIDOSO DOWNS, 88346 1  1/17/2023 1/2025 

DIST 2 ROBERT BARBER  
twob1601@hotmail.com 

BOX 126, CAPITAN, NM 1 04/19/22  04/2024 

DIST 3 JAMES RUSS PO BOX 2362 RUIDOSO NM 3 07/18/2023 07/2025 
DIST 4   

 
    

DIST 5 Billy Seelbach 406 Gavilan Canyon Rd. 
Ruidoso, NM 88345 

 2/18/2020 2/2022 

PUBLICATION IS REQUIRED                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
SOUTHEASTERN NEW MEXICO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (SNMEDD) 2 YEAR TERM 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 JON CRUNK 127 SLEEPY HOLLOW RD, RUIDOSO 
88345 

3 01/17/2023 01/25 

 ALTERNATE – JEFFREY HONEYCUTT   01/17/2023 01/25 
 
SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY, LINCOLN COUNTY – 2 YEAR TERM (AGREEMENT NO. 343) 
DISTRICT 
NO. 

MEMBER ADDRESS RESIDES IN 
DISTRICT NO. 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

TERM 
EXPIRATION 

 GARY WILLIAMS  5   
 BILL HIGNIGHT, MAYOR BOX 37, CORONA  88318 1   
 RAY DEAN – CHAIR  1   









Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

 

SUBJECT: 

Forest, Land & Natural Resources Matters: 

a. Smokey Bear Ranger District 
b. Lincoln County/NMSU Extension Services 
c. South Central Mountain RC & D 
d. Upper Hondo Soil & Water Conservation District 
e. Land and Natural Resources Advisory Committee-LANRAC 

 





Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 

 

SUBJECT: 

9:30 A.M.: PUBLIC COMMENT AND OTHER BUSINESS FROM COUNTY  
OFFICIALS (Items are for discussion only – no action will be taken) 
 

a. Update Provided by Rick Lamb, CEO of the Boys & Girls Club of Chavez & 
Lincoln Counties RE:  Youth Mentoring Services & Positive Active Programming 

 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Lincoln County Detention Center Update, Warden Ross Castleton 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Notice of Cancellation of RFP #23-24-4 for Plumbing Repairs at the Lincoln County 
Detention Center and Approval to Utilize CES and/or State Pricing Agreement Due to 
Lack of Responses to RFP and a Previously Submitted Scope of Work Analysis. 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Lincoln County Medical Center: 
a. Update-Todd Oberheu, Hospital Chief Executive 
b. Approval of Request for Disbursement of $842,000.00 Approved During the 

Original Budget Session July 17, 2023 to support a 24-hour staffing of ambulance 
for Alto and Carrizozo. 



1

Makayla Zonfrilli

From: Oberheu, Todd <toberheu@phs.org>
Sent: Wednesday, January 10, 2024 9:12 AM
To: Makayla Zonfrilli
Subject: EMS Expansion

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

MK, 
 
I am not sure you are aware, but as part of our plan to expand EMS in Carrizozo and Alto, we had the county hold about 
$800,000 in funding as we awaited determination on a grant request we submitted to the state from the Rural Health 
Care Fund.  We have received notice that we did not receive that grant.  As such, I am requesting the county start 
releasing the $800,000 that was approved in FY 2023-2024.  This can be distributed monthly or quarterly.   
 
Let me know if we need to discuss. 
 
Todd Oberheu, FACHE 
Hospital Chief Executive 
 

 
 
(575) 257-8250 (w) 
 
*-*-*- Presbyterian_Healthcare_Services_DISCLAIMER -*-*-* This message originates from Presbyterian Healthcare 
Services or one of its affiliated organizations. It contains information, which may be confidential or privileged, and is 
intended only for the individual or entity named above. It is prohibited for anyone else to disclose, copy, distribute or 
use the contents of this message. All personal messages express views solely of the sender, which are not to be 
attributed to Presbyterian Healthcare Services or any of its affiliated organizations, and may not be distributed without 
this disclaimer. If you received this message in error, please notify us immediately at info@phs.org If you would like 
more information about Presbyterian Healthcare Services please visit our web site http://www.phs.org  



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Mimbres Peaks National Monument: 
a. Presentation by Lori Coleman – 10 minutes 
b. Approval of Resolution No. 2024-43 in Support of Luna County’s Stand Against 

the Proposed Mimbres Peaks National Monument 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-43 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING LUNA COUNTY IN THEIR OPPOSITION TO THE 
DESIGNATION OF THE MIMBRES PEAKS NATIONAL MONUMENT 

 
WHEREAS a private special interest group has put forward a proposal to establish the Mimbres 

Peaks National Monument, which would encompass approximately 245,000 acres of federal lands in the 
Florida, Cooke's Peak, Good Sight, and Tres Hermanas mountains situated within LUNA County, New 
Mexico; and 

 
WHEREAS, under the 1906 Act for the Preservation of American Antiquities, presidents can 

unilaterally designate national monuments, by administrative fiat, without any input or involvement of the 
American public, community leaders, or elected officials; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Antiquities Act was enacted before the creation of federal land management laws, 

and was intended to be used in emergency situations to protect historic artifacts, and sites of scientific value, 
from "imminent threat" which in all cases should be confined to the smallest area necessary; and  

 
WHEREAS, since its establishment 118 years ago, the Antiquities Act has been misused for 

political purposes by presidents with large scale designations intended to limit specific uses, activities, or 
access to vast areas of public lands; allowing unfettered governmental control and hindering the productive 
use of those lands; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 27, 2021, President Joseph R. Biden, Jr., issued Executive Order 14008 

entitled Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Aboard (86 Fed. Reg. 7,619); and 
 
WHEREAS, in Section 216 of Executive Order 14008, President Biden directed the Secretary of 

the Interior, in consultation with the Secretary of Agriculture and other senior officials, to develop a 
program to conserve at least 30 percent of the lands and waters in the United States by 2030, which was 
called the “30 x 30" program, but was recently "rebranded" as "America the Beautiful"; and 

 
WHEREAS this monument designation appears to be nothing more than another attempt at a 

federal land grab driven by political motivation, outside interests, and the acquisition of personal gain 
provided through the monetization of our nation's natural assets at the expense of hardworking Americans; 
and 

 
WHEREAS serious concerns have been raised by constituents of LUNA County over the exclusion 

of stakeholders, namely the farmers, ranchers, miners, and outdoor enthusiasts of LUNA County, both from 
within and outside of the boundaries of the proposed monument; and 

 
WHEREAS Lincoln County supports LUNA County’s concerns; and 
 
WHEREAS, creating additional federal lands and by placing public lands into permanent 

conservation status will cause dramatic and irreversible harm to the economies of many states, including 
New Mexico, and in particular rural counties such as LUNA and even Lincoln County whose citizens 
depend on multiple use on public lands for their livelihoods; and 
 

WHEREAS LUNA County Board of Commissioners passed Resolution No. 24-15, on January 19, 
2024, which opposes the establishment of the Mimbres Peaks National Monument; and 

 
  
WHEREAS, this 20th day of February 2024, Lincoln County supports LUNA County’s resolution; 

and  
 



WHEREAS on March 22, 2024, the United States Supreme Court is scheduled to hear a challenge 
to the Antiquities Act, which contends that it is the most abused of the federal land statutes, particularly 
important in the western states where the intermingling of federal lands and local economies is extensive 
and intricate; and 

 
WHEREAS many of New Mexico's businesses and its citizens are involved in or otherwise depend 

on industries that utilize federal lands and their resources, including the oil and gas industry, livestock 
grazing, mining and mineral development, recreational industries, hunting, fishing, and other outdoor 
recreation; and 

 
WHEREAS, these industries are important components of the New Mexico economy, and are 

major contributors to the economic and social wellbeing of our Counties and their citizens. 
 

           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Lincoln 
County, New Mexico, as follows: 
 

1. The Board fully supports LUNA County, New Mexico, and its residents, in their opposition to the 
designation of approximately 245,000 acres as the Mimbres Peaks National Monument. 
 

2. The Board opposes the 30 x 30, America the Beautiful, and Agenda 2030 programs, including the 
objective of permanently preserving 30 percent of the Nation's lands in their natural state by 2030, 
or any similar program that will set aside and prevent the productive use of millions of acres of our 
lands. 

 
3. The Board further opposes the designation of lands, whether private lands or government lands, in 

New Mexico as national monuments, wilderness, wilderness study areas, wildlife preserves, open 
space, or other conservation land, thereby restricting public access to such lands and preventing the 
development and productive use of the resources on or within such lands. 
 

4. The Board opposes any federal rulemaking, by the Bureau of Land Management, or any federal 
agency, which promotes any non-tangible status goals on public lands as a valid multiple use for 
those lands.  
 

5. The Board does not support any monetization of America's natural assets (i.e. natural processes or 
ecosystem services), or the practice of allowing outside investors and foreign interests to have any 
ownership in those things which belong wholly to the American people. 

 
6. The Board supports the continued private ownership of land in New Mexico, recognizing the 

Nation's need for domestic sources of minerals, energy, timber, food, and fiber. 
 

7. The Board recognizes and supports the State of New Mexico’s water rights system, and other state 
laws and programs governing water rights and water use and opposes any federal designation of 
waters and watercourses within the State that would impair or restrict water diversions and uses 
authorized under New Mexico law. 

 
8. The Board supports reasonable national, regional, and global greenhouse gas emissions policies 

and goals that are comprehensive, practical, cost-effective, and do not unnecessarily single out 
specific industries or activities but opposes the use of global climate change as an excuse to set 
aside large tracts of land as preserves or open space to fulfill the 30 x 30 program's objectives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ADOPTED, PASSED AND SIGNED the 20th of February, 2024. 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
LINCOLN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
 
 
                                          
Todd F. Proctor, Chairman     For/Against  Jon F. Crunk, Vice Chairman    For/Against 

 

 

                                                                         
Samantha J. Serna, Member     For/Against  Pierre S. Pfeffer, Member   For/Against 

 

 

                                    
Mark Fischer, Member    For/Against 

   

        ATTEST: 

 

              

        Shannan Hemphill, County Clerk 

 

                         

 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15 

 

SUBJECT: 

Approval of Resolution No. 2024-45 Lincoln County Support for a Regional Approach 
to Addressing ISO and Working Together as a County to Work Through Projects to 
Mitigate Wildfire and Provide Increased Services to Lincoln County Residents.  
 



RESOLUTION 2024-45 
 

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A REGIONAL TRAINING CENTER AND REGIONAL 
APPROACH TO MITIGATING WILDFIRE, INCREASING SERVICE PROVISION, AND 

ADDRESSING ISO CHALLENGES 

WHEREAS, Lincoln County New Mexico is a rural county identified by FEMA as one of 
the most at-risk counties in the United States for wildfire; and  

WHEREAS, Lincoln County is in a multi-terrain geographical area consisting of 
mountains and valleys where the terrain provides unique challenges to fighting fires; and  

WHEREAS, Lincoln County has a county-wide Office of Emergency Services and seven 
(7) volunteer fire departments including Arabela, Bonito, Glencoe, Hondo, Lincoln, Nogal, and 
White Oaks; and   
 WHEREAS, Lincoln County is committed to providing exemplary public service, 
addressing Lincoln County’s unique challenges, and working together in partnership with Lincoln 
County’s fire departments to form a regional approach; and  
 WHEREAS, Lincoln County and the local volunteer fire departments support projects for 
the area to mitigate wildfire and improve service provision by lowering ISO scores through 
collaborative action including, but not limited to, strategic placement of hydrants, creating a 
regional strategic plan for each fire department and county-wide initiatives, working to address 
water capacity, increasing training opportunities, and recruiting additional personnel; and  
 WHEREAS, one of the regional projects is to analyze ISO and individual fire department 
data, combined with the County’s Office of Emergency Services’ data to create a regional strategic 
plan; and  
 WHEREAS, another regional project is to work together to design, fund, and build a 
regional training facility center that encompasses fire training school, emergency services training, 
and other law enforcement training initiatives that can be used by Lincoln County, its fire 
departments, and neighboring counties which will also include a new Office of Emergency 
Services building to house new model ambulances; and  
 WHEREAS the proposed state-of-the-art training facility will offer a local regional 
approach by providing easier access for Lincoln County and its neighbors to engage in training 
opportunities including wildfire mitigation, as well as the opportunity to collaborate with others.  
 
ADOPTED, PASSED AND SIGNED the 20th of February, 2024. 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
LINCOLN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

 
                                                     

Todd F. Proctor, Chairman      For/Against    Jon F. Crunk, Vice Chairman     For/Against 

 

                                                     

Samantha J. Serna, Member      For/Against    Pierre S. Pfeffer, Member    For/Against 

 

                                

Mark G. Fischer, Member      For/Against    ATTEST: 

                         

              Shannan Hemphill, County Clerk 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16 

 

SUBJECT: 

Recognition of the Support Letters for Resolution 2024-45 
 







Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17 

 

SUBJECT: 

10:30 am: Certified Local Government Presentation by Dr. Oliver Horn – Regional 
Manager of the Lincoln and Fort Stanton Historic Sites 
 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18 

 

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Approval of the Procurement of a New Sound and Video System for the 
Commission Chambers [Request by Commissioner Crunk] 
 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 19 

 

SUBJECT: 

Approval of a Support Letter for Mr. Eddie Ryan as Film Liaison for Lincoln County 



Village of Ruidoso Film Office 



Overview
➲Village of Ruidoso Film Office (VRFO) operates under State of 
NM/EDD as part of the NM Film Office's Statewide Liaison Network.

➲VRFO plans to join the Association of Film Commissioners 
International (AFCI).  AFCI is the world server to the studio film 
industry.

➲A sanctioned government endorsed liaison can provide services to 
all types of filmmakers making films & projects in Lincoln county.

➲Intent is to grow the local film economy by film services, awareness 
and education.



Long‐Term Goals
➲Increase the number and economic impact of filmmaking and film 
tourism $'s locally.

➲Facts: 80 % of full‐time film crews are now NM residents. FY2023 
median wage for NM crew was $35.51 per hr.  All other NM 
industries median wage is $19.19 per hr. with $13 being NM 
minimum wage at this time. 

➲Grow the NM Film Industry by partnering with ENMU‐Ruidoso to 
educate students in film careers/paths/skills available in the local 
NM film industry in Lincoln County.        



2024 Film Update ‐ NM Film Office



New Mexico Film Industry Testimonials



The Present Situation
• The NM film industry remains steel‐strong. During the recent 

industry strikes northern NM studios were booked up for film 
industry work to resume quickly. 

• This was good news for all southern NM. Filmmakers have now 
turned to non‐studio locations in our areas. 

• Lincoln County is a favorite of the independent filmmaker. Scouts 
have tripled and (2) independents have made entire movies here in 
the last 2 yrs. “The Best Man” action film at Mescalero and “The 
Christmas Classic” at Ski Apache and in Ruidoso. Tourism & 
attractions filming is ongoing in our area.

• A 40% “Rural Uplift” was added by legislature to state incentives for 
filmmaking in Lincoln and other rural counties.

• https://www.imdb.com/title/tt13400336/mediaviewer/rm3605017601/?ref_=tt_ov_i



Recent TV ‐ Film ‐ SVOD ‐ Projects



Over 113 Years‐ Film History in S. NM

The Dude in 1911 (Filmed @ Cox Ranch‐Organ)
Stars:
Leo White  John B. O’Brien  Gladys Field
Production company:  Powers Picture Plays
Silent   Short   Western

Fool's Gold in 1911 (Filmed in Alamogordo, NM USA)
Stars:
Thomas McMahon   Jesse Robinson
Production company: Powers Picture Plays
Silent   Short   Western

Brothers  in 1911  (Filmed in Alamogordo, NM USA)
Stars:
Gladys Field   Mrs. J.E. Macklin   Jack O'Brian
Production company: Powers Picture Plays – Powers Stock Company
Silent   Short   Western

**Southern NM is older in Film than it is in Statehood:  NM Statehood‐1912** 



Requested Endorsement
➲Requesting endorsement of Eddie Ryan as both the VRFO and Lincoln 
County Liaison to the NM state Film Office. (Village & County)

➲ Requesting that VRFO now also be the LCFO per your endorsement. 
(Feature Logo)

➲Requesting that Lincoln County Film Office work with all town liaisons 
in Lincoln County. 

➲Requesting to submit film reports as needed to County 
administration/commission.

➲Requesting endorsement of LCFO in film education held at ENMU‐
Ruidoso.



 

Lincoln County Commission 
300 Central Avenue 
P.O. Box 711                                                                                            Phone: (575) 648-2385 
Carrizozo, NM   88301                                                                           www.lincolncountynm.gov 
 
 
February 20, 2024 
 
 
NM Film Office 
Attn: Amber Dodson, Director 
1100 St. Francis Drive, Suite 1213 
First Floor, Joseph Montoya Bldg. 
Santa Fe, NM87505 
 
Re: Endorsement for Eddie Ryan as Film Liaison for Lincoln County 
 
Dear Ms. Amber Dodson: 
    
     As an authorized representative for Lincoln County, I endorse Eddie Ryan, Film Liaison-Lincoln 
County, to act as the State Film Liaison for the County of Lincoln and to assist the New Mexico Film 
Office in accordance with the Film Office’s guidelines.  I understand this person will now act as a contact 
for the film and television industry per this program.  
 
I understand that the New Mexico Film Office may at any time request a replacement of this liaison if the 
film office determines non-compliance of the guidelines.   
 
I also understand that this endorsement stays in effect approximately two (2) years and expires at the end  
of the following state fiscal year which is June 30th, 2026. 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
_______________________________________    
Makayla Zonfrilli 
Lincoln County Manager 
 
Cc: Eddie Ryan 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 20 

 

SUBJECT: 

Office of Emergency Services: 
a. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between the County of 

Lincoln and Otero County Electric Co-Op Buck Mountain Tower Site (Tower or 
Tower Premises) 

b. Approval to Purchase Bunker Gear for Lincoln Volunteer Fire Department not to 
exceed $26,492.75. 

c. Discussion and Appointment of the Lincoln County Office of Emergency 
Services Director in accordance with NM Statute 12-10-5.   

 



MOU-County of Lincoln/OCEC: Buck Mountain Tower  1 of 7 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 
LINCOLN COUNTY 

AND 
OTERO COUNTY ELECTRIC COOP 

BUCK MOUNTAIN TOWER SITE (Tower or Tower premises) 
 

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) is hereby made and entered 
 into by and between Lincoln County (County) and Otero County Electric Coop (OCEC), 
collectively the Parties (or Party). 

 
WHEREAS the Parties desire to work together to provide communication facilities and 
systems which assist the health, well-being and general welfare of the citizens of the 
County; and 

 
WHEREAS it is in the best interests of both Parties and the citizens of the County to 
achieve a common goal of providing optimal communication systems in the County. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 
A. PURPOSE: 

 
The purpose of this MOU is to provide a framework for cooperation upon which the 
Parties may jointly plan and accomplish mutually beneficial projects and activities for 
communication systems at the Tower, located at the Buck Mountain Communications 
Site, County of Lincoln, State of New Mexico (Site). Such activities and projects would 
complement the missions of the Parties and be in the best interest of the public. 
Together the Parties will consider projects and activities that achieve the common 
goals of establishing and maintaining effective communication systems. 

 
B. STATEMENT OF MUTUAL BENEFIT AND INTERESTS: 

 
The partners are committed to reducing problems related to communication systems 
and improve community protection and safety. The Parties share a common interest 
in continuing to develop and strengthen cooperative relationships. 

 
C. OCEC SHALL: 

 
1. Install at the Site capital improvements as funds are available for communications 
infrastructure, such as phone, internet, and WI-FI for use by the County. 
 
2. Hire a licensed and insured installer, trained in the installation of said equipment 

to perform all necessary work, provided that access to the Site premises will be 
granted to said installer only after providing written notice to County of OCEC's 
intent to access the Site, and receiving written permission from County to proceed. 

 



MOU-County of Lincoln/OCEC: Buck Mountain Tower  2 of 7 

3. Agree to discuss future commitments of personnel, resources and monetary 
expenditures not defined in this MOU with County and enter into a separate written 
amendment hereto setting forth the agreed upon amendments. 

 
4. Assume all costs for installation, maintenance and any other fees related to the care and 

upkeep of any equipment OCEC installs on or near the Site premises. 
 

5. Supply phone and internet service to include WI-FI at the Site. 

 
6. Service the on-Site generator and be responsible for ensuring that the propane tank 

is full at OCEC’s cost. 
 

7. Purchase and install Radios and Antennas for the OCEC System including, but 

not limited to, the following equipment: 
a. Two (2) 100 Amp AGM Batteries 
b. One (1) Kenwood TK-850 UHF Repeater 
c. One (1) Kenwood TK-751 VHF Repeater 
d. Two (2) Poly Phaser Lightning Protectors 
e. Two (2) Duplexers (VHF and UHF) 
f. Cables, fuses and other items necessary for operation 
g. One (1) 19-inch Equipment Rack 
h. Co-ax from building to Tower: 2 leads (I-UHF, 1 VHF) hung at 40 feet 

and 50 feet on Tower; with the following lengths: 
i. UHF antenna of 42 inches in length 
ii. VHF antenna of 60 inches in length 
 

8. License equipment on the existing and/or future OCEC frequencies. 
 

9. Ensure that radio equipment will not interfere with equipment operating on the 
existing County licensed frequencies of 154.980 for transmit and 154.025 for 
receive during Fire Department operations, 155.310 for transmit and 156.090 for 
receive during Sheriff's Office operations and 156.180 for transmit and 159.015 
for receive on Public Works (road shop) operations. OCEC agrees that existing 
County licensed frequencies shall take precedence over OCEC's equipment at all 
times. 

 
10. Ensure that the installation and operation of any OCEC equipment shall in no way 

limit the County’s use of the Site or other real property and shall in no way inhibit or 
limit the use of any other lawfully installed equipment by any other tenants. 

 

11. Ensure that, should service be interrupted due to OCEC battery failure, acts of God, 
equipment failure or any other cause of interruption, OCEC shall make repairs to 
their equipment and any damage sustained at the Site premises due to OCEC 
equipment failure at their own expense. 

 

12. Ensure all installed OCEC equipment is licensed with the Federal Communications 



MOU-County of Lincoln/OCEC: Buck Mountain Tower  3 of 7 

Commission (FCC), and that OCEC equipment will not interfere with any existing 
equipment at the Site. 

 
D. COUNTY SHALL: 

 
1. Maintain the County's existing current equipment including but not limited to; 12  
 volt batteries, building and tower, and any future equipment. 
 
2. Remove excess, inadequate or aged equipment at the Site. 

 
E. VALUE TO COUNTY: 

 
The benefit to the County of the provisions set forth in this MOU is equal or greater 

than the benefits received by OCEC through the provisions of this MOU and as such, do not 
violate the New Mexico Constitution, Article IX Section 14. 

 

F. IT IS MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE 
PARTIES THAT: 

 
1. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT (FOA). Any information furnished 
to the Parties under this MOU is subject to the Freedom of Information Act (5 
U.S.C.552). 

 
2. PARTICIPATION IN SIMILAR ACTIVITIES. This MOU in no way 
restricts the Parties from participating in similar activities with other public or 
private agencies, organizations, and individuals. 
 
3. COMMENCEMENT/EXPIRATION/ TERMINATION. 

 
A. This MOU takes effect upon the last date of signature of the Parties 
and shall remain in effect for five (5) years from the date of execution. 
Either Party may terminate this MOU at any time with a (60) day written 
notice to the other(s). County has the unilateral right not to extend or renew 
this MOU. 

 
B. Upon termination, neither Party will have any further obligation 
under the terms of this MOU, except OCEC shall be responsible for 
removing all of its equipment from the Tower premises and restoring the 
areas occupied by OCEC to as near as practicable to their original 
condition, save and except normal wear and tear and acts beyond OCEC's 
control. 

 
C. The parties agree that OCEC’s right to terminate may occur with 
sixty (60) days' written notice as set forth above if the approval of any 
agency, board, court, or other governmental authority necessary for the  

 
operation of OCEC's equipment at the Tower premises cannot be obtained, 



MOU-County of Lincoln/OCEC: Buck Mountain Tower  4 of 7 

or is revoked, or if OCEC determines the cost of obtaining or retaining such  
approval is prohibitive. 

 
D. In the event of OCEC's or County's failure to comply with any other 
material provision of this MOU, either Party may, at its option, terminate 
this MOU by providing the other Party sixty (60) days' written notice, and 
receive any other damages to which either Party may be entitled. Should 
either Party be entitled to collect damages and be forced to do so through 
its attorney, or by other legal procedures, the Party who is in receipt of a 
favorable ruling, shall be entitled to its reasonable costs and attorney fees 
thereby incurred upon said collection. 

 
4. AMENDMENTS. This MOU shall not be altered or changed, except by 
written or amended instrument signed by both parties. 

 

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTIES. The Parties and their respective 
agencies and offices will handle their own activities and utilize their own resources, 
including the expenditure of their own funds, in pursuing these objectives. Each party 
will carry out its separate activities in a coordinated and mutually beneficial manner. 

 
6. INDEMNIFICATION. OCEC agrees to indemnify and save County harmless 
from all claims (including costs and expenses of defending against such claims) 
arising or alleged to arise from the negligence or willful misconduct of OCEC or 
OCEC's agents, employees or contractors occurring during the term of this MOU (or 
extensions) in or about the Site premises. OCEC agrees to use the Site premises at its 
own risk and hereby releases Lincoln County, its agents and employees, from all 
claims for any damage or injury brought on by OCEC to the full extent permitted by 
law. County in turn agrees to indemnify and save OCEC harmless from all claims 
(including cost and expenses of defending against such claims) arising or alleged to 
arise from the negligence or willful misconduct of County and County's agents, 
employees, contractors or other tenants of County occurring during the term (or 
extension) of this MOU. 

 
7. INSURANCE. OCEC shall, at its expense, maintain in force during the 
term of this MOU, a combined single limit policy of bodily injury and property 
damage insurance, with a limit of not less than $5,000,000.00 insuring County and 
OCEC against all liability arising out of the use, occupancy, or maintenance of the 
Site premises and appurtenant areas, which policy shall be endorsed as a primary 
insurance as to County and name County as an additional insured. 

   
8. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING. OCEC may not assign or sublet the 
Site premises or any part thereof without written approval, which County has the right 
to deny. 

 
 

9. NON-FUND OBLIGATING DOCUMENT.  Nothing in this MOU shall 



MOU-County of Lincoln/OCEC: Buck Mountain Tower  5 of 7 

obligate either Party to obligate or transfer any funds. Specific work projects or 
activities that involve the transfer of funds, services, or property among the various 
agencies and offices of the Parties will require execution of separate agreements and 
be contingent upon the availability of appropriated funds. Such activities must be 
independently authorized by appropriate statutory authority. This MOU does not 
provide such authority. Negotiation, execution, and administration of each such 
agreement must comply with all applicable statutes and regulations. 

 
10. ESTABLISHMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY. This MOU is not intended to 
and does not create, any right, benefit, or trust responsibility, substantive or 
procedural, enforceable at law or equity, by a party against the United States, the 
State of New Mexico or any county therein, or its agencies, its officers, or any person, 
except as explicitly provided herein.  

 
11. APPLICABLE LAW. This MOU shall be construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the County of Lincoln and the State of New Mexico. 

 
12. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINATION. OCEC agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless County and it successors or assignees from any and all claims, actions, 
causes of action, demands, rights, damages, costs, and expenses, including claims for 
contribution, which OCEC now has or which hereinafter may accrue on account of or 
in any way growing out of the environmental contamination of the Site premises or any 
surrounding properties which may have suffered contamination to the extent such 
arise as a result of OCEC's activities on the Site premises. Responsibility for the 
cleanup of any environmental contamination to the Site premises caused by OCEC 
shall remain with OCEC and shall not transfer to Lincoln County, its successors and 
assigns. 

 
13. INTERFERENCE. Notwithstanding anything in this MOU to the contrary, it is 
expressly understood and agreed that if the installation or operation of OCEC's 
equipment shall interfere: 

 
a. with other radio communication systems and equipment installed prior 
to the commencement date of this MOU, OCEC shall upon request (verbal or 
otherwise) immediately suspend its operations (except for intermittent testing) 
and do whatever County deems reasonably necessary to eliminate or remedy 
such interference.  If it is determined that such interference cannot be rectified, 
then either party may, at its option, terminate this MOU upon thirty (30) days' 
prior written notice to the other, whereupon OCEC shall remove its equipment 
at its sole cost and expense. 
 
b. with any other radio communications systems and equipment installed 
at the Tower premises after the commencement date of this MOU, OCEC shall 
cooperate fully with County and any future tenant or licensee injured by 
OCEC's interference (Future Party) to remedy the interference. OCEC shall 
do whatever County deems reasonably necessary to cure such interference, 
provided, however, that all costs related to remedying such interference shall 



MOU-County of Lincoln/OCEC: Buck Mountain Tower  6 of 7 

be the responsibility of the Future Party, unless such interference is due to 
failure, defects or deficiencies in OCEC's system, equipment or installation. 

 
OCEC hereby acknowledges that County has licensed and/or leased and will 
continue to license and/or lease, space at and upon the Tower Site to third 
parties for the installation and operation of radio communication facilities. 
OCEC accepts this MOU with this knowledge and waives any and all claims 
against County resulting from or attributable to interference caused by present 
or future equipment, facilities or methods of operation employed by County 
in its business upon the Tower premises. OCEC also waives any and all claims 
against County arising from interference resulting to OCEC by virtue of 
equipment, facilities or operations employed by any other licensee or tenant 
of County in its business upon the Tower Site. In the event that any such 
interference occurs that materially interferes with OCEC's utilization of the 
Tower Site, OCEC, at its sole remedy, in lieu of any and all other remedies at 
law, or in equity, may terminate this Agreement at any time thereafter by 
giving County thirty (30) days' prior written notice to that effect, and such 
termination shall be effective at the end of such thirty (30) day period, 
provided, however, that such termination will not be effective if County 
eliminates such interference within thirty (30) days of ECEC’s termination 
notice. 
 

14. NOTICE. Any notice shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand or sent 
by United States Registered or Certified Mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 

Otero County Electric Co-op 
Cheryl Gililland, or her 
successor 
IT Manager 
P.O. Box 227 
Cloudcroft, NM 88317 
Phone: (575) 682-2521 
Facsimile: (575) 682-3109 
email: cherylg@ote-coop.com 
 
Administrative Contact 
Mario Romero 
General Manager, OCEC 
P.O. Box 227 
Cloudcroft, NM 88317 
Phone: (575) 682-2521 
Facsimile: (575) 682-3109 
email: marior@ote.coop.com 

County of Lincoln 
Makayla Zonfrilli 
County Manager 
P.O. Box 711 
Carrizozo, NM 88301 
Phone: (575) 808-1379 
Facsimile:  (575) 648-4182 
email: mzonfrilli@lincolncountynm.gov  

 
 

 
 
 



MOU-County of Lincoln/OCEC: Buck Mountain Tower  7 of 7 

15. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. By signing below, the parties certify that the 
individuals listed in this document as representatives of the parties are authorized to act in their 
respective areas for matters related to this MOU. 
 
THE PARTIES HERETO have executed this Memorandum of Understanding to be effective as of 
the last date of signature of the parties hereto. 
 
 
 
OTERO COUNTY ELECTRIC    COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
COOPERATIVE 
 
 
______________________________    _________________________ 
By: Cheryl Gilliland     By: Makayla Zonfrilli 
Its: IT Manager      Its: County Manager 
 
Date:_________________________    Date:_____________________ 

















2021 New Mexico Statutes
Chapter 12 - Miscellaneous Public
Affairs Matters
Article 10 - All Hazard Emergency
Management
Section 12-10-5 - Local emergency
management.

Universal Citation: NM Stat § 12-10-5 (2021)

The governing bodies of the political subdivisions of the state are responsible for the all
hazard emergency management of their respective jurisdictions. Each political subdivision
is authorized to establish, by ordinance or resolution, a local office of emergency
management as an agency of the local government and responsible to the governing body,
in accordance with the state emergency operations plan and program. Every local
coordinator of emergency management shall be appointed by the governing body, subject
to the approval of the state director of homeland security and emergency management, and
the local coordinator shall have direct responsibility for carrying out the all hazard
emergency management program of the political subdivision. The state director shall
coordinate the emergency management activities of all local governmental departments
and agencies and shall maintain liaison with and cooperate with emergency management
agencies and organizations of other political subdivisions and of the state government.
Each local organization shall perform emergency management functions within the
territorial limits of the political subdivision within which it is organized.

Go to previous versions of this Section

https://law.justia.com/citations.html


History: 1953 Comp., § 9-13-20, enacted by Laws 1959, ch. 190, § 6; 1973, ch. 247, § 5;
2007, ch. 291, § 13.

ANNOTATIONS

The 2007 amendment, effective July 1, 2007, changed references to the "civil emergency
preparedness" to the "all hazard emergency management".

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or
adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.

https://law.justia.com/codes/states.html
https://policies.google.com/privacy
https://policies.google.com/terms


Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 21 

 

SUBJECT: 

Approval to go out for Formal Bid for the Following: 
a. New Emergency Communications Site on Gallinas Peak Near Corona, NM in the 

Amount of $524,000.00 
b. White Oaks Volunteer Fire Department Building Extension in the Amount of 

$225,000.00 
c. Hondo Volunteer Fire Department Main Station Water Storage in the Amount of 

$300,000.00 
d. Glencoe Volunteer Fire Department Station #1 Water Storage in the Amount of 

$300,000.00 
e. Glencoe Volunteer Fire Department Brush Truck Not to Exceed $250,000.00 



















































































Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 22 

 

SUBJECT: 

Lincoln County Road Department 

a. Project Road Updates 
1. Road Superintendent 
2. Renegade  

 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 23 

 

 

SUBJECT: 

Finance:  
a. Approval of Budget Adjustment FY 23/24 by Resolution 2024-41 
b. 1:00 pm: Audit presentation from Daniel Trujillo, CPA 
c. Approval of Resolution 2024-42 a Resolution Accepting and Acknowledging FY 22/23 

Financial Audit 
d. Approval of Budget Preparation Procedures and Schedule 

 



Fund DFA Line # Description Revenues Expenses Transfer In Transfer Out

General General

401‐00‐1262 11000‐0001‐46060 Reimbursement / Refunds 10,000.00$               

401‐00‐1180 11000‐0001‐46030 Interest Earned 500,000.00$            

401‐16‐2013 11000‐2007‐52080 Group Insurance‐ Bureau of Elections 10,000.00$                       

Subtotal 510,000.00$             10,000.00$                        ‐$                           ‐$                          

Road Road

402‐00‐1262 20400‐0001‐46060 Reimbursement / Refunds 15,000.00$               

Subtotal 15,000.00$               ‐$                                    ‐$                           ‐$                          

Lincoln Fire Lincoln Fire

410‐48‐2905 20900‐3002‐58999 Capout‐ Bunker Gear 18,106.00$                       

Subtotal ‐$                           18,106.00$                        ‐$                           ‐$                          

Fire Service Admin OES Fire Service Admin OES

424‐00‐1262 20900‐0001‐46060 Reimbursement PY Grant Funds 12,710.70$               

424‐69‐2188 20900‐3002‐56090 Equipment Safety / Uniforms 12,710.70$                       

Subtotal 12,710.70$               12,710.70$                        ‐$                           ‐$                          

Corrections Fund Corrections Fund

450‐00‐1018 22600‐0001‐47160 State Appropriation  55,030.00$               

450‐00‐1311 22600‐0001‐47530 Housing of Prisoners 200,000.00$            

Subtotal 255,030.00$             ‐$                                    ‐$                           ‐$                          

Solid Waste Solid Waste

564‐00‐1140 50200‐0001‐44280 Solid Waste Fees 60,000.00$               

564‐00‐0949 50200‐0001‐44990 Solid Waste GRT 3,000.00$                 

564‐00‐1052 50200‐0001‐44010 Liens 2,500.00$                 

564‐00‐1563 50200‐0001‐46900 Late Fees  4,000.00$                 

Subtotal 69,500.00$               ‐$                                    ‐$                           ‐$                          

COLONIAS #2 COLONIAS #2

686‐00‐1658 29900‐0001‐47398 Colonias Grant #2 150,000.00$            

Subtotal 150,000.00$             ‐$                                    ‐$                           ‐$                          
LEDA LEDA

604‐00‐1246 79900‐0001‐46900 LEDA PROJECT LC0‐2023‐18‐R NOISY WATER 225,000.00$            

604‐00‐3000 79900‐2002‐57999 LEDA PROJECT PROJECT 225,000.00$                     

Subtotal 225,000.00$             225,000.00$                      ‐$                           ‐$                          

TOTAL 1,237,240.70$          265,816.70$                      ‐$                           ‐$                          

WHEREAS, the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners, meeting in a regular session on February 20, 2024 did review requests for adjustments to the 2023‐

24 Budget; and

WHEREAS, it was determined that the proposed budget adjustments would be beneficial for the citizens of Lincoln County;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration is respectfully requested to approve this resolution 

with the following adjustments;

LINCOLN COUNTY COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. 2024‐41

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FY 2023‐2024



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th, February 2024.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR

THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN,

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

ATTEST:

Shannan Hemphill, County Clerk

Todd Proctor, Chairman            For/Against

Pierre S. Pfeffer, Member                                  For/Against

Mark G. Fischer, Member         For/Against

Samantha J. Serna, Member   For/Against

Jon Crunk, Vice Chairman                               For/Against



RESOLUTION 2024-42 

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING &  
ACCEPTING THE FY2023 AUDIT 

FOR LINCOLN COUNTY 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners, meeting in a regular session in February 
20, 2024 did have the FY23 Audit presented to the Governing Body per Section 2.2.2.10M.(4) NMAC 
of the Audit Rule states in part” once the audit report is officially released to the agency by the state 
auditor (by a release letter) and the required waiting period of five calendar days has passed, unless 
waived by the agency in writing, the audit report shall be presented by the IPA, to a quorum of the 
governing authority of the agency at a meeting held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, if 
applicable.  This requirement only applies to agencies with a governing authority, such as a board of 
directors, board of county commissioners, or city council, which is subject to the Open Meetings 
Act…”; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners 
hereby respectfully acknowledges and accepts the Fiscal Year 2023 audit findings and management’s 
responses for correcting the findings. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of February, 2024. 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
LINCOLN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
 
 
                                      
Todd F. Proctor, Chairman     For/Against  Jon F. Crunk, Vice Chairman    For/Against 

 

                                      
Samantha J. Serna, Member     For/Against  Pierre S. Pfeffer, Member   For/Against 

 

                      
Mark Fischer, Member    For/Against 

   

        ATTEST: 
 

             

        Shannan Hemphill, County Clerk 



       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  23d 
 
February 13, 2024 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  County Commissioners 
 
FROM: Makayla Zonfrilli (MK), Lincoln County Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Preparation Procedures and Schedule 
 
Purpose: To obtain commission approval of the timeline and procedures to be used in FY 2024-2025 

budget & preparation. 
 
Discussion: 
Attached, as Exhibit 1, is a draft memorandum that will be sent to the Lincoln County Department Heads, 
Elected Public Officials and Volunteer Fire departments outlining my recommended budget timeline and 
procedures. 
 
Attached letter, as Exhibit 2, to external agencies listed below for their requested input to our budget upon 
commission approval. 

 

   
Boys & Girls Clubs of Chaves & Lincoln Counties  Capitan Public Library 
Community Foundation of Lincoln County   Corona Public Library 
EcoServants       Kid’s Inc. Child Advocacy Center 
Lincoln County Humane Society    Lincoln County Juvenile Justice Board 
NM State Library Rural Bookmobile    NMSU Extension Office 
Noxious Weed Program     Region 9 School Based Health Center 
Ruidoso Public Library      SNMEDD 
South Central Mountain RC&D    USDA Predator Control/Wildlife 
White Mountain Search & Rescue  

 

Recommendation: Approve the procedures and timeline.  



       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 
February 7, 2024 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Lincoln County Department Heads, Public Officials and Volunteer Fire  
  Departments 
 
FROM: Makayla Zonfrilli (MK), Lincoln County Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Schedule for FY 2024-2025 Budget Discussion 
 
The following schedule has been approved by the Board of County Commissioners for preparation of the FY 2024-2025. 
 

Internal staff preparation     April 2-4, 2024 
Special Meeting for review by Commissioners &   April 30, 2024 
       Opportunity for Special Program Presentations 
       (External Agencies & Department Heads) 
Submit Preliminary Budget to Commissioners for Approval May 21, 2024 
Submit preliminary budget to DFA - Deadline   June 1, 2024 
Preliminary Budget approval letter granted by DFA  July 1, 2024 
Final Budget hearing with any final adjustments   July 18, 2024 
Forward final budget to DFA     July 31, 2024 
(Includes Any Revisions to LGBMS, Budget  
Supporting Schedules, 4th QTR Report & Resolution) 
Load final budget into accounting system   Upon DFA Approval 
DFA reviews and certifies budget    September 2024 

 
External agencies seeking financial assistance have submitted their requests. 
 
Attached is a budget sheet of my initial estimate for your respective departments.  Please use these estimations as a 
starting point for our review on April 2-4, 2024 and bring requests for significant capital outlay items to the workshop.  If 
there are revenues associated with your department, please adjust that portion of the budget sheet.  Finance has already 
posted the personnel costs to your respective sheets. 
 
The following internal schedule of departmental budget workshops in the Commission Chambers is requested: 
 
April 2, 2024 
 10:00 am General Fund 401-01 thru 401-09 
 11:00 am Senior Center  

1:00 am  Detention Center 
  3:00 pm   Planning/GIS/Indigent/Solid Waste  
   
April 3, 2024 
   9:00 am Road Department /Rural Addressing 
 10:30 am Law Enforcement /HIDTA 
  
 
 
 



 
 
 
  1: 00 pm County Assessor   

   2:00 pm County Treasurer 
   3:00 pm  County Clerk 
   
April 4, 2024 
 8:30 am  LCOES 

9:00 am  Arabela Fire 
 9:30 am  Bonito Fire 
 10:00 am Glencoe Fire 
  10:30am  Hondo Fire 
 11:00 am Nogal Fire 
 11:30 am Lincoln Fire 
 12:00 am White Oaks 
 
Additional sessions may be scheduled to capture additional requests.  Please come prepared to address general capital 
outlay requirements for the coming year. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
(MK)Makayla Zonfrilli 
County Manager 
 

 

 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 24 

 

 

SUBJECT: 

  Manager’s Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  







     

CCountyy off Lincolnn   
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385

www.lincolncountynm.gov

Director’s  Report    Date: ________________________ 

Name: _______________________________  Department: __________________  

Vacancies in Department: ________________________________________________________ 

Activities:

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Future Projects / Plans:

____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

2/15/24

Arron Griewahn OES

0

January had 29 calls for service - 2 brush fire, 4 false alarms, 9 MVA's, 5 fire alarms, 1 CO alarms,

4 control burns, 2 public/law enforcement assist, 1 search and rescue, 1 trash fire

Hosted a Traffic Incident Managment Safety class instructed by the NM State Fire Marshal's Office on Jan. 20

at Copper Ridge

Hosted a drone operations class on Feb. 1 at the Hondo Fore Station

Deployed our mobile tower trailer to Otero County to support the dirt bike race held Feb. 16-18

Nogal VFD recieved their new fire command unit Feb. 15

White Oaks, Glencoe, and Lincoln have all scheduled their pre-ISO and state inspections to be held in March.

Meeting with Dayco Fire Equipment on Feb. 16 to see draft drawings and initial quote of updated fire training facility.

Brian, Jake, and Arron will be attending a live fire instructor class Feb 21-23 in Carlsbad

Begin working on pre plans for Glencoe VFD and updating Automatic Aid Agreements to support the departments recieving 

ISO inspections this year.



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 25 

 

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Approval or Disapproval of the proposed Longevity, Seniority, and Leap 
Frog Policy 
 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 26 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Consideration and Approval of Applicant and Salary to Fill the Open Employment 
Position of Project Manager 
 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 27 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Approval to Correct an Administrative Oversight Regarding the Road Department’s 
Administrative Assistant/Secretary Position from a Tier 6 to a Tier 9 Moving the Position 
from $23.6308 to $28.2078 
 



 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN 

Job Description Form 
 
Division/Department: Road 
 
Job Title:  Administrative Assistant/Secretary                              Reports to: Road Superintendent 
 
Level/Grade: Tier 6 Tier 9 
  Min   Mid   Max 
$17.70  22.13  26.55/hryl   

$20.98  26.22  31.46/hlry 

 

 
Type of position: 
✓    Full-time 
 Part-time 
 Temporary/Seasonal 
 Emergency Hire   
 Grant/Contract   

 
Hours_____/Week   
✓Classified 
 Unclassified                

General Description: 
This position provides technical secretarial support for the Road Department, including secretarial duties such as preparing 
typed documents pertaining to road projects. Assist the Road Superintendent with updating and maintaining current 
requirements for required public notifications under bid procurement; process; road closures; emergency closures, etc.  Type 
letters, memoranda, reports, etc., from dictated, handwritten, or other sources; organize and maintain road department files and 
records, answer telephones and directs calls to appropriate personnel, and handles calls if knowledgeable on the subject under 
discussion; collect fees for permits, etc.,  meets public, provides general information and records, and deals effectively with a 
variety of personalities and situations requiring tact, judgment, and poise; respond to radio calls from Road Department and 
other personnel, relaying messages and responding to needs of personnel.  The employee helps prepare and submit annual 
cooperative proposals to the New Mexico Transportation Department; assist with all general correspondence and compiles all 
information dealing with the projects from daily activity work reports submitted by the Road Crew; and prepares and submits 
the final report to the State for reimbursement on the finished projects.  Responsible for assembling information and preparing 
payroll time sheets, preparing travel and reimbursement vouchers; assists with filing insurance and accident reports; and enter 
daily road maintenance activity reports and other data requested.  The employee is responsible for obtaining purchase orders 
and also assists with proposals when items are put up for bid.  The employee is responsible for all maintenance of office 
equipment, computer operations; and budget preparations for the department. The employee must know and understand the 
County Personnel Policy and all County and departmental policies pertinent to the position and perform all duties with minimal 
supervision; possibly be required to work irregular hours; attend job-related meetings and out of town training; and perform 
other duties as assigned. 
General Description for Rural Addressing: 
The employee performs a variety of general clerical duties, including routine computer data entry, fabrication of various County 
signs; Field work to include installing road and address signage.  Possible long daily drive times in County vehicle.  The 
employee will organize supplies/signs inventory; is responsible for cash and receipts; prepares deposits daily or as necessary, 
in accordance with County regulations.  Employee must perform all duties with minimal supervision; may be required to work 
irregular hours (including weekends/Holidays), attend job-related meetings.  Conducts field exercise utilizing GPS/survey data 
collection equipment.  Must be able to transfer field data into computers and update GPS databases; Ability to read blueprints 
and plans.  Knowledge of drafting and cartography principles along with land surveying practices and procedures.  Use New 
Mexico one call location system, before digging or placing road signs.  This is only a partial list of daily duties.  Employee 
must be able to perform other duties as assigned 

Education/Work Experience/Certification/Training Requirements/Abilities/Skills: 
ꞏ High school diploma or GED certification, plus two years of secretarial experience. 
ꞏ Valid New Mexico State Driver’s License.  Must have a good driving record to be insurable for liability purposes. 
ꞏ Must have knowledge of basic purchasing and budgeting; accuracy in posting, filing, and record maintenance; and 

knowledge of New Mexico local government road administration.   
ꞏ Highly proficient in use of CRT terminal and understand basic programs and road management program; knowledge 

of protocols of radio communications; the ability to assume responsibility and supervise pleasantly and efficiently; 
able to communicate and interact with the public and staff; as well as general secretarial duties. 

Work Conditions/Description of Tools, Equipment, Work Aids Used and Materials and/or Products 
Handled: 
ꞏ Office environment.  Normally works 6:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. - Monday-Thursday.  May be required to attend out of 

town training and seminars. 
ꞏ Telephone, calculator, personal computer terminal/keyboard and printer, photocopy machine, telefax machine, and 

other related office machines; two-way radio; and operating county vehicles. 

Comments on Physical Requirements: 
Maintain physical condition appropriate to the performance of assigned duties and responsibilities which may include the 
following: sitting and standing for prolonged periods of time; light to moderate lifting (up to 50 pounds); reaching, stooping, 
crawling, pulling, pushing, and manual dexterity; and operating assigned office equipment. 

Approved by: Jeff Honeycutt 

Date Posted: __________________                                  Date Hired: __________________ 
Employee Declaration: 
I have read the above job description.  I understand the demands and expectations of the position described and to the best of my knowledge, 
believe I can perform these duties. 

Name: ________________________________                         Date: ________________________ 
 
Date Revised: 09/07/2023 Commission Action 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 28 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Discussion Regarding the Scope of Work for the Opioid RFP 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 29 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Discussion and Approval of Funding Reimbursement Outlined in the Fire Protection 
Fund Audit Completed January 11, 2024.  

1. LCOES $1,676.50 General Fund 40108  
2. Trust Fund for Departments for Bonito ($255.00), Lincoln ($205.02), 

Nogal ($450.00). 
 













































LCOES

 Number Date Description  Amount

Page No. of 
Transaction 

Activity Listing Supplemental Info
Action Required

3/9/2023

Symbol Arts $1,676.50
items 251, 252, 

253 on 

spreadsheet Unauthorized expense from Fire Fund

Needs reimbursement 

back to fire fund

   

   

   

         

         

         

         

         

         

Total: $1,676.50

Reviewed and approved by:   Harry A Evans

Date:   1/11/2024

2/16/2024 Page 1



Bonito  FD

 Number Date

Description  Amount
Page No. of 
Transaction 

Activity Listing Supplemental Info
Action Required

3/15/2023

Grant Gerondale (Custom Dept 

License Plates
$60.00 item 223 on 

spreadsheet Unauthorized expense from Fire Fund

Needs reimbursement 

back to fire fund

  2/22/2023

Grant Gerondale (Custom Dept 

License Plates
$195.00 item 178 on 

spreadsheet Unauthorized expense from Fire Fund

Needs reimbursement 

back to fire fund

   

   

   
   

 

         

         

         

         

         

Total: $255.00

Reviewed and approved by:  
Harry A Evans

Date:  
1/11/2024

2/16/2024 Page 1



Lincoln FD

 Number Date Description  Amount

Page No. of 
Transaction 

Activity Listing Supplemental Info
Action Required

1/25/2023

Amazon Capital Services Inc 

(Personalized License Plates)
$205.02 Item 216 on 

spreadsheet Unauthorized expense from Fire Fund

Needs reimbursement 

back to fire fund

   

   

   

         

         

         

         

         

         

Total: $205.02

Reviewed and approved by:   Harry A Evans

Date:   1/11/2024

2/16/2024 Page 1



Nogal FD

 Number Date Description  Amount

Page No. of 
Transaction 

Activity Listing Supplemental Info
Action Required

2/22/2023

`Grant Gerondale (Custom Vehicle 

License Plates)
$450.00 Item 172 on 

spreadsheet Unauthorized expense from Fire Fund

Needs reimbursement 

back to fire fund

   

   

   

         

         

         

         

         

         

Total: $450.00

Reviewed and approved by:   Harry A Evans

Date:   1/11/2024

2/16/2024 Page 1



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 30 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Request to Approve the County Manager to Accompany Federal Lobbyist Nick Crockett 
for Several Federal Legislative Sessions from February 26th through March 1st to Present 
the Proposal for a Regionalized Emergency Management Training Center, Including the 
Newly Proposed OES Building  
 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 31 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

2:00 pm: Presentation by Tyler Technologies 
 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 32 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Discussion and Approval of the Allocation of LATCF Funds to Purchase and Implement 
the Tyler Technologies Finance Software to Replace Triadic for an Amount not to 
Exceed $850,000.00 
 















Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 33 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Discussion and Approval of the Allocation of LATCF Funds to Reimburse the County 
Clerk’s Office for the Implementation of the New Software from Pioneer/Catalis for Fee 
Collection and Revenue Software in the Amount of $150,000.00; Including $10,000.00 
Reimbursement to the Clerk’s Office for Expenses Already Paid, and $20,000.00 for the 
Fees Listed on Contract Pages 23-24. This Software does Integrate with Tyler Tech, and 
we have had Meetings and Email Correspondence to Demonstrate that Ability 
 



























































Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 34 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Discussion and Approval of the Allocation of LATCF Funds to Buy Triadic Data for 
Conversion to Pioneer/Catalis for the Clerk’s Data in the Amount of $36,400.00 if and/or 
as Necessary 
 



Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 35 

SUBJECT: 

Planning: 
a. Approval to File Solid Waste Liens 

i. D. Suede Mills-$526.54 
(Land 0007226 D. Suede Mills) 
(MH 1008710 Shamarie Mills) 

ii. Michael Cude & Beth Cude- $506.16 
(Land 1002917 Michael & Beth Cude) 
(MH 1008290 Michael & Beth Cude) 

iii. Barton Blankenship- $562.70 
iv. Ralph Anthony Montes & Lindy Lou Montes-$506.16 
v. Ulf Gerhard Eastman & Donna M. Sorenson-Eastman or their 

Successor Trustees; 
The Eastman Family Trust- $506.16 

vi. Christopher R. Reed & Lucill J. Reed- $506.16 
vii. Harold F. Duran & Zula F. Duran- $506.16 

viii. Belinda Sanchez De Baca-$506.16 
 

b. Approval of Lodger’s Tax Funding Requests: 
1. 37th Christmas Jubilee 

Dates: Nov. 8 - 11, 2024 
                    Requested Amount: $7,000.00 

Presenter:  Laurie Viselli 
2. Lincoln Forest Renaissance Fair 

                          Dates: May 17 - 18, 2024 
                    Requested Amount: $9,190.00 
                    Presenter: Tim Roberts 

c. Request for Solid Waste Refund to the Blanchard Living Trust in the Amount of 
$2,015.82 



 Page 1 of  2 

CLAIM OF LIEN OF THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
To all concerned and to                   D. Suede Mills               owner and/or reputable 
owner of the herein described property. YOU AND EACH OF YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 
the County of Lincoln, whose address is 300 Central, Carrizozo, New Mexico, 88301, (hereinafter 
“Claimant”, pursuant to the authority given it by New Mexico Statutes Annotated, Section 4-56-1 et. 
seq. N.M.S.A. 1978 and Lincoln County Ordinance No. 2024-01, hereby claims a lien against the 
property described below: 
 
1.  Ordinance Under Which the Lien is Established: This Lien is established pursuant to the County 
of Lincoln Ordinance No. 2024-01 titled An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2016-02 and 2020-04 and 
enacting an ordinance which regulates acceptable and unacceptable waste in Lincoln County, and 
providing for efficient and sanitary collection of waste, providing for mandatory disposal and 
assessment of fees, providing a penalty for violation of this ordinance, repealing ordinances in conflict; 
providing for the severability of parts hereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
2.  General Purpose of the Lien:  The general purpose of this Lien is to obtain payment for 
collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste. 
 
3.  Owner of the Subject Property:  The County Tax Assessor’s records indicate that the subject 
property is owned by:      D. Suede Mills 
 
 
4.  Property Legal Description:  The Lien is claimed upon the following property: 
 See Exhibit A            Land(0007226) D. Suede Mills 
                           MH(1008710) Shamarie Mills 
 
 
5. Amount of Lien: After deducting all just credits and offsets, there is now due and owing to Claimant 
the sum of $   526.54    representing the balance due and the administrative fee for preparation and 
filing of this Lien of $100.00.  (Note: Interest will accrue at the rate of 12% per year from the date of 
filing of this Lien, in addition to an additional Administrative Fee in the sum of $100.00 for preparation 
and filing of a Release of Lien.) 
 
6.  Lien Assessment Period:  The Lien amount above, is claimed for unpaid quarterly billing 
statements and late charges for the period from   October 1, 2021         to  November 16, 2023            
_, the later statement being for service through  December 31, 2023   . Charges for solid waste 
collection, transportation, and disposal will continue to accrue. 
 
 



 Page 2 of  2 

SIGNATURE/NOTARY PAGE TO CLAIM OF LIEN  
(Non-Payment of Solid Waste Collection Services Fees)  
 
        D. Suede Mills 
        
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 
 
Todd F. Proctor, being first duly sworn according to law, upon his oath, deposes and states that he is the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, that he has read the 
statements contained in the Claim of Lien, and that the matters therein contained are true and correct to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 
 
 
       THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
 
       By:                                      
        Todd F. Proctor 
       Its: Chairman 
 
 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me on this the         day of                          , 
20     , by Todd F. Proctor, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Lincoln, for and on behalf of said County. 
 
 
                                                                       
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
                          



 Page 1 of  2 

CLAIM OF LIEN OF THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
To all concerned and to        Michael Cude & Beth Cude              owner and/or reputable 
owner of the herein described property. YOU AND EACH OF YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 
the County of Lincoln, whose address is 300 Central, Carrizozo, New Mexico, 88301, (hereinafter 
“Claimant”, pursuant to the authority given it by New Mexico Statutes Annotated, Section 4-56-1 et. 
seq. N.M.S.A. 1978 and Lincoln County Ordinance No. 2024-01, hereby claims a lien against the 
property described below: 
 
1.  Ordinance Under Which the Lien is Established: This Lien is established pursuant to the County 
of Lincoln Ordinance No. 2024-01 titled An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2016-02 and 2020-04 and 
enacting an ordinance which regulates acceptable and unacceptable waste in Lincoln County, and 
providing for efficient and sanitary collection of waste, providing for mandatory disposal and 
assessment of fees, providing a penalty for violation of this ordinance, repealing ordinances in conflict; 
providing for the severability of parts hereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
2.  General Purpose of the Lien:  The general purpose of this Lien is to obtain payment for 
collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste. 
 
3.  Owner of the Subject Property:  The County Tax Assessor’s records indicate that the subject 
property is owned by:      Michael Cude & Beth Cude 
 
 
4.  Property Legal Description:  The Lien is claimed upon the following property: 
 See Exhibit A   Land(1002917) Michael & Beth Cude 
                  MH(1008290) Michael & Beth Cude 
 
 
5. Amount of Lien: After deducting all just credits and offsets, there is now due and owing to Claimant 
the sum of $  506.16   representing the balance due and the administrative fee for preparation and 
filing of this Lien of $100.00.  (Note: Interest will accrue at the rate of 12% per year from the date of 
filing of this Lien, in addition to an additional Administrative Fee in the sum of $100.00 for preparation 
and filing of a Release of Lien.) 
 
6.  Lien Assessment Period:  The Lien amount above, is claimed for unpaid quarterly billing 
statements and late charges for the period from   July 1, 2022      to November 16, 2023            
, the later statement being for service through  December 31, 2023  . Charges for solid waste collection, 
transportation, and disposal will continue to accrue. 
 
 



 Page 2 of  2 

SIGNATURE/NOTARY PAGE TO CLAIM OF LIEN  
(Non-Payment of Solid Waste Collection Services Fees)  
 
     Michael Cude & Beth Cude 
        
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 
 
Todd F. Proctor, being first duly sworn according to law, upon his oath, deposes and states that he is the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, that he has read the 
statements contained in the Claim of Lien, and that the matters therein contained are true and correct to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 
 
 
       THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
 
       By:                                      
        Todd F. Proctor 
       Its: Chairman 
 
 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me on this the         day of                          , 
20     , by Todd F. Proctor, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Lincoln, for and on behalf of said County. 
 
 
                                                                       
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
                          



 Page 1 of  2 

CLAIM OF LIEN OF THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
To all concerned and to              Barton Blankenship               owner and/or reputable 
owner of the herein described property. YOU AND EACH OF YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 
the County of Lincoln, whose address is 300 Central, Carrizozo, New Mexico, 88301, (hereinafter 
“Claimant”, pursuant to the authority given it by New Mexico Statutes Annotated, Section 4-56-1 et. 
seq. N.M.S.A. 1978 and Lincoln County Ordinance No. 2024-01, hereby claims a lien against the 
property described below: 
 
1.  Ordinance Under Which the Lien is Established: This Lien is established pursuant to the County 
of Lincoln Ordinance No. 2024-01 titled An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2016-02 and 2020-04 and 
enacting an ordinance which regulates acceptable and unacceptable waste in Lincoln County, and 
providing for efficient and sanitary collection of waste, providing for mandatory disposal and 
assessment of fees, providing a penalty for violation of this ordinance, repealing ordinances in conflict; 
providing for the severability of parts hereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
2.  General Purpose of the Lien:  The general purpose of this Lien is to obtain payment for 
collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste. 
 
3.  Owner of the Subject Property:  The County Tax Assessor’s records indicate that the subject 
property is owned by:      Barton Blankenship 
 
 
4.  Property Legal Description:  The Lien is claimed upon the following property: 
 See Exhibit A  
       
 
 
5. Amount of Lien: After deducting all just credits and offsets, there is now due and owing to Claimant 
the sum of $   562.70    representing the balance due and the administrative fee for preparation and 
filing of this Lien of $100.00.  (Note: Interest will accrue at the rate of 12% per year from the date of 
filing of this Lien, in addition to an additional Administrative Fee in the sum of $100.00 for preparation 
and filing of a Release of Lien.) 
 
6.  Lien Assessment Period:  The Lien amount above, is claimed for unpaid quarterly billing 
statements and late charges for the period from   April 1, 2022         to  November 16, 2023            
_, the later statement being for service through  December 31, 2023   . Charges for solid waste 
collection, transportation, and disposal will continue to accrue. 
 
 



 Page 2 of  2 

SIGNATURE/NOTARY PAGE TO CLAIM OF LIEN  
(Non-Payment of Solid Waste Collection Services Fees)  
 
        Barton Blankenship 
        
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 
 
Todd F. Proctor, being first duly sworn according to law, upon his oath, deposes and states that he is the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, that he has read the 
statements contained in the Claim of Lien, and that the matters therein contained are true and correct to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 
 
 
       THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
 
       By:                                      
        Todd F. Proctor 
       Its: Chairman 
 
 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me on this the         day of                          , 
20     , by Todd F. Proctor, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Lincoln, for and on behalf of said County. 
 
 
                                                                       
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
                          



 Page 1 of  2 

CLAIM OF LIEN OF THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
To all concerned and to  Ralph Anthony Montes & Lindy Lou Montes  owner and/or reputable 
owner of the herein described property. YOU AND EACH OF YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 
the County of Lincoln, whose address is 300 Central, Carrizozo, New Mexico, 88301, (hereinafter 
“Claimant”, pursuant to the authority given it by New Mexico Statutes Annotated, Section 4-56-1 et. 
seq. N.M.S.A. 1978 and Lincoln County Ordinance No. 2024-01, hereby claims a lien against the 
property described below: 
 
1.  Ordinance Under Which the Lien is Established: This Lien is established pursuant to the County 
of Lincoln Ordinance No. 2024-01 titled An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2016-02 and 2020-04 and 
enacting an ordinance which regulates acceptable and unacceptable waste in Lincoln County, and 
providing for efficient and sanitary collection of waste, providing for mandatory disposal and 
assessment of fees, providing a penalty for violation of this ordinance, repealing ordinances in conflict; 
providing for the severability of parts hereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
2.  General Purpose of the Lien:  The general purpose of this Lien is to obtain payment for 
collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste. 
 
3.  Owner of the Subject Property:  The County Tax Assessor’s records indicate that the subject 
property is owned by: Ralph Anthony Montes & Lindy Lou Montes 
 
 
4.  Property Legal Description:  The Lien is claimed upon the following property: 
 See Exhibit A   
                       
 
 
5. Amount of Lien: After deducting all just credits and offsets, there is now due and owing to Claimant 
the sum of $   506.16    representing the balance due and the administrative fee for preparation and 
filing of this Lien of $100.00.  (Note: Interest will accrue at the rate of 12% per year from the date of 
filing of this Lien, in addition to an additional Administrative Fee in the sum of $100.00 for preparation 
and filing of a Release of Lien.) 
 
6.  Lien Assessment Period:  The Lien amount above, is claimed for unpaid quarterly billing 
statements and late charges for the period from   July 1, 2022         to  November 16, 2023            
_, the later statement being for service through  December 31, 2023   . Charges for solid waste 
collection, transportation, and disposal will continue to accrue. 
 
 



 Page 2 of  2 

SIGNATURE/NOTARY PAGE TO CLAIM OF LIEN  
(Non-Payment of Solid Waste Collection Services Fees)  
 
 Ralph Anthony Montes & Lindy Lou Montes 
        
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 
 
Todd F. Proctor, being first duly sworn according to law, upon his oath, deposes and states that he is the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, that he has read the 
statements contained in the Claim of Lien, and that the matters therein contained are true and correct to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 
 
 
       THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
 
       By:                                      
        Todd F. Proctor 
       Its: Chairman 
 
 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me on this the         day of                          , 
20     , by Todd F. Proctor, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Lincoln, for and on behalf of said County. 
 
 
                                                                       
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
                          



 Page 1 of  2 

CLAIM OF LIEN OF THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
To all concerned and to Ulf Gerhard Eastman & Donna M. Sorenson-Eastman or their Successor 
Trustees; The Eastman Family Trust                                                                        
                        owner and/or reputable owner of the herein described property. YOU 
AND EACH OF YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that the County of Lincoln, whose address is 300 
Central, Carrizozo, New Mexico, 88301, (hereinafter “Claimant”, pursuant to the authority given it by 
New Mexico Statutes Annotated, Section 4-56-1 et. seq. N.M.S.A. 1978 and Lincoln County Ordinance 
No. 2024-01, hereby claims a lien against the property described below: 
 
1.  Ordinance Under Which the Lien is Established: This Lien is established pursuant to the County 
of Lincoln Ordinance No. 2024-01 titled An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2016-02 and 2020-04 and 
enacting an ordinance which regulates acceptable and unacceptable waste in Lincoln County, and 
providing for efficient and sanitary collection of waste, providing for mandatory disposal and 
assessment of fees, providing a penalty for violation of this ordinance, repealing ordinances in conflict; 
providing for the severability of parts hereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
2.  General Purpose of the Lien:  The general purpose of this Lien is to obtain payment for 
collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste. 
 
3.  Owner of the Subject Property:  The County Tax Assessor’s records indicate that the subject 
property is owned by:  Ulf Gerhard Eastman & Donna M. Sorenson-Eastman or their Successor              
Trustees; The Eastman Family Trust                                                                        
 
4.  Property Legal Description:  The Lien is claimed upon the following property: 
 See Exhibit A  
       
 
 
5. Amount of Lien: After deducting all just credits and offsets, there is now due and owing to Claimant 
the sum of $  506.16  representing the balance due and the administrative fee for preparation and filing 
of this Lien of $100.00.  (Note: Interest will accrue at the rate of 12% per year from the date of filing of 
this Lien, in addition to an additional Administrative Fee in the sum of $100.00 for preparation and 
filing of a Release of Lien.) 
 
6.  Lien Assessment Period:  The Lien amount above, is claimed for unpaid quarterly billing 
statements and late charges for the period from   July 1,2022     to  November 16, 2023            
_, the later statement being for service through  December 31, 2023  . Charges for solid waste 
collection, transportation, and disposal will continue to accrue. 
 



 Page 2 of  2 

 
SIGNATURE/NOTARY PAGE TO CLAIM OF LIEN  
(Non-Payment of Solid Waste Collection Services Fees)  
 
 Ulf Gerhard Eastman & Donna M. Sorenson-Eastman or their Successor Trustees;    
The Eastman Family Trust                                                          
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 
 
Todd F. Proctor, being first duly sworn according to law, upon his oath, deposes and states that he is the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, that he has read the 
statements contained in the Claim of Lien, and that the matters therein contained are true and correct to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 
 
 
       THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
 
       By:                                      
        Todd F. Proctor 
       Its: Chairman 
 
 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me on this the         day of                          , 
20     , by Todd F. Proctor, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Lincoln, for and on behalf of said County. 
 
 
                                                                       
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
                          



 Page 1 of  2 

CLAIM OF LIEN OF THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
To all concerned and to      Christopher R. Reed & Lucille J. Reed     owner and/or reputable 
owner of the herein described property. YOU AND EACH OF YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 
the County of Lincoln, whose address is 300 Central, Carrizozo, New Mexico, 88301, (hereinafter 
“Claimant”, pursuant to the authority given it by New Mexico Statutes Annotated, Section 4-56-1 et. 
seq. N.M.S.A. 1978 and Lincoln County Ordinance No. 2024-01, hereby claims a lien against the 
property described below: 
 
1.  Ordinance Under Which the Lien is Established: This Lien is established pursuant to the County 
of Lincoln Ordinance No. 2024-01 titled An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2016-02 and 2020-04 and 
enacting an ordinance which regulates acceptable and unacceptable waste in Lincoln County, and 
providing for efficient and sanitary collection of waste, providing for mandatory disposal and 
assessment of fees, providing a penalty for violation of this ordinance, repealing ordinances in conflict; 
providing for the severability of parts hereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
2.  General Purpose of the Lien:  The general purpose of this Lien is to obtain payment for 
collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste. 
 
3.  Owner of the Subject Property:  The County Tax Assessor’s records indicate that the subject 
property is owned by:      Christopher R. Reed & Lucille J. Reed 
 
 
4.  Property Legal Description:  The Lien is claimed upon the following property: 
 See Exhibit A  
       
 
 
5. Amount of Lien: After deducting all just credits and offsets, there is now due and owing to Claimant 
the sum of $  506.16   representing the balance due and the administrative fee for preparation and 
filing of this Lien of $100.00.  (Note: Interest will accrue at the rate of 12% per year from the date of 
filing of this Lien, in addition to an additional Administrative Fee in the sum of $100.00 for preparation 
and filing of a Release of Lien.) 
 
6.  Lien Assessment Period:  The Lien amount above, is claimed for unpaid quarterly billing 
statements and late charges for the period from   July 1, 2022      to November 16, 2023            
, the later statement being for service through  December 31, 2023  . Charges for solid waste collection, 
transportation, and disposal will continue to accrue. 
 
 



 Page 2 of  2 

SIGNATURE/NOTARY PAGE TO CLAIM OF LIEN  
(Non-Payment of Solid Waste Collection Services Fees)  
 
    Christopher R. Reed & Lucille J. Reed  
        
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 
 
Todd F. Proctor, being first duly sworn according to law, upon his oath, deposes and states that he is the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, that he has read the 
statements contained in the Claim of Lien, and that the matters therein contained are true and correct to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 
 
 
       THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
 
       By:                                      
        Todd F. Proctor 
       Its: Chairman 
 
 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me on this the         day of                          , 
20     , by Todd F. Proctor, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Lincoln, for and on behalf of said County. 
 
 
                                                                       
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
                          



 Page 1 of  2 

CLAIM OF LIEN OF THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
To all concerned and to      Harold F. Duran & Zula F. Duran         owner and/or reputable 
owner of the herein described property. YOU AND EACH OF YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 
the County of Lincoln, whose address is 300 Central, Carrizozo, New Mexico, 88301, (hereinafter 
“Claimant”, pursuant to the authority given it by New Mexico Statutes Annotated, Section 4-56-1 et. 
seq. N.M.S.A. 1978 and Lincoln County Ordinance No. 2024-01, hereby claims a lien against the 
property described below: 
 
1.  Ordinance Under Which the Lien is Established: This Lien is established pursuant to the County 
of Lincoln Ordinance No. 2024-01 titled An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2016-02 and 2020-04 and 
enacting an ordinance which regulates acceptable and unacceptable waste in Lincoln County, and 
providing for efficient and sanitary collection of waste, providing for mandatory disposal and 
assessment of fees, providing a penalty for violation of this ordinance, repealing ordinances in conflict; 
providing for the severability of parts hereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
2.  General Purpose of the Lien:  The general purpose of this Lien is to obtain payment for 
collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste. 
 
3.  Owner of the Subject Property:  The County Tax Assessor’s records indicate that the subject 
property is owned by:      Harold F. Duran & Zula F. Duran 
 
 
4.  Property Legal Description:  The Lien is claimed upon the following property: 
 See Exhibit A   Charlie Reyes and Chantelle Aymond (Real Estate Contract) 
       
 
 
5. Amount of Lien: After deducting all just credits and offsets, there is now due and owing to Claimant 
the sum of $  506.16   representing the balance due and the administrative fee for preparation and 
filing of this Lien of $100.00.  (Note: Interest will accrue at the rate of 12% per year from the date of 
filing of this Lien, in addition to an additional Administrative Fee in the sum of $100.00 for preparation 
and filing of a Release of Lien.) 
 
6.  Lien Assessment Period:  The Lien amount above, is claimed for unpaid quarterly billing 
statements and late charges for the period from   July 1, 2022      to November 16, 2023            
, the later statement being for service through  December 31, 2023  . Charges for solid waste collection, 
transportation, and disposal will continue to accrue. 
 
 



 Page 2 of  2 

SIGNATURE/NOTARY PAGE TO CLAIM OF LIEN  
(Non-Payment of Solid Waste Collection Services Fees)  
 
    Harold F. Duran & Zula F. Duran  
        
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 
 
Todd F. Proctor, being first duly sworn according to law, upon his oath, deposes and states that he is the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, that he has read the 
statements contained in the Claim of Lien, and that the matters therein contained are true and correct to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 
 
 
       THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
 
       By:                                      
        Todd F. Proctor 
       Its: Chairman 
 
 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me on this the         day of                          , 
20     , by Todd F. Proctor, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Lincoln, for and on behalf of said County. 
 
 
                                                                       
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
                          



 Page 1 of  2 

CLAIM OF LIEN OF THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
To all concerned and to        Belinda Sanchez De Baca                owner and/or reputable 
owner of the herein described property. YOU AND EACH OF YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 
the County of Lincoln, whose address is 300 Central, Carrizozo, New Mexico, 88301, (hereinafter 
“Claimant”, pursuant to the authority given it by New Mexico Statutes Annotated, Section 4-56-1 et. 
seq. N.M.S.A. 1978 and Lincoln County Ordinance No. 2024-01, hereby claims a lien against the 
property described below: 
 
1.  Ordinance Under Which the Lien is Established: This Lien is established pursuant to the County 
of Lincoln Ordinance No. 2024-01 titled An Ordinance Repealing Ordinance 2016-02 and 2020-04 and 
enacting an ordinance which regulates acceptable and unacceptable waste in Lincoln County, and 
providing for efficient and sanitary collection of waste, providing for mandatory disposal and 
assessment of fees, providing a penalty for violation of this ordinance, repealing ordinances in conflict; 
providing for the severability of parts hereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
2.  General Purpose of the Lien:  The general purpose of this Lien is to obtain payment for 
collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste. 
 
3.  Owner of the Subject Property:  The County Tax Assessor’s records indicate that the subject 
property is owned by:      Belinda Sanchez De Baca 
 
 
4.  Property Legal Description:  The Lien is claimed upon the following property: 
 See Exhibit A    
       
 
 
5. Amount of Lien: After deducting all just credits and offsets, there is now due and owing to Claimant 
the sum of $  506.16   representing the balance due and the administrative fee for preparation and 
filing of this Lien of $100.00.  (Note: Interest will accrue at the rate of 12% per year from the date of 
filing of this Lien, in addition to an additional Administrative Fee in the sum of $100.00 for preparation 
and filing of a Release of Lien.) 
 
6.  Lien Assessment Period:  The Lien amount above, is claimed for unpaid quarterly billing 
statements and late charges for the period from   July 1, 2022      to November 16, 2023            
, the later statement being for service through  December 31, 2023  . Charges for solid waste collection, 
transportation, and disposal will continue to accrue. 
 
 



 Page 2 of  2 

SIGNATURE/NOTARY PAGE TO CLAIM OF LIEN  
(Non-Payment of Solid Waste Collection Services Fees)  
 
     Belinda Sanchez De Baca 
        
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN ) 
 
Todd F. Proctor, being first duly sworn according to law, upon his oath, deposes and states that he is the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, that he has read the 
statements contained in the Claim of Lien, and that the matters therein contained are true and correct to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 
 
 
       THE COUNTY OF LINCOLN 
 
 
       By:                                      
        Todd F. Proctor 
       Its: Chairman 
 
 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me on this the         day of                          , 
20     , by Todd F. Proctor, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Lincoln, for and on behalf of said County. 
 
 
                                                                       
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
                          

























Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 36 

 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Authorization to Schedule Public Hearing to Consider Other Outdated or New Lincoln 
County Ordinances 

a. Public Hearing to Consider Approval of New Application for a Winegrower 
Liquor License with On Premises Consumption Only by Noisy Water Winery, 
located at 229 HWY 220, Alto, NM 88312; for Last Chance Ranch LLC; located at 
2342 Sudderth Drive, Ruidoso, NM 88345. 

 













Tuesday, February 20, 2024 

       

County of Lincoln      
PO Box 711 * 300 Central Ave. * Carrizozo, New Mexico 88301-0711 * (575) 648-2385 

 
www.lincolncountynm.gov 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 37 

 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Lincoln County Executive Session Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act: Discussion of All 
Threatened and/or Pending Litigation, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(7); Discussion 
of the Purchase Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property or Water Rights by the Public 
Body, Section 10-15-1, Subparagraph (H)(8); and Limited Personnel Matters, Section 10-
15-1, Subparagraph (H)(2) 
 

 



Page 1 of 5 

Alan P. Morel, P.A. 
Attorney at Law 

700 Mechem Drive, Suite 12 Jira Plaza 

Post Office Box 1030 Telephone (575) 257-3556 

Ruidoso, New Mexico  88355-1030   Facsimile (575) 257-3558 
 

February 20, 2024  

 

 

LINCOLN COUNTY EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT: 

DISCUSSION OF ALL THREATENED AND/OR PENDING LITIGATION, SECTION 10-15-1, 

SUBPARAGRAPH (H)(7); DISCUSSION OF THE PURCHASE, ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL 

OF REAL PROPERTY OR WATER RIGHTS BY THE PUBLIC BODY, SECTION 10-15-1, 

SUBPARAGRAPH (H)(8); AND LIMITED PERSONNEL MATTERS, SECTION 10-15-1, 

SUBPARAGRAPH (H)(2)  
  

New or Updated Matters since last report * 

 

1. Board of County Commissioners of Lincoln County v. Roger Romero D-1226-CV-2018-00055 

Complaint for Foreclosure. Complaint was filed February 20, 2018. Defendant Roger Romero filed an Answer 

to the Complaint asserting a Counterclaim to be filed in the U.S. District Court on April 2, 2018.  A Judicial 

Inquiry Hearing took place September 4, 2018.  The case is still pending. 

 

2. Roger Romero v. State of New Mexico – D-1226-CV-2018-00113  (Underlying Cases are:  Board 

of County Commissioners of Lincoln County v. Roger Romero, D-1226-CV-2018-00055, and State of 

N.M. v. Roger Romero M-30-MR-2016-00142)  A Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus was filed requesting 

that the Judgment & Sentence entered by Judge Vega in Cause No. M-30-MR-2016-00142 be vacated and set 

aside. George Romero’s Answer to Complaint and Counterclaim was filed April 30, 2018 in Cause No. D-

1226-CV-2018-00055. On February 26, 2019, an Order Setting Aside Conviction was entered by Judge 

Counts. 

 On March 25, 2019, a Notice of Appeal was filed with the N.M. Supreme Court, Case No. S-1-

SC-37602  On January 8, 2021, the Supreme Court entered its Dispositional Order of Transfer transferring the 

case to the Court of Appeals for consideration and review. 

 

 On January 28, 2021, a Dispositional Order was entered transferring the case to the NM Court 

of Appeals for consideration and review.  Case No. A-1-CA-39446  On December 8, 2022, the case was 

submitted to a 3 Judge Panel for a decision and, the case is still pending.     

 

3. Romero, et al. v. Stone, et al, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2019-00271 Request for Appointment of 

Guardian Ad Litem for Plaintiffs and Complaint for Violation of Civil and Constitutional Rights, Negligence, 

Prima Facie Tort and Wrongful Taking was filed on October 9, 2019 along with a Jury Demand.  Lisa B. Riley 

is the presiding Judge.  The case is still pending. 

 

4. Brd. of County Commissioners of Lincoln County v. Amerisourcebergen Drug Corp., et. al – 

U.S. Dist. Court Case No. 2:19-cv-00462 – Complaint for Public Nuisance, Violations of Racketeer 

Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO)… filed on May 20, 2019 by Attorneys Robles, Rail & 

Anaya, P.C., et. al.  After receiving no oppositions to the transfer of the case, on June 17, 2019, the case was 

transferred to the Northern District of Ohio noting that as of December 5, 2017, 1,534 cases have been 



Page 2 of 5 

transferred to Ohio for further proceedings.  Settlement has been reached with some of the Defendants and, 

Lincoln County has begun receiving payments from some of the settling Defendants.  The case is still pending. 

 

5. Greentree Solid Waste Authority v. Lincoln County, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2014-00095 – 

Compromise and Settlement Agreement and Release executed on December 17, 2015. 

 

6. Debra Wilcox v. Board of County Commissioners, Deputy Samuel C. Hanna, Caroline McCoy 

and Former Sheriff Robert Shepperd, Cause No. D-1215-CV-2021-00574  Complaint for Damages was 

filed on the 2nd day of September, 2021 by Steven Sanders alleging personal injury resulting from an improper 

and grossly negligent investigation and for “malicious abuse of process”.  County Defendants were served on 

November 2, 2021.  On December 12, 2023, County Defendants filed their Motion for Summary Judgment.  

On February 1, 2024, a Settlement Conference was held at which time, settlement was reached.  Settlement 

documents are pending. 

 

7. Eby Revocable Trust AND William R. Moser v. Lincoln County Assessor, et al, Cause No. D-

1226-CV-2021-0260 A Notice of Appeal of Decision of Tax Protest Board was filed on the 14th day of 

December, 2021 by Attorney Zach Cook.  On January 27, 2022, New Mexico Counties assigned Attorney 

Daniel Macke to represent Lincoln County.  The case is still pending.  

 

8. Crystal Buster v. Board of County Commissioners for Lincoln County, Correctional Solutions 

Group, LLC, et al, Cause No. 2:21-cv-01208 A Complaint for Recovery of Damages Caused by the 

Deprivation of Civil Rights with a Jury Demand was filed on the 12th day of December, 2021, by Coyte Law 

P.C., and the Law Offices of Matthew Vance, P.C.  The case is still pending.   

 

9. Lionel Burns v. Lincoln County Sheriff’s Department; Deputy Daniel Brawley; in their 

individual and official capacities, and Rhonda Burns, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2022-00032  A Complaint 

for Damages was filed on the 4th day of March, 2022, by Clayton E. Crowley, Esq. and Joseph J. Gribble, Esq.   

 

 On April 22, 2022 the case was removed to the U.S. District Court for the District of New Mexico, 

Cause No. 1:22-cv-000304.  The case is still pending.  

 

10. Rosarita Brady, et al v. The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Lincoln, et al, 

Cause No. D-1226-CV-2022-00199 A Verified Complaint was filed by Attorneys Alexandra Bobbit and 

McKenzie St. Denis on the 27th day of September, 2022.  Lincoln County was served on the 22nd day of 

November, 2022.  Lincoln County Defendants filed their Motion to Dismiss in Lieu of an Answer to the 

Complaint on the 6th day of January, 2023.  A hearing on Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss took place on May 

1, 2023.  A ruling on the Motion to Dismiss has yet to be entered. 

 

11. Board of County Commissioners of Catron County, et al v. Secretary Robert E. Doucette, Jr., 

Cause No. D-725-CV-2023-00085.  A Complaint for Declaratory Judgment was filed on June 30, 2023 

requesting that GSD’s Health Plan Assessments to Counties are unconstitutional and void.  Petitioners filed 

their Motion for Summary Judgment on November 3, 2023 and Respondent has also filed a Counter-Motion 

for Summary Judgment.  A hearing on the Motion and Counter-Motion took place on December 18, 2023.  On 

January 9, 2024, Judge Murphy entered an Order which provided, in part, a stay of GSD Assessments, and 

ordering GSD to develop a new plan that gives Plaintiffs’ notice and the ability to prepare for the assessments 

or for the liability arising from the assessments in their budgets.  The case is still pending. 

 

12. *Brandon A. Gonzales and Kevin D. Trapp, on behalf of themselves and other similarly situated 

v. Lincoln County Board of County Commissioners, and Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office, Michael 

Wood, John Doe #1, John Doe #2, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2023-00192  A Complaint alleging improper oaths 



Page 3 of 5 

of office given to the Sheriff, Sheriff’s Deputies, for false arrest, false imprisonment, and denial of due process 

as guaranteed by the NM Constitution was filed on July 28, 2023 by Attorneys Lauren Temple and Luke 

Ragsdale.  A hearing on Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss took place on December 15, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. On 

February 7, 2024, Judge Sugg entered an Order Granting Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss.  This matter is now 

concluded. 

  

13. KC Dorgan and Sara Cummins v. Deputy Levi Wrye, Yancy Darby, Matthew Cude and Lincoln 

County Sheriff’s Department, Cause No. D-1226-CV-2023-00147 A Third-Party Complaint was filed by 

Third-Party Plaintiffs, KC Dorgan and Sara Cummins, on July 25, 2023 by Attorneys Freda Howard McSwane, 

and Edward Dev Bunn, Jr. alleging negligent infliction of emotional distress, violation of due process rights, 

and loss of financial resources.  Lincoln County Defendants filed their Motion to Dismiss Third-Party 

Complaint on September 13, 2023.  A hearing on County Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss took place on January 

31, 2024 at 1:30 p.m.  Plaintiffs have until March 4, 2024 to file their Motion to Amend Complaint, if no 

Motion to Amend Complaint is filed, Judge Sugg will rule on the Motion to Dismiss filed by County 

Defendants.  The case is still pending.   

 

14. Antonio Wood and Rosalyn Balasta Wood v. Rockney Bacchus, et al, Cause No. D-1226-CV-

2024-00008 A Complaint for Foreclosure of a Final Judgment Order entered in the 3rd Judicial District Court 

in Dona Ana County in favor of Plaintiffs was filed on January 12, 2024 and served upon the Lincoln County 

Treasurer on January 25, 2024.  Lincoln County has until February 24, 2024 to file a response to the complaint. 

 

Tort Claims Notices Received or Threatened 
 

 Montoya, Daniel Lee - Correspondence received on January 9, 2024, alleging false imprisonment, 

loss of freedom, spiritual damages, and physical and mental problems while incarcerated at the Lincoln County 

Detention Center. 

 

 Reyes, Charlie – Correspondence received on January 9, 2024, alleging 4th Amendment violations, 

cruel and unusual punishment, crimes against humanity, etc. while incarcerated at the Lincoln County 

Detention Center. 

 

 Moran, Kelly, deceased – Tort Claim Notice received on January 12, 2024, alleging failure by law 

enforcement to protect the community from foreseeable violence and an imminent threat and additionally 

failing to act with appropriate care in responding to the threat ultimately ending in the murder of Ms. Moran. 

 

 Barrett, Robert – Tort Claim Notice received on January 29, 2024, alleging cruel and unusual 

punishment by an unknown employee of the Lincoln County Detention Center by turning the thermostat down 

to 39 degrees during the month of December 2023, with the knowledge of the Warden and the Chief of 

Security. 

 

 Butchofsky, Marcia – Tort Claim Notice received on February 1, 2024, alleging damage to 

Claimant’s vehicle by a Lincoln County Road Department employee. 

 

2023 

 

 Ornelas, Mark – Tort Claim Notice received on January 4, 2023, alleging injuries sustained on 

October 11, 2022, as a result of an automobile accident / rollover of the Detention Center Transport Van owned 

by Lincoln County while being transported from Eddy County Detention Center to Lincoln County Detention 

Center. 

 



Page 4 of 5 

 Booth, Marcus – Tort Claim Notice received January 26, 2023, alleging injuries sustained by 

Claimants head due to the actions by staff of the Lincoln County Detention Center and staff’s refusal to take 

Claimant for medical treatment. 

 

 Ramos, Heber – Tort Claim Notice received on February 17, 2023, alleging Civil Rights Violations 

and injuries sustained while Mr. Ramos was incarcerated at the Lincoln County Detention Center. 

 

 Smoley, Cinthia – Tort Claim Notice received February 24, 2023, [Claimant also sent the Tort  

Claim directly to New Mexico Counties Claims Department] alleging that beginning on November 28, 2022, 

she was subjected to a conspiracy of constitutional deprivations when she was unlawfully removed from her 

home at 105 Bluebird Lane, Ruidoso, NM.  Her claims include that: she sustained injuries while being detained, 

she was abused during her incarceration at the Lincoln County Detention Center, she was assigned a Public 

Defender without her consent, and that all of her pets were immediately euthanized by the Lincoln County 

Humane Society the day of her arrest. Claimant has named the following agencies in her claim:  Twelfth 

Judicial District Court, Lincoln county Sheriff’s Office, Ruidoso Police Department, New Mexico State Police, 

Ruidoso Animal Control, Lincoln County Animal Control, Humane Society, Lincoln County Magistrate Court 

Judge, Katie Lund. 

 

 Smoley, Robert – Tort Claim Notice received February 24, 2023, [Claimant also sent the Tort  

Claim directly to New Mexico Counties Claims Department] alleging that beginning on November 28, 2022, 

he was subjected to a conspiracy of constitutional deprivations when he was unlawfully removed from his 

sister’s home at 105 Bluebird Lane, Ruidoso, NM where is resided.  His claims include that he was abused 

during his incarceration at the Lincoln County Detention Center, he was assigned a Public Defender without 

his consent, and that all of his pets were immediately euthanized by the Lincoln County Humane Society the 

day of his arrest. Claimant has named the following agencies in his claim:  Twelfth Judicial District Court, 

Lincoln county Sheriff’s Office, Ruidoso Police Department, New Mexico State Police, Ruidoso Animal 

Control, Lincoln County Animal Control, Humane Society, Lincoln County Magistrate Court Judge, Katie 

Lund. 

 

 Provine, Allison – Tort Claim Notice received March 14, 2023, referencing the Lincoln County 

Sheriff’s Office stating:  “faulty tail light” 

 

 Mendoza, George – Tort Claim Notice received March 20, 2023, alleging that on or about December 

10, 2022, Lincoln County Medical Center and/or its agents fell below the standard of care resulting in injuries 

and damages to Claimant. 

 

 Soden, Sue – Tort Claim Notice received March 31, 2023, alleging that on or about March 1, 2022 

and continuing thereafter to on or about April 12 and May 5, 2022, Lincoln County Medical Center and/ or its 

agents fell below the standard of care resulting injuries and damages to Claimant. 

 

 Vargas, Luis A. – Tort Claim Notice received June 7, 2023, alleging personal injuries sustained during 

a motor vehicle collision as a result of a large pothole.  Claimant alleges that the Village of Ruidoso, Lincoln 

County and/or the State of New Mexico may have an exposure for liability in connection with this loss.  

 

 Sambrano, Patrick – Tort Claim Notice and Intent to Sue received August 4, 2023, alleging violation 

of Claimant’s 5th and 6th Amendments of the U.S. Constitution, violations of Article II, Section 10, 13, 14, and 

18 of the NM Constitution, false reporting, and indifference to the impact and consequences of Claimant’s 

arrest based on false pretenses, and detained for 72 days before his arraignment. 

 



Page 5 of 5 

 Wall, Ronald Gordon – Tort Claim Notice received September 28, 2023 alleging that Lincoln County 

Medical Center, by and through its employees, acted under the standard of care resulting in Mr. Wall’s death 

on July 9, 2023. 

 

2022 
 Downs, Barbara – Tort Claim Notice received May 6, 2022 alleging improper road and/or waterline 

maintenance resulting in a vehicle collision due to the icy road at the intersection of Sudderth Drive and 

Paradise Canyon in Ruidoso, New Mexico.  A 2nd Tort Claim Notice was received on May 9, 2022 for a 

separate source with the same allegations as those set out in the May 6, 2022 notice. 

 

 McMinn, David – Tort Claim Notice received on July 6, 2022, alleging multiple, serious issues due 

to the use of excessive force by BIA law enforcement who may have been agents of or acting on behalf of the 

Village of Ruidoso, Ruidoso Police Department, Lincoln County, N.M. State Police and the State of New 

Mexico. 

 
 New Mexico Boys and Girls Ranches, Inc. and its Employee, Bridgman, Ted – Tort Claim Notice 

received on August 9, 2022, alleging violation of civil rights and tort claims act, including a demand to cease 

and desist and the return of promotional materials confiscated by County representatives at the Lincoln County 

Fair.  

 

 Estates of Wesley Clark and Linda Clark – Tort Claim Notice received on October 11, 2022 alleging 

wrongful deaths as a result of the McBride Fire due in part to faulty siren warning systems. 


	02.20.2024 Agenda (002) As of 2.16.2024
	6_Minutes
	7_Consent Item
	7d_Approval of the 2024 Annual Certified County Maintained Mileage Report.pdf
	Road Mileage agenda document 2024.pdf
	NM DOT Letter Road Mileage 2024.pdf
	Lincoln County Road Mileage Map 2024.pdf
	Road Mileage List.pdf


	8_Boards and Committees Item
	9_FLNR Item
	10_Public Comment
	11_LCDC
	12_Cancellation of RFP
	13_LCMC Item
	14_Mimbres Peak Item
	15_Fire Resolution 2024-45 Item
	16_Letters of Support for Fire Resolution
	17_Horn Presentation
	18_Sound and Video System Item
	19_Film Liaison Item
	20_OES Item
	21_Requests for Bids Item
	22_Road Update
	23_Finance Item
	24_Manager's Report
	25_Policy Reviews
	26_Project Manager Item
	27_Road Admin Item
	28_Opioid RFP Item
	29_Fire Audit Item
	30_Crockett Item
	31_Tyler Technologies Item
	32_LATCF Tyler Item
	33_LATCF Clerk Reimbursement
	34_LATCF Conversion
	35_Planning
	36_Public Hearing Request
	37_Executive Session

	Department: Road
	Department HeadElected OfficialEmployee: Jeff Honeycutt/Janett Herrera
	Date of Request: 1/24/2024
	Date of Agenda: 2/20/2024
	Will the Agenda Item require an RFP quotes formal bids etc: No
	If so which: 
	Is this agenda item a public notice request: No
	Signatures: Yes
	supporting docs: Yes
	Agenda Items: 2024 Annual Certified County Maintained Mileage Report
	Description of Agenda Item: Road Mileage MapRoad Mileage SpreadsheetNM DOT Letter
	Requested Motion: Approval of the Road Mileage Certification and Resolution
	Additional Page: 


